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Financial Highlights
MBEE

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIALEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
(Restated)
(s E5)
RESULTS EF5
Continuing operations BEEEER
Revenue EERT 27,194 37,081
Gross profit EH 24,225 34,171
Profit before taxation MR AT 2 A 57,321 87,219
Profit for the year from continuing operations 2R BB &L 2N EE BT 58,970 86,523
Discontinued operation DRIEEEETR
Profit for the year from discontinued operation 38 B & 4% |F 48 & ¥ &V EE B 7 4,602 29,924
Profit for the year attributable to owners AN B R FE AT
of the Company 63,572 116,447
HK cents HK cents
B AL
(Restated)
(s =51)
Earnings per share BRAF
From continuing and discontinued REFELERDRLE
operations R
— Basic - &K 3.75 12.50
- Diluted -EE 3.43 9.77
From continuing operations REFELEER
— Basic - &K 3.48 9.29
— Diluted - #E 3.19 7.51
As at 31 March
MA3H31H
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Total assets WEE 5,624,267 4,879,808
Total liabilities BwEE (2,389,101) (1,864,621)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 &A% R (b #E 25 3,235,166 3,015,187




Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Eminence Enterprise Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s consolidated profit
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$63,572,000
as compared with last year (2022) of approximately HK$116,447,000.
The consolidated profit from continuing operations for the year ended 31
March 2023 was approximately HK$58,970,000 as compared with last
year (2022) of approximately HK$86,523,000. The consolidated profit from
discontinued operation was approximately HK$4,602,000 as compared
with last year (2022) of approximately HK$29,924,000. For the year
ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s revenue from continuing operations
amounted to approximately HK$27,194,000 as compared with last year
(2022) of approximately HK$37,081,000, which represented a decrease of
approximately HK$9,887,000 or approximately 26.7% as compared with
last year (2022). This year’s gross profit margin was approximately 89.1%
(2022: approximately 92.2%). The basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing and discontinued operations for the year ended 31 March 2023
were HK3.75 cents and HK83.43 cents respectively (2022: HK12.50 cents and
HK9.77 cents respectively).

In face of an extraordinarily challenging year with global economic
uncertainties and continuing challenges posed by international geo-
political tensions and market volatility with high inflationary pressures and
interest rates, the Group continuously and closely monitors and explores
market and investment opportunities, and constantly and prudently focuses
on its core business operations in order to improve financial performance and
create long-term values to maximize the interests of its shareholders.

Finally, the Board and | would like to take this opportunity to express heartfelt

appreciation to our Directors, management team, staff, shareholders and
business partners for their continuous support to the Company.

Lai Law Kau
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWRE DN

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to announce the audited
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2023 together with comparative figures. These
annual results have been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee”).

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s consolidated profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) was
approximately HK$63,572,000 as compared with last year (2022) of
HK$116,447,000. The consolidated profit from continuing operations for the
year ended 31 March 2023 was approximately HK$58,970,000 as compared
with last year (2022) of approximately HK$86,523,000. The decrease in net
profit was mainly attributable to, among other things, (i) decrease in revenue;
(i decrease in gain on settlement of loans receivable by properties; and (iii)
decrease in write-back on properties held for development for sale, net.
Such decrease in profit was partially offset by (iv) increase in gain on changes
in fair value of investment properties; and (v) decrease in impairment loss
on loans receivable. The consolidated profit from discontinued operation
was approximately HK$4,602,000 as compared with last year (2022) of
approximately HK$29,924,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations amounted to approximately HK$27,194,000 as compared with last
year (2022) of approximately HK$37,081,000, which represented a decrease
of approximately HK$9,887,000 or approximately 26.7% as compared with
last year (2022). This year’s gross profit margin was approximately 89.1%
(2022: approximately 92.2%).

The basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing and discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 March 2023 were HK3.75 cents and HK3.43
cents respectively (2022: HK12.50 cents and HK9.77 cents respectively).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (2022: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in property development,
property investment (comprising ownership and rental of investment

properties), investment in securities and others and loan financing business

which property development and property investment are the core businesses

of the Group. The review of each business segment of the Group is set out

below.

@

Property Development

One of the Group’s core businesses is property development. The

Group has extensive experience on property redevelopment, in

particular, acquisition of old buildings for renewal and redevelopment.

Below are the major projects of the Group during the year.

(@

(b)

Project Matheson Street

As at 31 March 2023, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, owned the site at Nos. 11, 13 and 15
Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The total area of
the site is approximately 2,857 square feet and is currently under
construction. After redevelopment, the site will provide a gross
floor area of approximately 42,854 square feet of commercial/
office mixed-use building. Construction of the project is expected
to complete in the last quarter of 2023.

Project King Lam Street

As at 31 March 2023, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, owned the site located at No. 121 King Lam
Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The site area is approximately
5,483 square feet. The Group plans to redevelop the site into an
industrial building with modern amenities, facilities and loading
or unloading bays utilizing floor area allowable under all relevant
laws and regulations which maximize the usage and potential
of the lot to its fullest extent. Construction of the project is
expected to complete in late 2023.
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(c)

(d)

Project Kennedy Town

As at 31 March 2023, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries, owned all the units of (i) Nos. 1B and 1C
and Nos. 1D and 1E of Davis Street, Kennedy Town, Hong
Kong (“Davis Street”); and (i) Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street,
Kennedy Town, Hong Kong (“Catchick Street”). The combined
site area of Davis Street and Catchick Street is approximately
7,122 square feet. The Group plans to redevelop the combined
site into a commercial and/or residential mixed-use development
to maximize its usage. Foundation work is underway and the
project is expected to complete in 2025.

Project Fung Wah

As at 31 March 2023, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries, owned the site at Fung Wah Factorial
Building, Nos. 646, 648 and 648A Castle Peak Road, Kowloon
(collectively, the “Fung Wah Factorial Building”). The total
site area is approximately 9,206 square feet. The Group plans
to redevelop the Fung Wah Factorial Building into a high-rise
modern industrial building to maximize its usage. Foundation
work is underway and the project is expected to complete in
2026.

(c)
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Property Investment
The Group’s other core business is property investment.

During the year, the rental income of the Group recorded from
continuing operations was approximately HK$24,408,000 (2022:
approximately HK$30,528,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 20.0% over last year (2022). The decrease is primarily
attributable to certain properties in Hong Kong has been demolished
for the purposes of property development.

Hong Kong

In Hong Kong, the Group owns residential, commercial and industrial
units, and land with attached structure with a total carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,200,400,000 as at 31 March 2023 (2022:
approximately HK$796,200,000). For the year ended 31 March
2023, the Group recorded property rental income from continuing
operations of approximately HK$21,706,000 (2022: approximately
HK$27,793,000), representing a decrease of approximately 21.9% as
compared with 2022.

Singapore

In Singapore, the Group owns two (2) residential units with a total
carrying amount of approximately HK$137,041,000 as at 31 March
2023 (2022: approximately HK$183,680,000). For the year ended 31
March 2023, the Group received property rental income from continuing
operations of approximately HK$2,702,000 (2022: approximately
HK$2,735,000), representing a decrease of approximately 1.2% over
last year (2022).

For further information, please refer to “Material Acquisitions and
Disposals” section below.

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

As at 31 March 2023, the Group owned fifteen (15) blocks of factory
premises and five (5) blocks of dormitories in Huzhou City, Zhejiang
Province of the PRC. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
recorded property rental income and management fee income of
approximately HK$4,602,000 and approximately HK$10,807,000
respectively (2022: approximately HK$8,210,000 and approximately
HK$18,007,000 respectively), representing a decrease of approximately
43.9% and 40.0% respectively as compared with 2022.

(ii)
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Land Resumption with the Huzhou Government in respect of the Huzhou
Properties

On 5 October 2022, the People’s Government of Zhili Town, Wuxing District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC (the “Huzhou Government”) and
Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd. (“Enterprises Huzhou”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a land resumption
agreement (the “Land Resumption Agreement”), pursuant to which, among
other things, the Huzhou Government shall resume, and Enterprises Huzhou
shall surrender the industrial complex of fifteen (15) blocks of factory premises
and five (5) blocks of dormitories erected over two (2) connected parcels of
land situated at Easyknit Science and Technology City, No. 108 Dongliang
Road, Zhili Town, Wuxing District, Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
which are owned by Enterprises Huzhou (the “Huzhou Properties”) for
industrial use with a total site area of 167,739.56 square metres, and the
existing developments have a total gross floor area of 152,722.24 square
metres.

Pursuant to the Land Resumption Agreement, a compensation amount
of RMB386,982,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$439,752,000) (the
“Compensation Amount”) would be payable by the Huzhou Government
to Enterprises Huzhou, and Enterprises Huzhou should cooperate with the
Huzhou Government to complete the change of land title procedures, and
vacate and handover the Huzhou Properties. The Compensation Amount
is expected to be used for the Group’s general working capital, bank loan
repayment and/or financing projects.

As at 31 March 2023, an amount of RMB199,586,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$226,802,000) has been received by the Group and
up to the date of this annual report, the Group has received a total of
RMB269,586,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$306,348,000) of the
Compensation Amount.

Accordingly, the financial results of the property investment in the PRC was
classified as discontinued operation as at 31 March 2023.

Further information can be found in the joint announcement issued by
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit”) (stock code: 1218) and
the Company dated 5 October 2022.

SN BCIT B85 ) 5 19 £ 3 44
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Investment in Securities and Others

The Group adopted a prudent attitude in its well-diversified securities
investment. During the year, the Group had acquired and disposed
of listed securities and unlisted equity securities, equity linked notes
and other investment products. The Group recorded fair value loss
in securities and other investments from continuing operations
of approximately HK$4,531,000 (2022: loss of approximately
HK$16,126,000). During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
recorded fair value loss in investment in securities and others from
discontinued operation of approximately HK$5,392,000 (2022: loss
of approximately HK$1,610,000). As a result, the Group reported
a segment loss from continuing operations of approximately
HK$26,505,000 (2022: segment loss of approximately HK$32,217,000)
during the year under review. The Group received dividend income
from the listed securities investments from continuing operations of
approximately HK$2,598,000 (2022: approximately HK$5,546,000)
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s investment in equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and the United States of America amounted to
approximately HK$23,914,000 (2022: approximately HK$52,818,000).
This value represented an investment portfolio comprising 104 (2022:
8) equity securities which are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and an
overseas recognised stock exchange. The movements during the
year were: (i) the purchase of securities investments which had a fair
value of approximately HK$14,618,000; (i) the disposal of securities
investments which had a fair value of approximately HK$37,157,000;
and (i) net decrease in market value of securities investments in the
amount of approximately HK$6,380,000.

For further information, please refer to “Material Acquisitions and
Disposals” section below.

(iii)
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The Group held significant securities investments as at 31 March 2023 M2023F3A31H » AEEFAUTE
as below: RBEHEE -
Approximate
percentage
held to the
total issued Dividend Fair value Approximate
share capital income gain/(loss) percentage of
of the Investment for the year for the year total assets of
Number of company/  cost/cost of ended ended  Fairvalueat  the Group at
Company name (stock code) shares held investment acquisition 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
| 5
BEf 5 2023 F #2023 &
BRE/RE 20235 3A31 A 3A31 A
ki 3A31H LEEZ #2023 F AR
BE BRES  RERE/ LEEZ NYE 3A%AZ BEEY
RAEBRAKS) RH#E BOL WHEHA REBA W/ (BB NFE  BRESN
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
TART TER TART TART

Best Food Holding Company Limited (1488)

BREERERAR(1489) 22,618,000 1.43 25,694 - (1,131) 17,416 0.31
RLX Technology Inc. American depositary
shares (RLX)

RLX Technology Inc. B H IR (RLY) 183,346 0.01 17,117 - 1,504 4,163 0.07

Other listed shares”

iy Erifkin 187,347 - 2,461 2,598 (6,843) 2,335 0.04

Grand total:

@3t 45,272 2,598 (6,380) 23,914 0.42

* Other listed shares included 3 companies and 1 company whose shares are * Hip EHAD 25 R AT LT
listed on the Main Board and GEM Board of the Stock Exchange and 98 SEFRZ1FEBIZERE A AIMRMD RIEE
companies are listed on an overseas recognised stock exchange. SNRAI B H X S5 FT £ T HI98 &I A 7]

Betn o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group considers the prospects in respect of the investments
in securities and others remain cautiously optimistic. The Group
understands that the performance of the investments may be affected
by global economic uncertainties and degree of volatility in the
Hong Kong financial market and subject to other external factors.
Accordingly, the Group will continuously maintain a diversified portfolio
of investment of different segments of markets to minimize the possible
financial risks. The Group will also closely monitor the performance
progress of the investment portfolio in a prudent and balanced risk
management approach from time to time.

Loan Financing

The loan financing business of the Group is primarily operated by City
China International Limited (“City China”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company which is a licensed money lender carrying
on business under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The borrowers of the loan financing business
are individuals and corporate entities that have short-term funding
needs and could provide sufficient collaterals for their borrowings.
The borrowers are primarily acquired through business referrals and
introductions. City China’s source of funding is financed by the Group’s
internal resources. During the year, the Group recorded interest
income from loan financing business from continuing operations
amounting to approximately HK$2,786,000 (2022: approximately
HK$6,553,000), representing a decrease of approximately 57.5% as
compared with last year (2022). During the year ended 31 March 2023,
the Group recorded interest income from loan financing business from
discontinued operation amounting to approximately HK$503,000
(2022: approximately HK$1,177,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 57.3% as compared with last year (2022). The segment
loss of loan financing business from continuing operations was
approximately HK$9,801,000 for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022:
segment profit of approximately HK$13,082,000). The outstanding
principal amount of loans receivable as at 31 March 2023 was
approximately HK$52,250,000 (2022: approximately HK$94,381,000).
During the year ended 31 March 2023, impairment allowance of
approximately HK$8,663,000 (2022: approximately HK$21,498,000)
was recognized in profit or loss in its loan financing business from
continuing operations. During the year ended 31 March 2023, reversal
of impairment loss of approximately HK$221,000 (2022: approximately
HK$37,000) was recognized in profit or loss in its loan financing
business from discontinued operation.

(iv)
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B1ALLFE RRECRIEEEER
BEFRMEXEBRBEERZAAERD
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The Group has credit policies, guidelines and procedures in place
which cover key internal controls of a loan transaction including due
diligence, credit appraisal, proper execution of documentations,
continuous monitoring and collection and recovery. Before entering
into loan agreements, the Group focuses on the due diligence
procedures and credit risk assessment work, including but not
limited to meeting with each borrower, conducting research on their
backgrounds, evaluating their current business operations and financial
conditions, market reputation and creditability, conducting financial and
recoverability analysis, and reviewing on repayment history (including
recent settlement records, and any litigations and bankruptcy orders)
and change in career or business background and financial position of
each borrower in order to better understand the circumstances of each
borrower. The Group regularly assesses the value of the collaterals and
guarantees of the borrowers for their credit quality, and defines credit
limits to be granted to the borrowers. To minimize credit risks, the
Group typically requires guarantees, including collaterals with expected
realized value exceeding the loan amount, post-dated cheques and/or
personal or corporate guarantees. The Group closely monitors on an
ongoing review of credit risks of loans recoverability and collection to
ensure that follow-up actions (including legal actions if necessary) are

taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group mainly provides short-term loans of maturity of not more
than two (2) years. The repayment terms and conditions are determined
by factors including the repayment ability of the borrowers, the Group’s
funding and cash flows management strategies, and the terms and

rates of the prevailing market.
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The Group has concentration of credit risk in relation to loans
receivable, amounting to approximately HK$52,250,000 as at 31 March
2023 (2022: approximately HK$94,381,000), from a few borrowers
with approximately 60% (2022: 69%) of the balance were secured by
guaranteed money of nil (2022: HK$10,000,000) or properties with
estimated fair values of HK$28,445,000 (2022: HK$161,407,000).
The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals in
the absence of default by the borrowers. There have not been any
significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for the loans
receivable. In addition, the unsecured loans receivable as at 31 March
2023 amounting to HK$30,750,000 (2022: HK$39,750,000) were
with personal guarantee. The largest borrower of the Group by itself
accounted for approximately 26% (2022: 17%) of the loans receivable
of the Group as at 31 March 2023. During the year, the range of
interest rates on the Group’s loans receivable is 0% to 8% (2022: 4%
to 8%) per annum, and the total number of the borrowers of the loan
financing business of the Group is 11.

In view of the foreseeable increase in risk of default by the borrowers
as economic uncertainties continued, the Group reassessed the
credit ratings of individual borrowers and made necessary provisions
for potential impairment loss. As at 31 March 2023, allowance for
loans receivable amounted to approximately HK$53,480,000 (2022:
approximately HK$47,239,000). Except for those credit-impaired loans
receivable, there were no loans receivable which were past due as at
31 March 2028.
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The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on loans receivable which are subject to impairment
assessment under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
“Financial Instruments” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In particular, the
following information is taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the loans
receivable’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, such as a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the borrower;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the borrower’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the borrower; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environments of the
borrower that results in a significant decrease in the borrower’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loans receivable to minimize credit risk. Impairment allowances on
outstanding loans receivable are determined by an evaluation of
financial backgrounds, financial conditions and historical settlement
records, including past due rates and default rates, of the borrowers
and relevant information from public domain at the end of each
reporting period. The borrowers are assigned different grading under
internal credit ratings to calculate ECL, taking into consideration the
estimates of expected cash shortfalls which are driven by estimates of
possibility of default and the amount and timing of cash flows that are
expected from foreclosure on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of
obtaining and selling the collaterals.

As at 31 March 2023, included in the gross amount of loans receivables
are HK$51,930,000 (2022: HK$60,930,000), net of accumulated
impairment allowances of HK$51,930,000 (2022: HK$44,930,000) due
from a group of borrowers including an individual (the “Borrower”) with
gross amount of HK$27,380,000 (2022: HK$27,380,000) and other
individuals (with personal guarantee from the Borrower) with gross
amount of HK$24,550,000 (2022: HK$33,550,000). For prior year, the
management assessed, taking into account the relevant information
from public domain, such balances became credit-impaired and has
taken various actions to recover the balances. The management has
also negotiated with certain borrowers to make settlements of the
loans and total settlements of HK$6,799,000 were received from the
borrowers during the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

B 75 [l 8

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3AMBLEEE

2023 2022 Change
2023F 20224 23
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 %
FET FAT FABL Eliid
(Restated)
(& =E51)
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue EE -0 27,194 37,081 (9,887) (26.7)
Gross profit EX 24,225 34,171 (9,946) (29.1)
Gross profit margin EFE 89.1% 92.2% (3.1)
Administrative expenses TR (47,074) (46,001) (1,073) (2.3)
Finance costs B & R AR (22,985) (20,485) (2,500) (12.2)
Profit before taxation BRI ATZ A 57,321 87,219 (29,898) (34.3)
Taxation credit (charge) R % () N/A
1,649 (696) 2,345 TEA
Profit for the year from continuing REFELEER
operations NEEZER 58,970 86,523 (27,553) (31.8)
Net profit margin F = 216.8% 233.3% (16.49)
Discontinued operation BRI EEEK
Profit for the year from discontinued M EH B & IE & %55
operation HEERF 4,602 29,924 (25,322) (84.6)
Profit for the year attributable to DB R EREA
owners of the Company FEZR 63,572 116,447 (52,875) (45.4)
HK cents HK cents HK cents Change %
AL AL Bl 2@HEst
(Restated)
(reE51)
Earnings per share BREF
From continuing and discontinued REFELERD
operations RIE TS
- Basic TN 3.75 12,50 8.75) (70.0)
- Diluted —#E 3.43 9.77 (6.34) (64.9)
From continuing operations REFELSEER
- Basic TN 3.48 9.29 (5.81) (62.5)
- Diluted —#E 3.19 7.51 (4.32) (57.5)
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations decreased by approximately 26.7% to approximately
HK$27,194,000 as compared with last year (2022) of approximately
HK$37,081,000 which was mainly due to decrease in rental income and
interest income from loan financing. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the
Group’s revenue from discontinued operation decreased by approximately
41.9% to approximately HK$15,912,000 as compared with last year (2022)
of approximately HK$27,394,000 which was mainly due to decrease in rental
income and management fee income.

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit from continuing operations of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2023 was approximately HK$24,225,000, representing a decrease
of approximately 29.1% or approximately HK$9,946,000 as compared to
approximately HK$34,171,000 in 2022. Gross profit margin for the year
reached approximately 89.1% (2022: approximately 92.2%), representing a
decrease of approximately 3.1% over last financial year.

Profit before Taxation

Profit before taxation from continuing operations of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2023 was approximately HK$57,321,000 as compared
with last year (2022) of approximately HK$87,219,000. Profit before taxation
from discontinued operation of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023
was approximately HK$8,651,000 as compared with last year (2022) of
approximately HK$36,278,000.

Administrative expenses from continuing operations of the Group increased
by approximately 2.3% to approximately HK$47,074,000 as compared with
last year (2022) of approximately HK$46,001,000. Administrative expenses
from discontinued operation of the Group increased by approximately 161.2%
to approximately HK$12,170,000 as compared with last year (2022) of
approximately HK$4,659,000.
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During the year, there was net loss on changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss from continuing operations amounting to
approximately HK$4,531,000 (2022: loss of approximately HK$16,126,000).
During the year ended 31 March 2023, there was net loss on changes
in fair value of financial assets from discontinued operation amounting to
approximately HK$5,392,000 (2022: loss of approximately HK$1,610,000).

Finance costs from continuing operations of the Group for the year were
approximately HK$22,985,000, representing an increase of approximately
HK$2,500,000 or approximately 12.2% from approximately HK$20,485,000
in 2022, of which approximately HK$6,833,000 (2022: approximately
HK$12,639,000) was the effective interest expense on convertible notes.

Profit Attributable to the Shareholders and Earnings per Share

The consolidated profit from continuing operations for the year ended 31
March 2023 was approximately HK$58,970,000 (2022: approximately
HK$86,523,000); while the consolidated profit from discontinued operation
was approximately HK$4,602,000 (2022: approximately HK$29,924,000).

Taxation credit from continuing operations for the year was approximately
HK$1,649,000 as compared with taxation charge of approximately
HK$696,000 last year (2022).

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing and discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 March 2023 were approximately HK3.75
cents and HK3.43 cents respectively (2022: approximately HK12.50 cents
and HK9.77 cents respectively). Basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations for the year were approximately HK3.48 cents and
HK3.19 cents respectively (2022: approximately HK9.29 cents and HK7.51
cents respectively).

RAFEN REFELEXEBRATAE
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2023, total assets of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$5,624,267,000 (2022: approximately HK$4,879,808,000). In terms of
financial resources as at 31 March 2023, the Group’s total bank balances
and cash was approximately HK$354,002,000 (2022: approximately
HK$82,099,000).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$1,871,919,000 (2022: approximately HK$1,662,307,000). The Group’s
gearing ratio, which is calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to
Shareholders’ equity, was approximately 0.6 (2022: approximately 0.6). As
at 31 March 2023, the Group’s current ratio was approximately 4.8 (2022:
approximately 3.8).

The Group financed its operations primarily with recurring cash flow generated
from its operations, proceeds raised from the capital market and bank
financing.

Set out below are the particulars of the outstanding convertible note of the
Company as at 31 March 2023:

2023 Convertible Note

Holder of the 2023 Convertible Note
2023F A MR ZEIFE A

Principal amount

RN k|

QOutstanding principal amount

REEREER

Interest rate
kS

Issue date

BITHH

Maturity date
ZIEA

Conversion price
HiE

During the year, no exercise of the conversion rights under the 2023
Convertible Note was made and the outstanding principal amount as at the
date of this annual report is HK$209,000,000.

For further information, please refer to “Material Acquisitions and Disposals”
section below.
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#/5,624,267,0008 7 (20224 : %)
4,879,808,000/70) « MIEIRFE © I
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T HEEEH) B354,002,000/8 7T (20224F = 4
82,099,000/ 7T) °

M2023F3A31H » AEEZETIEER
BEAA1,871,919,000/8 L (20224F + 4
1,662,307,000/7T) - AEE s EREEH &
(BIRITIEBERBEEREEEZAD IO B
0.6 (20224F : #90.6) > 72023F3H31H * A
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Placing of New Shares under General Mandate

On 30 March 2022, Kingston Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) and
the Company entered into a conditional placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement 1”) pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
place through the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, up to 186,280,000
new Shares at the placing price of HK$0.10 per placing share of the Company
(“Share(s)”) to not less than six (6) placees who and whose ultimate beneficial
owners are independent third parties. The placing Shares were allotted and
issued under the general mandate granted to the Directors by resolution of
the Shareholders passed at an annual general meeting of the Company held
on 13 August 2021 (the “Placing under General Mandate”).

On 20 April 2022, all conditions to the Placing Agreement 1 have been fulfiled
and the completion of the Placing under General Mandate took place. The
total number of issued Shares increased from 931,458,010 to 1,117,738,010,
and the conversion price of the convertible note issued to Goodco
Development Limited (“Goodco”, a substantial Shareholder) on 28 August
2019 has been adjusted from HK$0.25 to HK$0.24 per Share with effect from
20 April 2022.

As at 31 March 2023, the net proceeds from the Placing under General
Mandate (after deducting the placing commission and other relevant costs
and expenses) amounted to approximately HK$18,380,000 were fully utilized
as the Group’s general working capital.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcements dated 30
March 2022 and 20 April 2022 respectively.

Conversion of the Goodco Convertible Notes

On 25 July 2022, the Company received the conversion notices from Goodco,
the noteholder of three (3) convertible notes issued to Goodco on 11 May
2017, 26 September 2017 and 28 August 2019 respectively (the “Goodco
Convertible Notes”), requesting to exercise its conversion rights in full
attached to the Goodco Convertible Notes to convert a total principal amount
of HK$97,280,000 into an aggregate of 400,786,666 conversion Shares
(the “Conversion”). On the same date, upon completion of the Conversion,
400,786,666 Shares were issued and allotted to Goodco, and the total
number of issued Shares increased from 1,117,738,010 to 1,518,524,676.
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Placing of New Shares under Specific Mandate

On 27 July 2022, the Placing Agent and the Company entered into a
conditional placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement 2”) pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to place through the Placing Agent,
on a best effort basis, a maximum of up to 607,400,000 new Shares at the
placing price of HK$0.068 per placing Share to not less than six (6) placees
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent third parties. The
placing Shares were allotted and issued under the specific mandate granted
to the Directors by resolution of the Shareholders passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 14 September 2022 (the “Placing under
Specific Mandate”).

On 26 September 2022, all conditions to the Placing Agreement 2 have
been fulfilled and the completion of the Placing under Specific Mandate took
place. A total of 607,400,000 placing Shares have been successfully placed
by the Placing Agent to not less than six (6) places at the placing price of
HK$0.068 per placing Share pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Placing Agreement 2. The total number of issued Shares increased from
1,618,524,676 to 2,125,924,676.

As at 31 March 2023, the net proceeds from the Placing under Specific
Mandate (after deducting the placing commission and other relevant costs
and expenses) amounted to approximately HK$40,800,000 were fully utilized
as the Group’s general working capital.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcements dated 27
July 2022, 14 September 2022, 26 September 2022 and 29 November 2022
respectively, and circular dated 23 August 2022.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

(1)  Discloseable Transaction — Acquisition of Equity Linked Note
On 19 April 2022, Fanju Investments Limited (a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) acquired an equity linked note (the “ELN”)
which is linked to the shares of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 2388) for a principal amount of HK$20,000,000 (before
expenses). The coupon rate for the ELN was 15% per annum. Such
ELN was matured on 6 July 2022. The acquisition constituted a
discloseable transaction for the Company under Rule 14.06(2) of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Further information can be found in the joint announcement issued by
Easyknit and the Company dated 20 April 2022.
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(2) Discloseable Transaction — Disposals of Listed Securities

Goldchamp International Limited and Clever Wise Holdings Limited,
both being indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
disposed on-market a total of 3,800,000 shares of China Construction
Bank Corporation (stock code: 939) on 7 September 2022 and 9
September 2022 respectively for an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$18,050,000 (exclusive of expenses) (equivalent to
an average price of approximately HK$4.75 per disposed share). The
disposals constituted a discloseable transaction for the Company

under Rule 14.06(2) of the Listing Rules.

Further information can be found in the joint announcement issued by

Easyknit and the Company dated 13 September 2022.

(38)  Major Transaction — Disposal of Property in Singapore

On 4 November 2022, Grow Well Profits Limited (the “Vendor”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement (the “Option to Purchase 1”) with two independent third
parties (the “Purchasers”) in relation to the grant and exercise of the
option to purchase the property situated at 15 Ardmore Park #06-04,
Ardmore Park, Singapore 259959 (“Property 1”). Pursuant to the
Option to Purchase, the Vendor has agreed to sell, and the Purchasers
have agreed to purchase the Property at a sale price of $$12,500,000
(equivalently to approximately HK$68,150,000) subject to the terms
and conditions of the Option to Purchase 1 (the “Disposal 1”). The
Disposal 1 constituted a major transaction for the Company under Rule

14.06(3) of the Listing Rules.

Completion of the Disposal 1 shall be subject to or conditional upon (i)
the Company obtaining all requisite approval(s) from the Shareholders
in respect of the sale of Property 1 pursuant to the Listing Rules;
and (i) Easyknit obtaining all requisite approval(s) from the Easyknit
shareholders in respect of the sale of Property 1 pursuant to the Listing

Rules (if required).

Pursuant to Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules, in lieu of a resolution to
be passed at a general meeting of the Company, written approvals of
the Disposal 1 have been obtained from Easyknit, Goodco and Ace
Winner Investment Limited (both being wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Easyknit), a closely allied group of the Shareholders holding 27,000,000
Shares, 562,231,961 Shares and 484,538,175 Shares respectively,
together holding a total of 1,073,770,136 Shares, representing
approximately 50.50% of the total issued Shares as at the date of the
joint announcement issued by Easyknit and the Company dated 4

November 2022.
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During the year, all the conditions precedent to the Option to Purchase
1 have been fulfilled and completion of the Disposal 1 took place on 16
December 2022.

Further information can be found in the joint announcement issued
by Easyknit and the Company dated 4 November 2022 and the
Company’s circular dated 25 November 2022.

Very Substantial Acquisition, Connected Transaction and Issue of
2023 Convertible Note

On 30 November 2022 (after trading hours), Easyknit Properties
Holdings Limited (“Easyknit Properties”, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Easyknit) and the Company entered into four (4) respective
conditional sale and purchase agreements (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreements”) for, inter alia, the sale by Easyknit Properties and
purchase by the Company, the entire issued share capital of each
of On Channel International Limited, Day Glory Investment Limited,
Well Honest Investment Limited and Asia Million Investment Limited
(collectively, the “Sale Companies”) and the assignment of each of the
shareholder’s loan owing by the Sale Companies to Easyknit, for an
aggregate consideration of HK$340,000,000 (the “Consideration”).

Following the approval of the Easyknit shareholders and the
independent Shareholders at the special general meeting of Easyknit
and the Company held on 15 February 2023 respectively for the Sale
and Purchase Agreements and transactions contemplated thereunder,
all conditions precedent under the Sale and Purchase Agreements have
been fulfiled and completion took place on 20 February 2023. The net
purchase price of HK$214,000,000 (being the Consideration less the
total principal amount of outstanding bank loans) has been satisfied
as to HK$5,000,000 in cash, and the balance of HK$209,000,000 has
been satisfied by way of the issue of 5% per annum coupon rate 5-year
convertible note (the “2023 Convertible Note”) by the Company (as
issuer) to Goodco (as noteholder). A total of 1,971,698,113 conversion
Shares of par value HK$0.01 each at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.106 per conversion Share (subject to adjustments) shall be
allotted and issued to Goodco upon exercise of the conversion rights
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 2023 Convertible Note.
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Upon completion on 20 February 2023, each of the Sale Companies
became an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Eminence.

Further information can be found in the joint announcements dated 14
December 2022 and 20 February 2023 respectively, the Company’s
announcement dated 15 February 2023, and the joint circular dated 21
January 2023, issued by Easyknit and the Company.

Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2023, the total number of issued ordinary Share was
2,125,924,676 (31 March 2022: 931,458,010 Shares) and the nominal value
per Share was HK$0.01 (31 March 2022: HK$0.01).

For movement of the total number of issued Shares during the year, please
refer to the sections headed “Placing of New Shares under General Mandate”,
“Conversion of the Goodco Convertible Notes” and “Placing of New Shares
under Specific Mandate” above.

Charges of Assets

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had bank loans amounting to approximately
HK$1,871,919,000 (2022: approximately HK$1,662,307,000) which were
secured by the Group’s properties with an aggregate net book value of
approximately HK$1,297,441,000 (investment properties), approximately
HK$3,307,920,000 (properties held for development for sale) and
approximately HK$13,626,000 (life insurance policies) respectively (2022:
approximately HK$939,880,000, HK$3,020,650,000 and HK$12,914,000
respectively).

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars, Singapore dollars and Renminbi. During
the year, the Group did not have significant exposure to the fluctuation in
exchange rates and thus, no financial instrument for hedging purposes
was employed. The Group considered the risk of exposure to the currency
fluctuation to be minimal.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2023 (2022: nil).
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Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

Capital Expenditures

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group invested approximately
HK$562,000 (2022: approximately HK$1,013,000) in the purchase of
property, plant and equipment, and spent approximately HK$346,547,000
through acquisition of subsidiaries (2022: approximately HK$41,433,000) on
additions of investment properties, and approximately HK$2,839,000 (2022:
approximately HK$10,733,000) on additions of intangible assets. These
capital expenditures were financed from internal resources and funds from
previous fund raising activities of the Company.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had capital commitments in respect of
capital expenditures contracted for but not provided of approximately
HK$19,635,000 (2022: approximately HK$20,339,000).

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its
businesses and operations of the Group. During the year ended 31 March
2023, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group is embedded with a strong corporate culture for corporate
social responsibilities that forms an integral part of its business strategies.
Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to the long-
term sustainability of the environment in which it operates and support the
environmental protection initiatives to conserve the natural resources. The
Group understands global implications of climate change and is committed
to place a high priority on reducing the potential impact on the environment
by its business operations through building awareness of environmental
conservation, minimizing carbon footprints, employing green office initiatives
and enhancing environmental awareness among employees and other key
stakeholders. Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and to adopt effective measures in achieving efficient use of
resources, energy-saving and waste management. Details are disclosed in the
“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT” of this annual
report pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects are subject to a number of directly or indirectly business risks
and uncertainties. In general, volatility in the worldwide financial markets,
fluctuations in commodity prices and increasing energy costs, strong
inflationary pressures, potential interest rate hikes, political turbulence,
international trade competition and supply chain disruptions have all
contributed to the increased uncertainty of global economic prospects.

Climate change poses different risks to the Group’s businesses. Apart from
physical risks such as rising earth’s temperature and sea level, increasing
greenhouse gas and extreme weather condition, have already created
and will continue to create, resulting in a number of negative effects to
the environment and the Group’s assets, businesses and supply chain
management which may pose increased risks for the Group’s stakeholders
such as employees, customers and suppliers.

Faced with such daunting macro-economic and geo-political risks and
uncertainties, the Group devotes considerable effort to focus on developing
its core businesses and to explore new market opportunities in order to create
and realize long-term values to the Shareholders and its key stakeholders.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 38 employees (2022: 64). Staff
costs (including the Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$29,929,000 for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: approximately
HK$27,898,000). The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practice. The Group
has participated in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all eligible
employees of the Group in Hong Kong as required under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and has made contributions to the state-sponsored pension scheme
operated by the PRC government for the PRC employees. Other benefits to
employees include medical and dental scheme and insurance coverage.

PROSPECTS

The Group will continue focusing its efforts on the development of its
existing principal businesses, including property development, property
investment, investment in securities and others and loan financing business
while exploring other potential projects with a view to providing steady and
favourable returns to the Shareholders and bringing increased values to the
Group’s stakeholders.
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Despite the increasing uncertainties on global economic growth brought
by high inflation and interest rates and geo-political tensions, the Group
continuously and closely monitors the current situation and remains prudently
optimistic about the prospects of the property and securities markets in Hong
Kong and believes these markets will continue to grow over the longer term.

In line with its investment strategy and policy, the Company will continue
to identify appropriate investment and divestment opportunities during
this challenging period that fit the objective and investment criteria of the
Company, and will continue to seek attractive opportunities to replenish its
property portfolio as an ongoing business exercise. The Board would exercise
utmost caution so as to bring long-term benefits to the operating and financial
results to the Company in the foreseeable future.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining and developing a high standard
of corporate governance practices and procedures by integrating social and
environmental concerns into business operations of the Group, such that
the interests of the Shareholders and stakeholders as well as the long-term
development of the Company can be safeguarded.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. During the
year, the Company has fully complied with all the code provisions of the
CG Code, thereby ensuring that the Company is up to the requirements as
being diligent, accountable and professional, except for the deviations with
considered reasons disclosed in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT”
of this annual report.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LAI LAW KAU
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lai Law Kau, aged 62, is the chairman, chief executive officer, an
executive director (the “Director”), the chairman of the executive committee
(the “Executive Committee”) of the Company, and a member of the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company. Mr.
Lai has been involved in the textiles industry over 20 years and has extensive
experience in design, manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel. He
is a brother-in-law of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the deputy chairman and an executive
Director; and the vice president and an executive director of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1218) (“Easyknit”). Mr. Lai is also
an uncle of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (“Ms. Candy Koon”), the president and
chief executive officer, and an executive director of Easyknit. In August 2020,
he was appointed as an executive Director and a member of the Executive
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. In
October 2020, Mr. Lai was re-designated from an executive Director and a
member of the Executive Committee to the chairman, chief executive officer,
and the chairman of the Executive Committee.

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Deputy Chairman

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, aged 65, is the deputy chairman, an executive Director and
authorised representative of the Company, and a member of the Executive
Committee. She is also an executive director and vice president, and a
member of the executive committee of Easyknit. Ms. Lui has been involved in
the textiles industry for over 30 years and has extensive experience in design,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel. She serves as director
of various subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit. Ms. Lui was appointed
to the board of the Company (the “Board”) as an executive Director in 2003
and was appointed as deputy chairman in 2006. She is a sister-in-law of Mr.
Lai Law Kau, the chairman, chief executive officer, and an executive Director
of the Company. Ms. Lui is also the mother of Ms. Candy Koon.

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim, aged 80, is an executive Director and
authorised representative of the Company, and a member of the Executive
Committee. Mr. Kwong graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1965
and was admitted as Barrister-at-Law in the United Kingdom in 1970 and
in Hong Kong in 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years of experience in
the legal field. Mr. Kwong was appointed to the Board as an independent
non-executive Director in 2003, and was subsequently re-designated as
an executive Director in 2007. In 2007, he was appointed as chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Kwong also serves as director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. In October 2020, he was re-designated
from the chairman, chief executive officer and the chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company to an executive Director and a member of
the Executive Committee; and resigned as a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
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Biographical Details of Directors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. KAN KA HON

Mr. Kan Ka Hon, aged 72, is an independent non-executive Director since
2003. Mr. Kan is also the chairman and a member of the audit committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”), and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Science from The University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kan has over 30 years of
experience in accounting and finance. He was an independent non-executive
director of Victory City International Holdings Limited (stock code: 539).

MR. LAU SIN MING

Mr. Lau Sin Ming, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director since
2004. Mr. Lau is also the chairman and a member of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lau has over 30 years of experience in accounting and
auditing and is now working as a tax consultant.

MR. WU KOON YIN WELLY

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly, aged 38, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 2017. Mr. Wu is also the chairman and a member
of the Nomination Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee. He holds a Master in Finance degree from the
University of Essex and a Bachelor of Commerce degree in the University of
Sydney, Australia. Mr. Wu is the Vice President of Sales in FXCM, which is a
leading provider of online foreign exchange (FX) trading, CFD trading, spread
betting and related services. He has over 14 years of extensive experience in
the brokerage industry.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company is
dedicated to maintaining and developing a good standard of corporate
governance within a sensible and practical framework with key practices
and procedures by integrating social and environmental concerns into the
business operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The
Board firmly believes that the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence are essential for upholding the interests of the stakeholders and
maximizing the shareholders’ value. The Board is committed to excellence
in corporate governance. It is responsible for developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance as well as
complying with statutory and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

Corporate Culture

The Board and the management of the Group set the tone and shape
the corporate culture of people-centered, risk-prevention-oriented, legally
compliant and steady progress, which is underpinned by the core values of
acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly across all levels of the Group. The
Board leads the management in defining the purpose, values and strategic
direction of the Group and in fostering a corporate culture that is building a
long-term sustainable business models where customers, partners, investors,
suppliers and employees can benefit in the shared value of corporate
success. The desired culture is developed and reflected consistently in the
Group’s business operations, workplace policies and practices as well as
relationships with the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and
other stakeholders. The Board, together with the management of the Group,
create an organizational culture of maintaining and developing an effective
corporate governance framework with stringent corporate governance
practices and procedures through workforce engagement, employee retention
and training, robust financial reporting, whistleblowing, data privacy and anti-
corruption policies, and legal and regulatory compliance. The Group promotes
its culture continuously by setting out various policies, including but not limited
to, the whistleblowing policy, the anti-corruption policy and the Shareholders’
communication policy. Taking into account the corporate culture in a range
of contexts, the Board has reviewed and considered that the Group’s culture,
purpose, values and strategy are aligned as at the date of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Strategy

In order to achieve the Group’s principal objective of enhancing long-term
values and interests to the Shareholders and other stakeholders, the Group
focuses on achieving sustainable growth in both financial and environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) performance. The Group executes disciplined
management of revenue and profitability, margin and costs, capital and
investment return and other financing activities. The Group’s core competency
in operational excellence in its various properties projects is a key initiative
to capture continuing cost and revenue opportunities in its core businesses.
The “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and the “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS” in this annual report include discussions and analyses of the
Group’s performance, the basis on which the Board directs to generate the
Group’s core values in the longer term and delivers the Group’s corporate
culture, strategy and objectives. The Group is increasingly conscious on ESG
and focusing on supporting the global low-carbon and sustainable future
transition. Further details on the Group’s ESG initiatives and relationships with
its key stakeholders are disclosed in the “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
ESG

The Group recognizes the significance of sound ESG practices and is
committed to the environment protection, provision of quality workplace, and
serving our community. The ESG considerations are reflected in the policies,
procedures and processes that are relevant to the Group’s daily operations.
The Board plays a key role in ESG strategy and oversight in order to create
long-term growth and sustainable value for the Group’s stakeholders. The
Group had established a ESG governance structure to advise and oversee
the Group’s sustainability and ESG-related issues and risks. The ESG
management approach and policies are overseen by the Board. The Board
identifies and evaluates the material ESG issues related to the Group’s internal
and external stakeholders, including risks to the Group’s businesses. With the
ever-changing ESG-related risks and the growing prominence of ESG-related
issues to the Group’s stakeholders, the Group will uphold and strengthen its
risk management system in order to cope with the ever-changing ESG-related
risks and opportunities. The ESG policies and performance of the Group are
contained in the “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT”
of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company
has fully complied with the code provisions of the CG Code, thereby ensuring
that the Company is up to the requirements as being diligent, accountable and
professional except for the deviations with considered reasons disclosed herein.
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Code Provision C.2.1

The roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman
(the “Chairman”) and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year, Mr. Lai Law Kau (“Mr. Lai”)
served as the Chairman as well as the chief executive officer of the Company
(the “Chief Executive Officer”). This dual leadership role has been adopted
by the Company for a number of years and is deemed appropriate as it is
considered to be more efficient to have one single person to be the Chairman
as well as to discharge the executive functions of the Chief Executive Officer
thereby enabling more effective planning and better execution of long-term
strategies. In addition, the Board considers that a balance of power and
authority is adequately ensured by the operations and governance of the
Board which comprises experienced and high-calibre individuals, with half of
them being independent non-executive Directors. The Directors also meet
regularly to consider major matters affecting the Group’s operations. As
such, the Board believes that with the support of other executive Directors
and senior management of the Group, vesting the roles of both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer in Mr. Lai can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and boost effectiveness of its operations. The
Board will review the current structure when and as it becomes appropriate.

Code Provision D.2.5

The issuer should have an internal audit function.

Code provision D.2.5 of the CG Code stipulates that the Group should have
an internal audit function. The Group does not have an internal audit function.
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) and the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and considered that
the systems are effective and adequate, and there were no major issues
but areas for improvement have been identified by the Audit Committee and
appropriate measures have been taken. In addition, the Board has put in
place adequate measures to perform the internal control functions in relation
to the Group’s critical operational cycles including the establishment of
arrangements to apply financial reporting and internal control principles in
accounting and financial matters to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules
and relevant laws and regulations. The Board considers that the existing
organization structure and close supervision by the executive Directors and
senior management of the Group can maintain sufficient risk management
and internal control of the Group. As such, the Board was of the view that
there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business. An
annual review will be conducted.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Group is vested in the
Board, who assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
operational performances, interests of all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and that all issues are considered in an objective manner.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprised six (6) Directors, including three (3) executive
Directors and three (3) independent non-executive Directors.

Details of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Law Kau (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

Mr. Lai Law Kau and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, both being executive Directors, are
family members. Details of background and qualifications of all Directors are
set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS” of
this annual report. Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at
the annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) for a term of up to
three (3) years pursuant to bye-law 99 of the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”) and code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code.

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group. A balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors also
generates a strong independent element on the Board, which allows
independent and objective decision making process for the best interest of
the Group. The Company will review the composition of the Board regularly to
ensure the Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise, skills
and experience to meet the needs of the business development of the Group.
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Board Independence

The independent non-executive Directors bring to the Board independent
views and judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts, and enhance the Board’s balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The established governance framework and effective
mechanisms are kept under annual review by the independent Board to
ensure their effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has complied with
the requirements under Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules regarding
the appointment of at least three (3) independent non-executive Directors,
representing at least one-third of the Board and with at least one of them
having appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors was appointed for a
term of up to three (3) years and subject to retirement by rotation at the
AGM pursuant to the Bye-laws. The Company has received written annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Despite the fact that
each of Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Lau Sin Ming has served as an independent
non-executive Director on the Board for more than nine (9) years, the Board
is of the view that their duration of service will not interfere with their exercise
of independent judgement in carrying out their duties and responsibilities
as the independent non-executive Directors and believes that their valuable
knowledge and experience in the Group’s business will continually benefit the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Board considers
that all independent non-executive Directors have met the independence
guidelines of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Re-election of the retiring
Directors will be subject to a separate resolution at the AGM to be approved
by the Shareholders by way of poll.

The Chairman meets at least annually with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors in compliance with code
provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made on the recommendation of
the Nomination Committee to the Board and then by the approval of the
Shareholders in a general meeting of the Company. Pursuant to the Bye-
laws, all Directors, including those appointed for a specific term, are subject
to retirement by rotation at the AGM no later than the third AGM since the last
re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office only until the next following AGM after his or her appointment, or
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following AGM after his or her appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four (4) times a year with at least
fourteen (14) days’ prior notice being given to all the Directors to facilitate
fullest possible attendance. Additional meetings, if necessary, are arranged
and will be held as and when required. All Directors or Board Committee
members will receive the meeting agenda and accompanying Board or Board
Committee papers at least three (3) days before the date of the regular Board
or Board Committee meeting pursuant to code provision C.5.8 of the CG
Code; and may attend Board or Board Committee meeting either in person or
through electronic means of communication. A total of six (6) Board meetings
(including four (4) regular Board meetings) were held and written resolutions
of the Directors were circulated and passed for approving significant matters
during the year ended 31 March 20283. Pursuant to code provision C.5.5 of
the CG Code, draft and final versions of minutes are circulated to all Directors
or Board Committee members for comments and records respectively. The
attendance records of the Directors are set out as below section headed
“ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS”.

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the Group’s
overall strategies and policies, approval of business plans, evaluating the
performance of the Group and oversight of management. It is also responsible
for promoting the success of the Company and its businesses by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention
paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive
Directors and senior management of the Group of every business segment,
while reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board
are communicated to the management through executive Directors who have
attended the Board meetings.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly basis, with the Group’s
management information updates to give them aware of the Group’s affairs
and facilitates them to discharge their duties under the relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction
package to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the Group’s
operations, business and governance policies. In addition, our external legal
adviser meets with the new Director to ensure that he or she is fully aware
of the responsibilities as a Director under the Listing Rules, applicable legal
requirements and other regulatory requirements.

During the year, the Company provides regular updates on the business
performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are regularly
updated on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices.
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development (the “Continuous Professional Development”) regarding the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities, and the latest updates on rules and
regulations to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant in compliance
with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code. According to the training records

RIEREEATRZ FRIEXECT.41K - K
El%mi% $/A Fi%%@@%f

Eﬁiiﬁ,fﬁﬂﬁ’ﬂﬂﬁﬁ%)ﬁ ' LA%JE&E%E{EZv%DE%&
Kicgt - MERBEEAG2ZEERANRIA
PENBRATHEESELER - RIEMA

confirmations received from all the existing Directors, all Directors have
participated in the Continuous Professional Development for the year ended

31 March 2023 in the following manner:

HAEERHENSIITHERE %ﬁ@§$
MEE2023F3A31HILFEELHIFER
EBRE BRET

Name Type of Training

i S22 stid
(Note)
(#5%)

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lai Law Kau FREREE v

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu EERH%L L v

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim B RARNEE v

Independent Non-executive Directors BFHITES

Mr. Kan Ka Hon B e v

Mr. Lau Sin Ming 2EALAE v/

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly REELE v

Note: Htat -

Continuous Professional Development through attending briefings/seminars/webcast/ ﬁLﬁfﬁ%iﬁA/ﬁﬂuTﬁ/%@iﬁﬁﬁ/ g/ 4

conferences/forums/online training/reading relevant materials

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
as set out below:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance by monitoring of the corporate governance
practices and procedures; and maintenance of appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group to
ensure compliance with applicable rules and regulations;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(©) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” of the Company’s
annual report.
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board had performed the
abovementioned corporate governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of any claims against the Directors and officers of the
Group arising out of corporate activities of the Group.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Board Committees (the “Board Committees”)

The Board has established four (4) Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the executive committee of the Company (the “Executive
Committee”), to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities and
to oversee particular aspect of the Group’s affairs. Each Board Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties properly, and
holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws, its specific written terms of
reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of the Board Committees
meetings. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are reviewed and
updated regularly to ensure that they are aligned with prevailing governance
practices. Each Board Committee is required to report to the Board on its
decisions and recommendations, where appropriate. The terms of reference
of each of the Board Committees are available on the Company’s website.
The attendance records of each member of the Board Committees are set
out as below section headed “ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS”.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three (3) independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Kan Ka Hon (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly and held two (2)
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2023.

The chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Kan Ka Hon, possesses
appropriate professional qualifications in finance and accounting and meets
the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. No member of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company
during two (2) years after he ceases to be partner of the audit firm.
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The principal functions of the Audit Committee included:
- to oversee the relationship with the external auditor;

- to review the interim and annual financial statements before publication;

- to oversee the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems;

- to review the financial controls, and risk management and internal
control systems of the Company with particular regard to their
effectiveness;

- to perform the corporate governance functions;

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee members met
twice with senior management of the Group and the Company’s auditor to
review (i) the reports from the Company’s auditor, accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, management representation letters, and
management’s response in relation to the annual results for the year ended 31
March 2022 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2022; (i) the draft consolidated financial statements of the Group in relation to
the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2022 and recommended the same
to the Board for approval; and (i) the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems of the Company. The Audit Committee reviewed and
satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the Company’s auditor
and the audit fees including non-audit services provided by the Company’s
auditor to the Group and recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as the Company’s auditor for
the ensuing year at the forthcoming AGM.

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2022/2023 consolidated financial
statements in conjunction with the Company’s auditor. Based on this review
and discussions with senior management of the Group, the Audit Committee
was satisfied that the consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards, and fairly present the
Group’s financial position and results for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three (3) independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Sin Ming (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly, and one (1)
executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Law Kau.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee included:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group;

- to review and determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and senior
management of the Group with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and

- to review and approve the compensation arrangements in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment, or
dismissal or removal for misconduct to executive Directors and senior
management of the Group which shall be fair and not excessive.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Remuneration Committee held
one (1) meeting to review and approve the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Group by reference to factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere within the Group and in the market;
and to make recommendations to the Board on the Directors’ fee for
independent non-executive Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his
or her own remuneration. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee has discharged or will continue to discharge
its major roles to, among other things, approve the terms of the service
agreements of the Directors and senior management of the Group, make
recommendations to the Board regarding the remuneration and policies
of the Directors and senior management of the Group and to review and
recommend to the Board the remuneration package including salaries,
bonuses and incentive awards for the Directors and senior management of
the Group.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three (3) independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Lau Sin Ming, and one (1)
executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Law Kau.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee included:

- to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

- to identify and nominate suitable candidates of the Directors for the
Board’s consideration;

- to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

- to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the succession planning for the Chairman and the chief executive of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Nomination Committee held
one (1) meeting to review and make recommendations to the Board for
approval on (i) the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;
(iiy the nomination policy and the Board diversity policy of the Company; (i)
the terms of reference for the Nomination Committee; (iv) the assessment
of the independence of the existing independent non-executive Directors;
and (v) the nomination of the retiring Directors for retirement by rotation and
reappointment at the AGM. The Nomination Committee reviewed that the
current composition of the Board satisfied the Board diversity policy of the
Company which considered to be effective.

Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy

The nomination policy of the Company sets out the nomination procedures
for the nomination, appointment or re-appointment, and succession planning
of the Directors. It provides the key selection criteria and principles of the
Nomination Committee in making any such recommendations. In assessing
the suitability for directorship of any proposed candidate, factors which would
be considered by the Nomination Committee include, inter alia, reputation for
integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Group’s businesses and corporate strategies, commitment in
respect of time to discharge Director’s duties, diversity of the Board, and such
other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s businesses. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s consideration and
approval.
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The Board also adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieving Board diversity in the Company in order to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance standard. The
Company recognizes the importance of having a diverse team of Board
members, which is an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. The Nomination Committee has been delegated the authority
to review and assess the diversity of the Board and its skills and experience
by way of consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
industry experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will give consideration to the Board diversity policy when
identifying and selecting suitably qualified candidates. The policy has been
and will be reviewed annually taking into account the Group’s structure,
business models and corporate strategy to ensure its effectiveness.

The following charts show the diversity profile of the Board as at 31 March
2023:

Number of
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Remarks: M

ED — executive Director
INED - independent non-executive Director

Further information on the biography of the Directors is set out in the section
headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS” of this annual report.
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The Board currently has one (1) female Director out of six (6) Directors and is
committed to maintaining gender diversity at the Board level. The Company
has also taken, and continues to take steps to promote diversity at all levels
of its workforce. As at 31 March 2023, total workforce of the Company
comprised 52.63% female and 47.37% male. The Company will continue to
strive to achieve an appropriate balance of gender diversity in the workforce
as well as the Board according to business needs and future development so
as to develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board in the future.

Both the nomination policy and the Board diversity policy of the Company are
available on the Company’s website.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Law Kau (chairman of the Executive Committee), Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim.

It meets as and when required between regular Board meetings of the
Company, and operates as a general management committee under the
direct authority of the Board. Within the parameters of authority delegated by
the Board, the Executive Committee is committed to the implementation of
the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors the Group’s investment and
trading performance, funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte has been re-appointed as the external auditor of the Company at the
2022 AGM until the conclusion of the forthcoming 2023 AGM.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the audit and non-audit fees paid or
payable to the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte, were made up of an
annual audit fee of approximately HK$1,837,000 and tax compliance services
fee of approximately HK$22,000.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

Details of the attendance records of each individual Director at the Board
meetings (including regular Board meetings), the Board Committee meetings,
the AGM and the special general meeting of the Company (the “SGM”) held
during the year ended 31 March 2023 are as follows:

TERERBE
EEREABHANHERS

M2023F3A3IAIEFERN « ARIEREA
ARFIBRzESe R (BREEFEEEHE
#) EETLESSE  BEBEFAGRAR
AREFIAE((RRESIRG]) 2EEL
SFHBERFEBET

Attended/Eligible to attend
i/ REKEE

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board  Committee  Committee = Committee
Name meeting meeting meeting meeting AGM SGM
EXg® ERZEE® HNEEE REZEE RREF  RREM
nE g% g% 8% = N VN
Executive Directors HES
Mr. Lai Law Kau BEMEE 6/6* 2/2 11 11 17 2/2
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu ERkut 6/6  NATER N/A T iEF N/A T iE B 11 2/2
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRALE 6/6 NATEAE NATEAE NATEAR 11 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Mr. Kan Ka Hon b 6/6 2/2* 11 11 11 2/2
Mr. Lau Sin Ming Bzmss 6/6 2/2 1" 11 11 2/
Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly REBLE 6/6 2/2 11 1/1* 11 2/2

* Chairman of the Board/Board Committee(s)

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Mr. Lee Po Wing (“Mr. Lee”) who is
not an employee of the Company and is an external service provider of Paul
Kwong & Company, was engaged by the Company as the company secretary
of the Company; and Mr. Lee has confirmed that Mr. Lee has taken no less
than fifteen (15) hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim, the executive
Director is the contact person of Mr. Lee at the Company pursuant to code
provision C.6.1 of the CG Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board leads and maintains effective controls over the Group’s activities,
with executive responsibility for the running of the Group’s business being
delegated to management. The management provides all members of the
Board with monthly updates in order to give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects to enable
them to discharge their duties.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks and it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. The Board is also responsible for overseeing the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operating systems or in achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
annually by requiring all department managers to undergo a detailed self-risk
assessment process using a common risk management framework. It covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
on an annual basis. It also considers the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies and procedures
are in place to identify, assess, manage, control and report risks. Such
risks include strategic, credit, operational (including but not limited to,
administrative, system, human resources and reputation), market, liquidity,
legal and regulatory risks. Exposure to these risks is continuously monitored
by the Board through the Audit Committee. The internal control system
includes a defined management structure with specified limits of authority.
The Board has clearly defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each
division to ensure adequate checks and balances.

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard the Group’s
assets against unauthorized use of disposition, to ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for producing reliable financial information, and to
ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations and industry standard.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the year under
review, the Audit Committee and the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
that the systems are effective and adequate, and there were no major issues
but areas for improvement have been identified by the Audit Committee and
appropriate measures have been taken. The Board is of the view that the
enterprise risk management and internal control systems in place for the year
and up to the date of this annual report is effective and adequate. In addition,
the Board is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the Group’s business. An annual review will be conducted.
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Whistleblowing Policy

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
openness, probity and accountability. The Company encourages reporting
of concerns and actual or suspected misconduct or malpractice or unethical
acts by employees and/or external parties in any matters related to the
Company. In this regard, the Company has adopted the whistleblowing
policy which aims to provide reporting channels and guidance on reporting
possible improprieties and concerns, in confidence and anonymity. The
Board delegated the authority to the Audit Committee, which is responsible
for ensuring that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of any matters raised and appropriate follow-up actions are
taken.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Company takes a zero-tolerance approach towards all forms of bribery
and corruption and is committed to observing and upholding high standards
of business integrity, honesty, fairness, impartiality and transparency in all its
business dealings at all times. The Company has adopted the anti-corruption
policy which sets out the basic standard of conduct which applies to all
directors, officers and employees at all levels of the Group who must conduct
their activities in full compliance with this policy and all other applicable laws
relating to bribery or corruption.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the relevant accounting periods, and in compliance with all
the relevant statutory requirements, the Listing Rules requirements and
applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements of the
Group, the appropriate accounting policies are selected, applied consistently
and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
appropriate and reasonable judgment and estimates are made. The Directors
have prepared the financial statements for the reporting year on a going
concemn basis.

The Board is committed to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance and financial positions in all its
financial reporting and to ensure relevant publications in a timely manner.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement by the Company’s external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
is set out in the “INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT” on pages 88 to 93 of
this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for the Directors in their dealings
in the Company’s securities. Having made specific enquiries by the Company,
all the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2023. The Company has also adopted the Model Code to regulate the
dealings in the Company’s securities by its employees and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group who are likely to possess inside information relating
to the Company’s securities.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) which
sets out the guidelines for the Board and the Company to determine (i)
whether dividends are to be declared and paid, and (i) the level of dividend to
be paid to the Shareholders.

The Dividend Policy is to allow the Shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profit whilst to retain adequate cash reserves for its working
capital requirements and future growth.

In determining or recommending the frequency, amount and form of any
dividend in any financial year or period, the Board shall, inter alia, consider the
following factors:

(i) the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

(ii) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

(iii) the Group’s business strategies and operations, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-term growth

aspect of the business;

(iv)  the current and future liquidity position and capital requirements of the
Group;

(v) the interests of the Shareholders; and
(vi)  any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.
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Subject to the Bye-laws and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the Company may declare and pay dividends by way of
cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.

The Board may determine and pay to the Shareholders interim dividends as it
considers appropriate. Any final dividends declared by the Company must be
approved by the Shareholders at general meetings and must not exceed the
amount recommended by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Convening a SGM

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a SGM.
Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at the date of deposit carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company may send a written request to the Board
to request for a SGM. The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) and deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor,
Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (for the attention of Company Secretarial
Department).

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be responsible for the
expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at the General Meetings
The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting of the
Company:

(a) any number of the Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 Shareholders holding Shares in the Company.
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The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal or the business to be
dealt with at the general meeting must be deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong
Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be
responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance
with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once
valid documents are received.

Proposing a person for Election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for
election as a Director at a general meeting, the Shareholder should follow the
“RULES AND PROCEDURES GOVERNING THE ELECTION OF DIRECTORS”,
which can be found on the website of the Company.

Procedures for Putting Enquiries by the Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concemns to the Board
in writing via the following channel:

Company Secretarial Department
Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6
481-483 Castle Peak Road

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: info@eminencehk.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings
of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company considers that effective two-way communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The
Company has in place a Shareholders’ communication policy which aims to
promote an effective communication with the Shareholders, enabling them to
exercise their rights in a timely manner so that their views and concerns are
appropriately addressed, and to furnish the investment community with ready
and equal information about the Company.

The Company maintains a website at http://www.eminence-enterprise.com,
where up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with its
shareholders and in particular, through the AGMs or other general meetings
to communicate with the Shareholders. During the year, two (2) physical
SGMs were held on 14 September 2022 and 15 February 2023 respectively,
and the last AGM was held on 26 August 2022.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders’ communication policy during the year and considered it to be
effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had not made any
changes to its Bye-laws. A consolidated version of the memorandum of
association of the Company and the Bye-laws are available on the respective
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present this annual report
together with the audited financial statements of Eminence Enterprise Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are property development, property
investment, investment in securities and others and loan financing and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
on pages 94 to 95 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) including an analysis of the Group’s performance,
material events that have occurred since the year end date and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business are contained in this
Directors’ report and the preceding “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” set out on pages 5 to 29 of
this annual report.

Details of the Group’s financial risk management are disclosed in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, relevant details of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance policies and performance are reported in the “ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT” set out on pages 69 to 87 of this

annual report.

The Directors were not aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group during the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five (5) financial years is set out on page 233 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The board of the Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 March 2023 by
independent firms of qualified professional property valuers and the gain/loss
arising from changes in fair value of investment properties was recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income. Details of these are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on
pages 98 to 99 of this annual report and note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
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31 March 2023
2023%3H31H

31 March 2022
202243 A31H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Contributed surplus A BER 438,102 438,102
Accumulated profit REFAIE 174,722 270,359
612,824 708,461

Under the Companies Act, the contributed surplus shall not be distributed to
the Shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

() the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realizable value of the company’s assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$1,322,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Law Kau (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 30 to 31 of this annual report.

Pursuant to bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws and the Corporate Governance
Code, Mr. Lai Law Kau (“Mr. Lai”), an executive Director and Mr. Wu Koon
Yin Welly (“Mr. Wu”), an independent non-executive Director, shall retire from
office by rotation at the AGM. Mr. Lai and Mr. Wu, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in information of
the Directors since the date of the Company’s latest published 2022 annual
report and up to the date of this report are set out below:

1) According to the Company’s policies and practices, the remuneration
packages of the Directors were reviewed by the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”). The
annual emolument of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (“Ms. Lui”) was reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, and revised
from HK$3,900,000 to HK$4,080,000 with effect from 1 April 2023.

2) There were new directorships and change to the directorship of each
of Ms. Lui and Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim in certain members of
the Group.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive Directors
as regards their independence to the Company for the year ended 31 March
2023. Despite the fact that each of Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Lau Sin Ming
has served as an independent non-executive Director on the Board for more
than nine (9) years, the Board is of the view that their duration of service will
not interfere with their exercise of independent judgement in carrying out their
duties and responsibilities as the independent non-executive Directors and
believes that their valuable knowledge and experience in the Group’s business
will continually benefit the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
Accordingly, the Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the AGM for a
term of up to three (3) years under bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one (1) year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED TRANSACTION”
below, there was no contract of significance relating to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contracts of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisting
during or at the end of the year, and there was no contracts of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company (the “Chief Executive”) had any interests or short positions in the
shares of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were
required to be (i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests which the
Directors or the Chief Executive were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or (i) entered in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or (i) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, so far as is known to the Directors and the Chief
Executive, the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations
other than a Director or the Chief Executive, in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares

EERFEITHAEBRRND - HER®D
RfERE 2 EE

2028F3A31H  EFXARNAEZITH
AB(EETHABDBER AR A S E AR
AEEE (EE R EFRBMERD((#H R
BB EXVEB) AR ERG ([ ]) - 48
B M EREE R A (VREE S LA EED)
EXVEPE 787 FIGE B E AN A KB AT
Firgmsiok s (RIERSRERE S RIEK
Bl 2 ZEBENEBREBITHRABRE (EX
BEREZEZR) AR FREBHFLH
EGAIEI526REBIAGFTE 2 EMAK
HemaoRE - SRR TS LR A
(TERRADMESETAHEZ EMETAEZES
ETBRFRHNEETRI(EESFA AN
EARRNB KRB FAHESESAR -

FTERRARD RAABERD 2B

202343A31H  MEEREETHAE
BT EEREZITHRABRINZ AL0E
E RN BB R B A T = IR E
SEANARA RIRE S K HE 5] 533618 ATF
B2 ERMA

REBRROREERD 2FA

Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying the total
Name of substantial Shareholder Notes  Capacity Shares held Shares held Total  issued Shares
HE#T
BELER HERE Rz
TERRER M & ROEE ReEE @5t BOBEDL
Ace Winner Investment Limited (‘Ace Winner”) (i) and (iv) ~ Beneficial owner 484,538,175 - 484,538,175 22.79%
ERREFRLA(ER]) ki E&mEEA
Goodco Development Limited (“Goodco”) (i, (i) Beneficial owner
and (iv) 562,231,961  1,971,698,113  2,633,930,074 119.19%
EFERERAA(ER) i, Mk E&HEEA
Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited (i, i) Interest of controlled corporation
and (iv) 562,231,961  1,971,698,113  2,633,930,074 119.19%

0, ki) ZEHEEZ#EE
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Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying the total
Name of substantial Shareholder Notes  Capacity Shares held Shares held Total  issued Shares
RERST
BELER BEAH RipEHz
TERREB Mz 5 B RAEE st RER
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (i), (i) Beneficial owner
(“Easyknit’) and (iv) 27,000,000 - 27,000,000 1.27%
KEAREERRAA(XE]) i, @k ERBEBA
Interest of controlled corporation 1,070,157,506  1,971,698,113  3,041,855,619 143.08%
REHEE s
1,097,1567,506  1,971,698,113  3,068,855,619 144.35%
Magical Profits Limited (iiy and (iv) Interest of controlled corporation 1,097,157,506  1,971,698,113  3,068,855,619 144.35%
ipkiy)  FESEEZER
Accumulate More Profits Limited (i) Interest of controlled corporation 1,097,157,506  1,971,698,113  3,068,855,619 144.35%
REHEE R
The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited (i) Interest of controlled corporation 1,097,157,506  1,971,698,113  3,068,855,619 144.35%
BRBRETERAA REHEE R
Winterbotham Holdings Limited (i) Interest of controlled corporation 1,097,167,506  1,971,698,113  3,068,855,619 144.35%
REHEE R
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper (i) Interest of controlled corporation 1,097,1567,506  1,971,698,113  3,068,855,619 144.35%
REHEE R
Notes: Mt -
0} In the 1,070,157,506 Shares, 484,538,175 Shares, 23,387,370 Shares and (i) #1,070,157,506f% & 5+ - 484,638,175* 1% i&

562,231,961 Shares were registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Ace

Winner, Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco (which was wholly-owned by Easyknit

Properties Holdings Limited) respectively, all of which were wholly-owned subsidiaries

of Easyknit. 27,000,000 Shares were also beneficially owned by Easyknit.

(ii) The 1,971,698,113 underlying Shares refers to the conversion Shares (subject to (ii)

adjustments) to be issued upon full conversion of the convertible note held by Goodco

issued by the Company on 20 February 2023.

%+ 23,387,370 B 1 }.562,231,961 B i 15 2
BIILAZEZE ~ Landmark Profits Limited &£ (f
Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited 2 & #4) 2
FEEZRITAEESEA SRR AKE
22 EMBAR  M27,000,0008% i% 15 78 B 2k
EEHER -

1,971,698, 113/ 18 EA A% 17 /22 81 720234 2
R20R BT FESHEE 2 IRREEEHE SR
& 18 FEAT RV AR 15 (] T %) -
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(iii) Magical Profits Limited, which was interested in approximately 39.43% of the issued
share capital of Easyknit, was wholly-owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which
in turn was wholly-owned by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited as trustee of
The Magical 2000 Trust. The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited was owned as to
75% by Winterbotham Holdings Limited, which in turn was owned as to approximately
99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper.

(iv) Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a Director, was also a director of Ace Winner, Goodco, Easyknit
Properties Holdings Limited, Easyknit, and Magical Profits Limited.

* According to Form 2 filed on 2 July 2021 by Ace Winner, on 25 June 2021,
300,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 14.11% equity interest of the total
issued Shares, were pledged to Hang Seng Bank Limited.

Apart from Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, no Director was also a director or an employee
of any substantial Shareholders.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2023, the Company had not been
notified by any persons who had interests in the Shares and underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted and approved by the then Shareholders for a period of ten (10) years
commencing on the adoption date whereby the Board, may at its discretion,
grant share options (the “Share Options”) to any eligible participant (the
“Participant(s)”) to subscribe for the Shares subject to the terms and
conditions as stipulated in the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option
Scheme was expired on 28 June 2022.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At the AGM held on 23 July 2020, the scheme mandate limit for the Share
Option Scheme was refreshed to allow the Company to issue a maximum of
93,145,801 new Shares under the Share Option Scheme to the Participants.
After such refreshment of scheme mandate limit, during the year ended
31 March 2023, the Company did not grant any Share Options to any
Participants.

(i) Magical Profits Limited 7k & B 217 R& A
H#)39.43% 2 ## + H B Accumulate More
Profits Limited2 & #7 - fAccumulate More
Profits Limited! i £ & The Magical 2000 Trust
ZEFAAREEREXERAANEERE -
Winterbotham Holdings Limited# & 18 #% 1=
SEERRREET5% .2 # 2% + i Christopher
Geoffrey Douglas Hooper3t 4 7 Winterbotham
Holdings Limited# A #799.99% 2 # 7 °

(iv) BEFEERLZEINMAESL - £5 » Easyknit
Properties Holdings Limited * 7k % & Magical
Profits Limited 2 # 5 ©

* RIFELR2021F7 A2BRIMHEK2 - B
2021465250 + 300,000,0008% B 15 (15 B %17
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7o
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BRI UL EEE SN - 02023F3HA31H @ #iE
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18, was granted
any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any
other body corporate nor had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Interests of the Directors in competing businesses as at 31 March 2023
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as

follows:

Name of Director Name of company

Nature of competing business
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Nature of interest

EEMA NEEE REEBMEE ERME

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Easyknit Property development, property Director of Easyknit and
investment, investment in securities substantial shareholder
and others and loan financing of Easyknit

EE%LZ L KE MEER - MERE  FHhHEM KBEFNKBEFEZRER

KERET®E
As the Board is independent of the board of Easyknit and maintains three

(8) independent non-executive Directors, the Group operates its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of Easyknit.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Very Substantial Acquisition, Connected Transaction and Issue of
2023 Convertible Note

On 30 November 2022 (after trading hours), Easyknit Properties Holdings
Limited (“Easyknit Properties”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit) and
the Company entered into four (4) respective conditional sale and purchase
agreements (“Sale and Purchase Agreements”) for, inter alia, the sale by
Easyknit Properties and purchase by the Company, the entire issued share
capital of each of On Channel International Limited, Day Glory Investment
Limited, Well Honest Investment Limited and Asia Million Investment Limited
(collectively, the “Sale Companies”) and the assignment of each of the
shareholder’s loan owing by the Sale Companies to Easyknit, for an aggregate
consideration of HK$340,000,000 (the “Consideration”).

Following the approval of the Easyknit shareholders and the independent
Shareholders at the special general meeting of Easyknit and the Company
held on 15 February 2023 respectively for the Sale and Purchase Agreements
and transactions contemplated thereunder, all conditions precedent under
the Sale and Purchase Agreements have been fulfilled and completion took
place on 20 February 2023. The net purchase price of HK$214,000,000
(being the Consideration less the total principal amount of outstanding bank
loans) has been satisfied as to HK$5,000,000 in cash, and the balance of
HK$209,000,000 has been satisfied by way of the issue of 5% per annum
coupon rate 5-year convertible note (the “2023 Convertible Note”) by the
Company (as issuer) to Goodco (as noteholder). A total of 1,971,698,113
conversion Shares of par value HK$0.01 each have been subscribed for
cash at an initial conversion price of HK$0.106 per conversion Share (subject
to adjustments) shall be allotted and issued to Goodco upon exercise of
the conversion rights pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 2023
Convertible Note.

Upon completion on 20 February 2023, each of the Sale Companies became
an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit and an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Eminence.

Further information can be found in the joint announcements dated 14
December 2022 and 20 February 2023 respectively, the Company’s
announcement dated 15 February 2023, and the joint circular dated 21
January 2023, issued by Easyknit and the Company.

Save as abovementioned connected transaction, the Company or its
subsidiaries did not have any material connected transactions or continuing
connected transaction which were subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 March 2023.

FEEANBEE  BERSR¥1720237
BREE
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Properties Holdings Limited([Easyknit
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which were undertaken in the normal course
of business are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
For those related party transactions that constitutes connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be) (other than those
described in the above section headed “CONNECTED TRANSACTION”)
under the Listing Rules, these transactions are exempt from reporting,
annual review, announcement and the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 178 of the Bye-laws provides that, among others, every Director and
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices and related matters provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of them.
In this connection, the Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company during the
year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five (5) largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 76.86% of the Group’s purchases and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 31.22% of the Group’s purchases.

The five (5) largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately
15.60% of the Group’s revenue and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 3.50% of the Group’s revenue.

None of the Directors and their respective close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s issued Shares) have any interest in the five (5) largest
suppliers or customers of the Group.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group’s investment properties in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China have been carried out by Vigers
Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
property valuers. For the investment properties in Singapore, the valuation
as at 31 March 2023 was carried out by Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte
Ltd, another independent firm of qualified professional property valuers. Their
valuations were based on residual value approach, income capitalisation
approach and/or direct comparison method as the valuation methodologies
and were used in preparing 2022/2023 final results. The Group’s investment
properties were valued at approximately HK$1,707,555,000 (2022:
approximately HK$1,367,563,000), an increase over 2022 after adjusted
for the exchange adjustments and disposals of investment properties. The
increase in fair value of approximately HK$87,831,000 was recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year. Development properties and non-investment properties of the
Group were stated at cost less impairment, if any, in these consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its businesses and operations.
Through internal control systems and procedures, the Company has taken
reasonable steps to ensure that significant risks are monitored and do not
adversely affect the Group’s operations and performances. The relevant risks
are managed on an ongoing basis. A non-exhaustive list of principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group is set out below.

Market Risk

The Group’s revenue is principally derived from Hong Kong. The conditions of
the economy as a whole and the property market may have significant impact
to the Group’s financial results and conditions.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s operations require compliance with local and overseas
laws (including those of the PRC, Bermuda, Singapore and the British
Virgin Islands) and regulations, including but not limited to property sale,
management and construction as well as companies and securities laws.
The Group has constantly monitored its compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIPS

The Group adheres to the standards of business ethics, this underpins how
we conduct business with our customers, suppliers and contractors.

Employees

The Group value its employees who are the Group’s most important assets.
Staff are rewarded with competitive remuneration packages and benefits. The
Group is committed to fostering a conducive, harmonious and discrimination-
free working environment.

Y E LY
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Occupational health and safety is the top priority across the Group’s
operations. Safety guidelines are established to safeguard the employees
from any occupational hazards.

Customers

The Group strive to provide high quality and reliable services to its customers.
The privacy of the Group’s customers are well protected through a privacy
policy. Any complaints from customers are handled and investigated in a
thorough and efficient manner.

Suppliers

The Group is committed to forging collaborative partnership with its suppliers
and have a database of approved suppliers and vendors who are assessed
on a regular basis.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy of employees of the Group is set up by the executive
Directors on the basis of employee performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice.

The emolument of the Directors is determined by the Board after review and
on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
factors such as the time commitment and responsibilities of Directors, the
Company'’s performance and the prevailing market practice.

The Group had adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible participants. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in the section headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in Bermuda where
the Company is incorporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as required
under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2023 and as at the date
of this annual report.

SIWEERAT 2023 F3R

ot

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

BEREERZ2IAEELENEEZTHE -
AEEHELREESINREETIRRBER
=,

'F
AEEBNABZPRHEEEIENRE - &
SEEPMLBXILBRRORE - A&
BT EE2ELARBEREIERPHIRF -

I
AEBEBNBHEREIAEBHER I
RERAREHRETERE - EHFMEMH
R RETHRR -

B

AEBEBZHFHBETARTERRER
ZRB - EHBREBRITERNBIIMmSIE -

EEVHHELBFMEZE R RERRK
MEESET  HTEZERINEZMERME
MEBE  ARBZFERRITHR

REBDRMB LSS ERYESERA
A2 EE 7 RZE) - BREBIFEAR L
X[t 8 —5 -

BEREE

AR I R MBS R R B
AR RGEM AL B A E N A RA R I &
LB ERIBRENIRS -

BREARBDRLHAREMGZENIRES
FrEl - RRTREE2023F3A31B LFE
ERAFREAERR ETRAERGER
BRARR R B BTN 25%H) B 52 R IF K

= °

63



64

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2023

Directors’ Report

EEERE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in compliance
with the requirement of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The principal responsibilities of
the Audit Committee is to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The Audit
Committee comprises all three (3) independent non-executive Directors as
at 31 March 2023. The Audit Committee has met in person or by electronic
means the Group’s auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements, and risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” from pages 32 to 51 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company (or “we” or “our”) has prepared an annual environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) report for 2022/2023 in compliance with
the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. This
section highlights the ESG policies and performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2023. The Company is committed to addressing
sustainability issues and managing ESG risks through prudent business
planning and operational implementation. The Board, assisted by the
management of the Company, has the overall responsibility to review policies,
oversee sustainability issues and address ESG-related risks. Through this
internal sustainability governance framework, the Board has developed and
formulated relevant policies which better align with the Group’s business
goals and objectives.

Discussion on Environmental Performance

The Group is devoted to the integration of corporate social responsibility
(“CSR”) into our day-to-day business operations to create long-term positive
value and contribute to a better future for the community while minimization of
its operational environmental footprint is resulted. We have focused our efforts
on environmental stewardship, energy efficiency, resource management
and cultivation of environmental awareness amongst employees. We remain
attentive to different energy-saving opportunities and adopt hardware
upgrades to improve our energy efficiency with a comprehensive approach
to waste and resource management, our goal is to create a paperless office
to minimize our paper usage. Apart from undertaking hardware upgrades
to further enhance the energy performance of existing infrastructure, we
apply new technologies to our new properties, including the installation of
low emissivity or double-glazed windows which help reduce heat loss and
optimise thermal insulation. Furthermore, we work hard to ensure waste
materials and other useful resources are reused, recovered and recycled
whenever possible before the consideration of landfill disposal.
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Account of Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

Employees

We make great efforts to create a supportive, inclusive, caring and safe
work environment which facilitates professional development and protects
the health, safety and well-being of our employees. We emphasize on equal
opportunities, and a fair and transparent recruitment process. We reward
our employees with attractive remuneration packages and benefits, which
reference industry standards, and are commensurate with individual merit,
work experience, qualifications and job duties. Tailor-made functional training
programmes were arranged for our employees to keep abreast with the latest
professional knowledge and skills. Additionally, we have set safety guidelines
and systems to protect our employees and minimize potential occupational
hazards across our operations.

To ensure all staff understand their responsibility to uphold the Group’s ethical
standards, the employees handbook of the Group specifies clear expectations
for professional conduct. All relevant anti-discrimination and personal data
protection regulations are strictly observed.

In support of continual learning and development, the Group encourages
our employees to pursue different interests and offers internal and external
opportunities to realise their full potential. We continue to provide internal and
external training opportunities such as seminars and training courses in order
to strengthen our workforce and stock our talent pipeline.

We ensure our work environments are free from any potential occupational
health and safety hazards, our internal safety guidelines were formulated
in accordance with the requirements set out by the Labour Department to
minimise risks. During the year, we fully complied with all relevant health and
safety regulations and we are pleased to report that there were no work-
related fatalities or lost days due to work injury.

Customers, Suppliers and Subcontractors

The Group has put in place stringent mechanisms and procedures on quality
assurance, customer service, health and safety requirements, procurement
procedures, and regulatory compliance. Our management approach stresses
control measures to ensure our stringent requirements are met, in cases
where quality concerns may arise, a thorough investigation will be carried out
and corrective actions will be promptly implemented. A complaint-handling
mechanism has been formulated to ensure we handle customer complaints in
a consistent and timely manner.

To promote corporate responsibility along our supply chain, we give
performance to businesses who share our sustainable practices and ethical
standards. Regular supplier assessments and audits are conducted to ensure
their compliance with our requirements.
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Operating as a responsible business operator, we strictly adhere to all
relevant data privacy regulations and maintain a high level of business ethics
and product responsibility. The Group’s privacy policy is established in
accordance with local regulations to ensure that all personal data are handled
in strict confidence.

Compliance Status with Relevant Laws and Regulations that have a
Significant Impact on the Business

During the year, there were no reported cases of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have had a significant impact on the
Group’s businesses regarding the environment, employment, occupational
health and safety, labour standards, product responsibility, anti-corruption,
data privacy and intellectual properties.

The ESG policies and performance of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2023 are set out in the “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” from pages 69 to 87 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

1. Discloseable Transaction — Acquisitions of Listed Securities
Gainever Corporation Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) acquired in a series of transactions for a total of
1,346,000 Easyknit shares on the open market during the period from
4 April 2023 to 12 April 2023 (both dates inclusive) at an aggregate
purchase price of HK$4,657,220 (excluding stamp duty and related
expenses) (equivalent to an average purchase price of approximately
HK$3.46 per Easyknit share. Immediately prior to the acquisitions, the
Group did not hold any Easyknit shares. Following the acquisitions,
the Group holds a total of 1,346,000 Easyknit shares, representing
approximately 1.82% of the total issued share capital of Easyknit
as at the date of this annual report. The acquisitions constituted a
discloseable transaction for the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 12 April 2023.

2. Very Substantial Disposal — Disposal of Property in Singapore
On 14 April 2023, the Vendor entered into an agreement (the “Option
to Purchase 2”) with an independent third party (the “Purchaser 2”) in
relation to the grant and exercise of the option to purchase the property
situated at 15 Ardmore Park #04-03, Ardmore Park, Singapore 259959
(“Property 2”). Pursuant to the Option to Purchase 2, the Vendor has
agreed to sell, and the Purchaser 2 has agreed to purchase Property
2 at a sale price of $S$13,008,888 (equivalently to approximately
HK$76,752,400) subject to the terms and conditions of the Option
to Purchase 2 (the “Disposal 2”). The Disposal 2 constituted a very
substantial disposal for the Company under Rule 14.06(4) of the Listing
Rules.
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Completion of the Disposal 2 shall be subject to or conditional upon (i)
the Company obtaining all requisite approval(s) from the Shareholders
in respect of the sale of Property 2 pursuant to the Listing Rules; and (i)
Easyknit obtaining all requisite approval(s) from the Easyknit shareholders in
respect of the sale of Property 2 pursuant to the Listing Rules (if required).

Subject to the satisfaction of conditions precedent, completion
of the Disposal 2 shall take place on 7 July 2023, being twelve
(12) weeks from the date on which the option under the Option to
Purchase 2 is accepted. In the event the Easyknit shareholders’ and
the Shareholders’ approvals are not obtained by 7 July 2023, the
completion shall be extended for a further four (4) weeks from the
date of the completion to 4 August 2023 and in the event approvals in
the aforesaid are not obtained by such extended date, the Option to
Purchase 2 shall be cancelled and the option money and the deposit
(that is, five per cent. (5%) of the sale price) paid by Purchaser 2 shall
be reimbursed to Purchaser 2 without any interest thereon. Purchaser
2 shall not claim any loss or damage against the Vendor for the
cancellation of the Option to Purchase 2.

The Disposal 2 was approved by the Shareholders at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2023.

Further information can be found in the joint announcement dated
14 April 2023 issued by Easyknit and the Company, the Company’s
announcement dated 31 May 2023, and the joint circular dated 8 May
2023 issued by Easyknit and the Company.

Proposed Capital Reorganisation and Change in Board Lot Size

On 29 May 2023, the Company announced to implement the capital
reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”) which involved (i) the
consolidation of every forty (40) issued and unissued existing shares
of the Company (the “Existing Share(s)”) of par value of HK$0.01
each into one (1) consolidated share (the “Consolidated Share(s)”)
of par value of HK$0.40 each (the “Share Consolidation”); (i)
immediately upon the Share Consolidation becoming effective, the
capital reduction (the “Capital Reduction”), pursuant to which the
par value of each issued Consolidated Share would be reduced from
HK$0.40 to HK$0.01 by (a) eliminating any fraction of a Consolidated
Share in the issued share capital of the Company arising from the
Share Consolidation in order to round down the total number of the
Consolidated Shares to a whole number; and (b) cancelling HK$0.39 of
the paid-up capital of the Company on each issued Consolidated Share
so that each issued new Share (the “New Share(s)”) will be treated as
one (1) fully paid-up share of par value of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company immediately following the Capital Reduction
and the credit arising from the Capital Reduction will be transferred to
the contributed surplus account of the Company within the meaning
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda; and (iii) immediately following
the Share Consolidation and the Capital Reduction becoming effective,
each authorised but unissued Consolidated Share (including those
authorised unissued Consolidated Shares arising from the Capital
Reduction) would be subdivided into forty (40) authorised but unissued
New Shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.
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On 29 May 2023, the Company also announced to change the board
lot size for trading on the Stock Exchange from 20,000 Existing Shares
to 5,000 New Shares conditional upon the Capital Reorganisation
becoming effective.

The Capital Reorganisation will be subject to the passing of a special
resolution by the Shareholders at a special general meeting of the
Company to be held on 17 July 2023.

As at the date of this annual report, none of the conditions of the
Capital Reorganisation had been fulfilled.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcements
dated 29 May 2023 and 16 June 2023, and circular dated 23 June
2023 respectively.

4. Placing of New Shares under Specific Mandate

On 29 May 2023, the Placing Agent and the Company entered into a
conditional placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement 3”) pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to place through the
Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, a maximum of up to 50,000,000
placing Shares at the placing price of HK$0.50 per placing Share
(assuming the Capital Reorganisation has become effective) to not
less than six (6) places who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are
independent third parties. Subject to the passing of a resolution by
the Shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company to be
held on 17 July 2023, the placing Shares would be allotted and issued
under the specific mandate to be granted to the Directors.

As at the date of this annual report, none of the conditions to the
Placing Agreement 3 had been fulfilled.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcements
dated 29 May 2023 and 16 June 2023, and circular dated 23 June
2023 respectively.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will be proposed at the AGM
to re-appoint them as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Lai Law Kau
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023

In case of any inconsistency, the English version of this annual report shall
prevail over the Chinese version.
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OVERVIEW

This annual environmental, social and governance (‘ESG”) report (the “ESG
Report”) provides an overview of the management approach as well as
sustainability initiatives and performance of Eminence Enterprise Limited
(“‘Eminence”, “we” or “our”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the reporting period from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 (the “Year”).
The ESG Report was reviewed and approved by the board of directors of

Eminence (the “Board”) on 28 June 2023.

1.  REPORTING STANDARD AND SCOPE

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the mandatory
disclosure requirements and “comply or explain” code provisions of the
ESG Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEX”).

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting scope for the Year remains
the same as last year. The scope of the ESG Report covers our
principal business operations, including industrial, commercial and
residential properties in Hong Kong and industrial properties in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

For a full list of ESG aspects, respective key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) and their references within the ESG Report, an ESG Guide
content index is included on pages 79 to 87 of the ESG Report.
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Reporting Principles fE R R Al

Materiality = 24 Quantitative £ 1t

Material ESG issues were identified and prioritized with the  The Group accounted for and disclosed KPIs in

Group’s stakeholders for disclosure. quantitative terms for proper evaluation of effectiveness of
ESG policies and actions.
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Consistency — &% Balance ¥

The Group adopted consistent measurement methodology  The ESG Report aimed to disclose data in an objective
to achieve meaningful comparison of ESG performances  way in order to provide the Group’s stakeholders with a
over time whenever practicable with updates disclosure. balanced overview of the overall ESG performances.
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B HeREAEMBEITETEESHLEEARERZ BRFEMERHEERIRE L8 REQERN T EE
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Materiality Assessment BEEMTE
In the preparation for this ESG Report, the Group conducted a ERERE LG REBWMER - K
materiality review to identify and determine material ESG issues for SEEBAT=QErBRiEZETE
disclosure by following a three (3)-step process as below: ZUHERE  UHAFRETERRENR
ROHEREREER :
o - A=-“'\ |
Step 1 Identification & 5
%" — -/LJF e Reviewed ESG disclosures of industry peers to identify common disclosure practices.

o EHREATNRE - HERERGKRESIR - UEERNREED -

v
Prioritization & ,X #t 5
Step 2 e Consolidated and analyzed the results of the peer benchmarking exercise to develop a
o5 — b prioritized list of ESG issues of varying materiality levels for confirmation.
- o IRAWHMEAERARNEEARNER - UHIE—RITRAEZHRANNERR - L RER
FEEAERBET AERER o
v
Validation #52
Step 3 ““

&=k e Confirmed a finalized list of material ESG issues and KPlIs for disclosure.
=2 s BMAR—RIGKREENIRE HEREAEELAREIUEENI|RIEAKRESE -
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At Eminence, corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) is an integral part
of our business operations. As part of our CSR philosophy, we are
committed to creating long-term positive value for our stakeholders and
the community where we operate while minimizing the environmental
footprint associated with our operations.

Over the past years, we have continuously strived to maintain
sound governance practices, cultivate a sustainable and resilient
workforce, and engage actively in different community programmes.
A comprehensive framework is a foundation for effective ESG
management, ensuring compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations within an organization.

The Board oversees our ESG performance and regularly reviews the
Group’s CSR policy which sets out its long-term sustainability goals.
The Board is responsible for identifying, evaluating, prioritizing and
managing material ESG issues related to the Group’s operations and
risks, and the overall ESG strategy and reporting. The effectiveness
of ESG-related measures and the progress made against targets
are reviewed by the Board in its meeting(s). Meanwhile, the audit
committee of Eminence at the board-level is responsible for reviewing
the risk management and internal control framework.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

3.1 Introduction
Throughout our operations, Eminence has consistently
demonstrated our commitment to responsible environmental
management. Our internal policy identifies and outlines
our approach to environmental protection with a focus on
environmental stewardship, energy efficiency, and cultivating
internal environmental awareness.

During the Year, there were no non-compliance cases relating
to all applicable legal and regulatory requirements' regarding air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

1 including but not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter
311 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
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3.2

3.3

Energy Consumption and Emissions

As energy consumption in our managed properties and office
premises represents a significant proportion of our carbon
footprint, we remain attentive to different energy-saving
opportunities and adopt hardware upgrades to improve our
energy performance over time. In the future, we target to
continuously reduce emissions and energy consumption by
implementing several energy-saving measures and initiatives in
our daily operations. Aside from our ongoing LED light fixture
replacement programme, we adopted automatic motion sensors
and switch-off timers at our properties to avoid unnecessary
lighting. We also adopted air-conditioning zoning to maintain
a controlled indoor temperature and turned off electronic
appliances when not in use to ensure both energy efficiency and
comfort in the working environment. We have been introducing
low emissivity or double-glazed windows to our new property
projects which helps reduce heat loss and optimize thermal
insulation. During the COVID-19 pandemic, we conducted
video and/or telephone conferences to maintain the business
communications smoothly so as to control the energy use and
reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The Group will continue to
explore and implement energy-saving measures to minimize its
environmental impacts.

Waste and Resource Management

As an integral part of our environmental stewardship, Eminence
has developed a comprehensive approach to waste and
resource management. Our goal is to reduce waste in our
operational practices, and to create a paperless office where
electronic communication and document sharing are widely
promoted. As such, we encourage employees to practice
double-sided printing and reuse paper whenever possible when
a hardcopy is necessary. We have likewise installed recycling
collection points at all our major properties, and we encourage
employees to separate recyclables like paper, glass, aluminum
and plastic.

The Group had no issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose
considering our business nature and geographical locations.
We have put in place various water-saving measures to manage
our water use efficiently, as to achieve the goal of reducing
water consumption. We have installed sensor water taps, flow
restrictors, and dual flush toilets at our managed properties and
office buildings along with regular inspections of pipes.

3.2

3.3
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Cultivating Environmental Awareness

We believe driving positive behavioural change is conducive to
a sustainable future. To build a lasting green culture within the
Group, we have implemented internal environmental policies
and programmes at our office and properties, which serve
as practical guidance for staff on energy conservation, waste
reduction and resource management. For instance, internal
signs and notices have been posted in common areas and
washrooms to encourage responsible consumption of energy,
water, paper and other resources. We give preference to office
electronics and light tubes with high energy efficiency.

In the near future, we will keep striving to work towards creating
an environmentally friendly culture at work.

Climate Change

To address the climate-related impacts and risks to our
business, we have been adopting different strategies to enhance
our governance and improve our resilience to climate change. In
terms of risk management, we have identified the climate-related
risk as follows:

Climate-related risks

RixEEA R

Impacts to our operations

HEMEENTE

RRE #HEKREAR

3.4

3.5

®E
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*@%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%%
o fplan - A KRS R EFH

E%W%Hmﬁim S B &
BEIERERR - K - AREE
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mﬁzﬁﬁ;ﬁﬂ”‘“{tﬁﬁmr‘é °
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B R AR B L e

Hurricane and other extreme

weather events

R, N EL A AR vk A SR S
BREFEERX -

Change in long-term rainfall
pattern
EHBEEANBL

In terms of precautionary measures to minimize the potential
damages related to the risks:

(@) Display typhoon signals in an obvious location of the
buildings.

(b)  Remind tenants to shut the windows and lock the doors
securely.

(c) Inspect the pumping system and remove any blockage of
drainage outlets and channels.

(d) Ensure routine inspection and/or maintenance on
buildings and facilities.

The Group is determined to mitigate the impact of climate
change on the operations and will constantly review the policy to
improve the measures and disclosures.

Possible damages to the physical properties and building structure, and disruption
of utilities supply which may lead to loss in business and revenue.

AREHERMENBTEBERRS - URABEEHRETRE

AR R B

Possible damages to the building facilities and structure, and an increase to the
building operation and maintenance costs.
FIBEIBIRIE FRR b SR A - DARIE B TR S8 R IERUR -

EEMERSE  AEER R
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OUR PEOPLE

4.1

4.2

Introduction

Our business success depends on the dedication of our
employees. In this regard, we make great efforts to create
an inclusive and supportive work environment that facilitates
professional development and protects the health, safety, and
well-being of all employees.

Caring Company

In addition to providing equal employment opportunities, we
also ensure our employees receive fair treatment throughout the
employment process, including recruitment, promotion, training
and development, regardless of race, religion, gender, disability,
age, or any other basis prohibited by law.

To safeguard and protect human rights, the employment of child
and forced labour is strictly prohibited within the Group and
throughout our supply chain. During the recruitment process, the
Group takes measures (such as background screening, age and
identity verification) to prevent the employment of child labour
and forced labour. Immediate action will be taken according
to the relevant laws and regulations and investigation will be
conducted if any child or forced labour is found.

Employees are the most important assets for every company.
Our competitive remuneration packages include fringe benefits,
medical health and dental insurance and a range of leave
entitlements and overtime compensation. Our human resources
department is responsible for conducting annual performance
appraisals and determining the promotion arrangements and
salary increments. Regular staff engagements and activities
such as weekly breakfasts, festive gifts and lucky draws (i.e.
Christmas, Chinese New Year, Tuen Ng Festival and Mid-
Autumn Festival), fitness class were arranged for our staff,
contributing immensely to the sense of belonging and cohesion
within the Group. High levels of employee engagement promote
retention of talent, foster their loyalty, and improve organizational
performance.
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There were no non-compliance cases reported during the Year
regarding compensation, dismissal, recruitment, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
welfare, and relevant legislation, including but not limited to the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Employment of Children Regulations (Chapter 57B of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

Occupational Health and Safety

Our safety guidelines and systems are designed to protect
employees and minimize potential occupational hazards in
accordance with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong). As part of our
emergency protocol, standard procedures were established
to deal with extreme weather situations such as typhoons
and rainstorm warnings. At our office premises, apart from
conducting regular fire drills, pest control and carpet cleaning,
we ensure a clear indication of emergency evacuation routes
which are unobstructed at all times. Similar control measures
have been put in place at our managed properties alongside
regular inspections of the firefighting system, including sprinklers
and smoke detectors. During the Year, we conducted cleaning
of water tower air-conditioning systems and split-typed air-
conditioners.

During the Year, we once again faced up to multiple challenges
due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The Group has
remained committed to putting health and safety of our
employees as the priority by ensuring workplace sanitizing
measures and conducting temperature checks. We strongly
encourage out staff to take the COVID-19 vaccine to protect
their own health as well as the community, and have provided
an extra day of paid sick leave to our staff for vaccination.
To safeguard our employees, we provided face masks, hand
sanitizers, Lianhua Qingwen Jiaonang and rapid antigen testing
kits to our employees and installed air purifiers in offices which
effectively eliminate virus. We also implemented a spin-off office
and work from home arrangement to reduce the number of
employees at each office premise, and flexible working hours to
avoid peak transportation hours.

During the Year, there were no reported incidents of non-
compliance with applicable occupational health and safety laws
and regulations that significantly impacted the Group.

4.3
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4.4

4.5

Training and Development

Equipping staff with up-to-date knowledge and the right skill
sets is essential for a business to succeed in an ever-changing
environment. We tailor functional training programmes to meet
the needs of our employees across different departments and
at various career stages. Furthermore, we support our staff’s
participation in different forms of external training, including
courses, seminar and workshops to enhance their professional
knowledge, practical skills as well as confidence in their abilities.
For instance, we have provided training courses to develop
and refresh the employees’ knowledge and skills in using our
accounting system.

Business Ethics

The Group adheres to the highest ethical standards and is
accountable in all aspects of its operations and has zero-
tolerance for any form of bribery or malpractice. The Employee’s
Handbook outlines our expectations for responsible business
conduct for all our employees. Our staff is also required to
comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and the Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

Eminence has provided guidelines on preventing and detecting
activities related to money-laundering and terrorist financing
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
help detecting and reporting suspicious activities, including the
predicate offences of money laundering and terrorist financing,
such as securities fraud and market manipulation.

To ensure that employees are acting in a way that is reflective
of the ethical standards set by the Group, we have invited
all directors and employees to attend a webinar on anti-
money laundering on the topic of “Proliferation Financing: Risk
Assessment and Mitigation” on 2 September 2022 held by
the Commerce and Economic Development Bureau of The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

On 17 March 2023, the Hong Kong Business Ethics
Development Centre of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption has organized an integrity training webinar on
the topic of “Ethics Legacy — Ethical and Governance Roles
of Directors and Senior Management of Publicly Listed
Companies”; and on 27 March 2023, an email was circulated to
all directors and our employees inviting to visit the website and
attend the anti-corruption training.

4.4

4.5
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Our whistleblowing channel allows notifications to the Group of
irregularities of a financial and accounting nature, in addition to
potential breaches of the code of conduct and unlawful activities
undertaken in the organization. Whistleblowing complaints
are investigated thoroughly and treated in strict confidence by
designated personnel, so whistle-blowers can voice concerns
without fear of reprisal. Eminence has adopted the Anti-
corruption Policy and the Whistleblowing Policy; and there were
no confirmed cases of non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations relating to corruption during the Year.

5.  OUR VALUE CHAIN

5.1

5.2

Supply Chain Management

In line with our supply chain management approach, we
give preference to businesses who share our commitments
to sustainable practices and ethical standards. A variety of
factors is considered in the selection process, including but not
limited to supplier reputation and experience, as well as past
performance and record with that supplier. Suppliers who use
environmentally friendly products and services are preferred. To
properly manage risks, including ESG-related risks, arising from
our supply chain, we closely monitor supplier performance and
conduct regular supplier assessments and audits to ensure their
compliance with our requirements. Suppliers who fail to deliver
the committed quality are subject to a series of inspections and
reviews. This holistic approach also enables us to build effective
long-term relationships with our business partners and suppliers.
During the Year, all major suppliers are reviewed and evaluated.

Responsible Services

We have put in place stringent mechanisms and procedures
which provide our employees with the guiding principles in
relation to quality assurance, customer service and privacy. For
instance, to ensure the product quality, we have established
assurance procedures and conducted checks. Also, we have
formulated a complaint handling mechanism to handle and
address customer concerns in a consistent and timely manner.
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Moreover, we strive to ensure the confidentiality of personal data
and information collected from our customers. We have set out
clear privacy guidelines and procedures covering the use and
management of data and information in accordance with the
relevant regulatory requirements, including but not limited to the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). Only authorized personnel are allowed to access
customer data on a need-to-know and need-to-use basis.
Documents containing personal information would be shredded
before discard.

Eminence protects its intellectual property by using copyrights,
trademarks, confidential information, and other applicable
forms of legal protection. We also work closely with law firms to
regularly renew and protect our trademarks.

During the Year, there were no complaint and non-compliance
cases relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

OUR COMMUNITY

Eminence is committed to contributing positively to the community
where we locate and operate as well as all around the world such
as our participation in the donation campaign of “Humanitarian
Assistance for the Earthquake Victims in Turkey” in February 2023. We
have developed long-term partnerships with charitable organizations
and offered financial and in-kind donations, with special focuses on
education, health and social welfare.

During the Year, the Group contributed over HK$1.3 million in
community investment, supporting non-profit organizations from areas
of local and the PRC education, health and social welfare, including
Principal Chan Free Tutorial World Limited, J Life Foundation Limited,
Global Chinese Breast Cancer Organizations Alliance Limited and
Huzhou Vocational and Technical College.
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7. BEBRXMEREMESEER

FY 2022/23

FY 2021/22

2021,/22
MEE

202223
BRERE

A. Environmental

A RIE
Al.1 Air emissions®
BERHBER®
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) Kg 5.93 not applicable
rED Tr I3
Sulphur oxides (SO,) Kg 0.15 not applicable
ety T N3 A
Particulate matter (PM) Kg 0.44 not applicable
CEpRY) Fr TEmA
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BERBEBHREREE
Scope 1 emission Tonnes of CO.e 187.52 12.95
HE1HRE WE—AftiRE S
Scope 2 emission Tonnes of CO.e 93.82 177.77
B E2HEME WA tiRE S
Scope 3 emission® Tonnes of CO.e 1.64 1.65
#ERP M ED WA tirE S
- In total Tonnes of CO.e 282.98 192.38
- LA#EEF WA tiREE
= By intensity Tonnes of CO.e/FTE 7.45 3.01
- AR E T WE AL E S
EREBESR
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
BERRYEELEREEE
Concrete and metal Tonne 1,705.60 2,838.00
BETREE L
Waste paper Tonne 0.89 1.00
[ 4K 58
Recycled concrete and metal Tonne 907.95 118.00
A EIYCREE T K& B T8
Disposed materials, metal and general refuse Tonne 2,300.70 not applicable
in landfille i TiEA
EENEEENEEME - @B R—MRuRe
- Total amount of waste generated Tonne 4,915.14 2,957.00
- EXNEEDES U7
- By intensity Tonne/FTE 129.35 43.49
- REET W, EREBIES

a

The Company starts to disclose the data in FY2022/23.

We take into account the electricity used for processing fresh water by government

departments.

AR R4 2022/235 AR E B A 1 BR 2%

WA BT ERPIEIR IR PR REOE S o
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FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22

HKEx KPI Unit 2022,723 2021,/22
BRBITERENIER B B E SR E

A2.1 Energy consumption by type and intensity
REMEDVEREERREE

Direct energy consumption

HERRES
- In total ’000 kWh 93.66 43.56
- NEEF F1EF R
Indirect energy consumption
MRS
- In total ’000 kWh 209.55 253.96
- LA g FEF R
Total energy consumption
BERFEE
- In total 000 kWh 303.21 297.52
- NEER TFEF R
- By intensity "000 KWh/FTE 7.98 4.65
- AmEE TETRE
ER2BES
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
BIEKEREE
Water consumption
FkE
- In total m? 7,804 5,946
- NEEF SLHTK
- By intensity m3/FTE 205.37 92.91
- AZ E 5t SRS ERERER
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Unit FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22
B 2022,/ 238 R I 2021,/ 228 R &

HKEx KPI

BERURRRENER

B. Social

B. #&

B1.1 Total workforce by gender and employment Male Female Male Female
type B peqid Eld pogid
ZERRERERESNESHEY
Full-time Number of people 18 20 40 24
g A
Part-time Number of people 0 0 0 0
ER N
Total workforce by age group and geographical Under 30-50 Above Under 30-50 Above
region 30 50 30 50
RERARNRMESSNESEY 307% 30FE 507% 307% 30HE 507%

AT 50%% Ak LA 50%% A E
Hong Kong Number of people 0 17 18 0 18 19
£ A
The PRC Number of people 1 0 2 3 3 21
G AH

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender Male Female Male Female
EHRESNEERALE St eg ks St g3
- By rate % 22.00% 5.00% 12.50% 12.50%
- PALE %5+
Employee turnover rate by age group Under 30 30-50 Above 50 | Under 30 30-50 Above 50
RERANBINEERALE 307% 30%E 507% 307% 30HEE 507

AT 50m% Ak AR 507% A E
- By rate % 0.00% 5.00% 8.00% 0.00% 23.81% 7.50%
- Bk
Employee turnover rate by geographical region Hong Kong The PRC Hong Kong The PRC
ZiBESHEERALE & HE EE HE
- By rate % 13.00% 0.00% 12.50% 0.00%
- B

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23
EIEBEMmMETHABRLE 2020,/ 21 HIREE 2021,/ 228 EE 2022,/ 23R EFfE
- By number Number of people 0 0
- PUN 613 AE
- By rate % 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

- PALL 3 &+

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury
EIGBATERE
Lost days Number 0 0
BAIERE g2
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HKEx KPI Unit FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22
BB ERENER By 2022/ 238 R £ 2021,/ 2281 R B
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
REERIREESENESNZIEET DL
Male % 44.44 27.50
2
Female % 35.00 29.17
it
Junior staff % 23.63 22.58
NMEET
Middle managers % 23.08 11.76
HRERE
Senior managers % 100.00 56.25
aRERE
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category
RUPIREEERE D  BEEESTHZINFIEH
Male Number of hours 4.75 4.80
St i3y
Female Number of hours 4.46 413
pegid =321
Junior staff Number of hours 0.71 2.71
NHEET 53 4
Middle managers Number of hours 1.54 1.41
hRERE 53 24
Senior managers Number of hours 17.84 11.44
SRERE 588
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
ZEE o HERHE
Hong Kong Number of suppliers 35 50
N HEHEE
The PRC Number of suppliers 4 10
FE A
Singapore Number of suppliers 1 4
% HEHEE
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received
EEERERRBRBNRFEE
Number of complaints 0 0
KHEE
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the company
HARARHYCEENETHRARTNHE
Number of cases 0 0
ESiE &
B8.2 Resources contributed
ERER
Donations (HK$'000) 1,322 1,278
BETEL)
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8. HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX 8. EBEBIMURE HEBERERRK
H185)AARRLI

HKEx

KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks

BB
B BRERIEE | Mt BE B
A. Environmental
A BRI
Al Al General disclosure 71-73
Emissions —RREE
HER) Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data 79

HE RS KR N AR R R IR
Al.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse 79

gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
HEEE) ReREZ GE2)REREHME CABE
B EEREEABES B - BHERXMTE

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | Due to the business
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, | nature of the
per facility) Group, this KPI
FrEEEEEEYEE AN E) R (ER) %E (EAE | is considered not
EEBA - BERMETHE applicable.
ERAEER X
ME - LLRARE
IR R R/ TE
A o
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, 79

where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)
FEAEEEEYES (UM E) K(ER) B E (NIAF
ESE - BERMAE)

A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to 72-73
achieve them

FIRPTRT L HERE B IR RORIERE L B S AT ERER R P 5%
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes 72-73
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them

W ERIE A E REERERYN A - R PTE] S8R EE
B IR R AERE L B R AT ERER R 5
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®E

HKEx
G Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB A
Em BRERIEE HE B
A2 A2 General disclosure 72-73
Use of Resources —RHEE
BIRER A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total 80
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
REAISNEER SEEEREEERTE (WG
EEBA - BERBTE)
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 80
production volume, per facility)
BFEKERTEWMUEESEN - BHERMAE
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps 72
taken to achieve them
H At AT ET SZ MY ARIR (R AR s B AR R R IE BB L B IR FTERER
H25R
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 72
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them
it SRERGE A KOIR AT B R RIRE - DA R PTET SZEY A K3
B IR R REDE L B IR R 5
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products| Due to the business
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit| nature of the
produced Group, this KPI
Sk mATABREMH O EE U E) R (WE M) B4 E | is considered not
BhE=E applicable.
ERAEBRED
HE - ERE
BB R/ TE
o
A3 A3 General disclosure 71-73
The Environment and —MRIRER
Natural Resources A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 71-73
BERARER environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them
HAEBEDEHRBERRABERNEATZEREHNER
BT ENITE
A4 A4 General disclosure 73
Climate Change —RHE
RIRZ(E A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues which 73
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them
HBEERAEEHETAEETENERAKEBRE
H - REHTH
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HKEx
(G Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB
B BARERIEE | mut BE B
B. Social
B. &g
B1 B1 General disclosure 74-75
Employment —RRIBREE
&R B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (e.g. full-time 81
or part-time), age group and geographical region
RN EFEER (R BEGRE) - FRARI KR E D
B 1E B 42K
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 81
geographical region
BRI - RN KM IE B D B E B KL%
B2 B2 General disclosure 75
Health and Safety —RRIREE
(e e B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each 81
of the past three (3) years including the reporting year
WBE=QF (BHEERFE)BFETITHMAS KL E
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 81
EIBEAIERE
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 75
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored
HEIR P ER AN BV B B I BR B 2 B 1 bt - A RAERINIT R BE R
DalzA
B3 B3 General disclosure 76
Development and —RR IR
Training B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 82
FR RS employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management)
RURRESEHNERERE  FREEE IAINZ
JEEA DL
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 82
gender and employee category
RUERIREBERIZD - BEEETHZ I TR
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HKEx
G Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB
=g BREWEE | #H BHE B
B4 B4 General disclosure 74-75
Labour Standards — M E
HTER B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to 74

avoid child and forced labour

H st A et RS (I A0 HE B DA R B T I 58 145 T

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when 74
discovered
FE AT 230 E IR ISR R B BR B B 18 U P B ER A P R
B5 B5 General disclosure 77-78
Supply Chain —RRIREE
Management B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region 82
i A
GRS EE B E B KRB B
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 77

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored

L A HEEENED - mENTERENHER
HE - ARBERTRERAE

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 77
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored

H A B R HEE E FIRE R LA AR ES
ARAERNTT R ER A

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 77
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored
HATEREHERRRESZARRERRREOEDS - A
RBBENTRERTE
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HKEx
(G Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB
B BARERIEE | mut BE B
B6 B6 General disclosure 77-78
Product Responsibility — =
EmAft B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to | Due to the business
recalls for safety and health reasons nature of the
EEAREAERAHEPRL 2 BEREAMARUHE | Group, this KPI
n is considered not
applicable.
ERAEB R X
ME - LRERE
AR R AT E
o
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints 77, 82
received and how they are dealt with
BRERNE D RREHIRFE B A REEH T A
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting 78
intellectual property rights
Fh st B4 v I R B N G EE M S A 1B D
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall 77
procedures
S 2 R0E B2 N E m B
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 78
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored
HIUH B = ERHRIE RILEBUR - U RBERIT RERS
A
B7 B7 General disclosure 76-77
Anti-corruption — MR FE
RES B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 82
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases
RERBAHEITASERERETERENE SHAR
HEB B MR R
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 76-77
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored
FE Ly S pE R ERIRIR T - A RABRBE T MBS 50
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors 76
and staff
it mESE R E TIREN R E)5E
B8 B8 General disclosure 78
Community Investment —MRIEEE
R A B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental 78
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport)
EIEREEWHE  BEEH BIFRK BEBE X
(7R 5-))
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus 82

area

B TR MERE RN S 83 )
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 94 to 232, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

=2
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BETEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYXE1iE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significant judgments and
assumptions made by management of the Group in
determining the fair value.

BRY ESEEEEREEATERSRERZ HERRE
& BRMIBRREMEHER—BRERENEE -

At 31 March 2023, the fair value of investment properties
including the assets classified as held for sale was
approximately HK$1,708 million with a fair value gain
recognised in profit or loss of approximately HK$88 million
(note 17 to the consolidated financial statements).
Fﬁm%%ﬂma &é%%@%”*ﬁﬁﬁmEZEE
AF{E#)1,708,000,000/8 7T - RIEmER 2 AFEKE

88,000,000/ 7T (4R A& BA B R MIFE17) -

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
based on valuations performed by independent firms of
qualified professional property valuers (the “Valuers”).
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs used in
the valuations are disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
SEREMEZ NTEIREBEBE LS EEEEAERMT

(MEEMDIERZAEINT - AEMRBZAEFEREE
BABUE 2 HFBERGRE M BIHMERMT1I7TRHRE -

B ES
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= (8

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMWET A REREETER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

HMEREMEZGEZRRREF 21

Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation techniques,
performance of the property markets, significant
assumptions adopted, critical judgmental areas, key inputs
and data used in the valuations;

wEEMEk ESEERETREAERE  WETSR
B FERAZEERS  FEXEHSE - AEMKAZ
FEAREUE

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuers;
HEMREMNERE  EORERIL

Assessing the integrity of information provided by
management of the Group to the Valuers by comparing,
on a sample basis, details of rentals to the respective
underlying existing lease agreements; and
FRLAMEFALBREARREEN 2B F B U
 BEEEERERMGEMAEM BN TR &

Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by the
Valuers and management of the Group by comparing
relevant market information with similar properties, and
assessing the appropriateness of specific assumptions
make on adjustments of the properties by reference to
character, location and other individual factors which affect
the valuation of properties.

BEREBFRBRMENRBETSER A GHEMAR
SEEEEMANIERANSEN U2 EXEME
EEM%EviEﬂEM@%H?‘?@%%%%%W

HOBFERREEEE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRETEE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties held for
development for sale (“PUD”)
A EHERBEYEZ TS B FE ([FIEHERRYE])
We identified the assessment of the net realisable value of
PUD as a key audit matter due to the significant judgments
and assumptions made by management of the Group in
determining the net realisable value.
HRASEEREEETE A &5 FERELERABRNR
& AR MEEBELERRMER R FENTERE
ERBRELTEIE -

The Group’s PUD were stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The estimates of net realisable value are
determined based on best available information and with
reference to valuations made, less the estimated costs to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales.
REENFIEHESRYERKNAMAIZR FERNHRIE
FHR o AR FENGHFEERKERREELL2EMR
) BT 1R 5 TR ET B9 TE AR AR A S AR K 8 6 PR RS 2 AR A i B
FEH) e

At 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of PUD was
approximately HK$3,308 million (consolidated statement
of financial position), with write-back on PUD recognised in
profit or loss of approximately HK$40 million (consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income).
20236 3A31H HIEHEERMENREFENR
3,308,000,000/8 7T (7 & I # 3R) © fE B & H R A E
o B B R ) ¥ 78 181 495 40,000,000 7T (AR & e R E 2
ERER)

The calculation of net realisable value of each PUD is
performed by an independent firm of qualified professional
property valuer (the “Valuer”). Appropriate reversal of
previously write-down for estimated irrecoverable amount
is recognised in profit or loss when the net realisable
value increases. Actual realised amount may differ from
estimates, resulting in a decrease or an increase in the net
realisable value of the PUD for sale and additional write-
down or reversal of write-down previously recognised may be
required.

BEFEHERRYENIERFENAERCHBIASE
SERNBEERMENG AR (EEMDRITH - BAIEHR
FEIEINE - EEREURDRERN ST AR E REFA
EHERNSE ERZENSBEAIRERTNSEEM
TR HMERHENFELEERDENAZRFER
DN - B AT AE T EETTRR SN P 8 SO 8F ST AT RERR
B8 o

BAEET SR ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MW ET AR ERREETER

Our procedures in relation to the net realisable value of PUD
included:

BRBELEERDENUERFENREF 1

o Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer and
management of the Group about the valuation techniques,
performance of the property markets, significant
assumptions adopted, critical judgmental areas, key inputs
and data used in the valuations;
mEEMN BEXEEERETRAERN  BHETS
=B RANEERR  EEMFIEED - BRRE AN
hERERNEE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;

AHEHENERS - ENMEEIL

o Testing, on a sample basis, the actual development costs
by tracing to construction contracts, certificates and
invoices;

\LL%%IAH BEMRE  HEBROREXRE
FTHIBORIE

o Assessing, on a sample basis, the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the management’s estimated costs of
completion by reviewing terms and conditions of the signed
construction contracts, inspecting the contract sum and
budget information, and assessing the appropriateness of
changes in the estimated costs of completion by inspecting
the supporting documents including signed construction
contracts and certificates; and
RBRSECEZNERSRANKRINEYE  wEaRAE
BNBEEEEARMMETIGEEREZHNESE - N
TWHﬁ%EEEEmnIE S ERMNAEMAEE M

BREBREXHXN  BEFITNRIARAMES X

o Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by the Valuer
and management of the Group by comparing relevant
market information with similar properties.
mBEEFEUEENEETISE SREITHER - AR
EMANASEERECANEERANSEL -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Leung Chui Shan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEakAMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £2023%3A31 B IFFE

2023 2022
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
BisE TER FET
(Restated)
(e E5)
Continuing operations BELEER
Revenue ] 5
Rental income iR ON 24,408 30,528
Interest income from loan financing RKAEZBE ZF 2WA 2,786 6,553
27,194 37,081
Cost of services rendered RERBR A (2,969) (2,910)
24,225 34,171
Other income Hiplg A 7 8,353 9,303
Other gains and losses Hilis kBB 1,409 (51)
Other expenses Hihpx (303) (231)
Administrative expenses THR X (47,074) (46,001)
Finance costs BE R 9 (22,985) (20,485)
Share of result of a joint venture AME—HEERAREE 13 -
Gain on changes in fair value of investment REWMEZ NFEZ S
properties 11,17 78,967 48,188
Write-back on properties held for development  E{EHEXE Y ¥ 2 BB T4
for sale, net 22 40,394 79,919
Net loss on changes in fair value of financial BATEFABREZEREE
assets at fair value through profit or loss ZATHEEBEERE (4,531) (16,126)
Loss on revaluation of intangible assets BVEEZERER 19 (5,847) (723)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BREEZREER 19 (3,207) -
Impairment loss on financial assets, net: CREEZRERSE  FE
- Loans receivable - AR 11,18 (8,663) (21,498)
- Debt instruments at fair value through other -BATEARMEEREZE
comprehensive income BIA (3,530) (9,453)
- Debt instrument at amortised cost - R E BB TA - (914)
Gain on settlement of loans receivable by AMEREREER 2 W
properties 18 - 35,846
Release on disposal of debt instruments at fair ~ HERAFEF ALMEERR 2 E
value through other comprehensive income B ILARMRR - (4,726)
Profit before taxation BRI AT 57,321 87,219
Taxation credit (charge) HEELFEL) 10 1,649 (696)
Profit for the year from continuing operations KREHBECLEBNEERA 12 58,970 86,523
Discontinued operation DARIEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued operation R E B4R | HC 4 £ T80 FE BT 11 4,602 29,024
Profit for the year attributable to owners of ARRIRREIEFERF
the Company 63,572 116,447
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEsEkAMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z2023F3A31HIFFE

2023 2022
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
MisE TER TEL
(Restated)
(l8E5)
Other comprehensive (expense) income H2EE) WA
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to &/ F[g¢ ER B E 182 2 A -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEBINEBERIBRRZERZR
financial statements of foreign operations (36,244) 13,798
Change in fair value of debt instruments at fair ~ ZAFEFAEMEENEZ BT
value through other comprehensive income BN EEE (1,454) (10,530)
Impairment loss on debt instruments at fair value 5+ A8 7 A FE AR M 2 @K
through other comprehensive income included 2§~ E# T B Ri{E &R
in profit or loss 3,530 9,453
Release on disposal of debt instruments at far ~ HEZALEEFARMEERZE 2 E
value through other comprehensive income 7% T ERSERE - 4,726
Other comprehensive (expense) income AEEEMEEER)RA
for the year (34,168) 17,447
Total comprehensive income for the year AARRREMGAFE 2 ERALLE
attributable to owners of the Company 29,404 133,894
Total comprehensive income (expense) ERRIRREEAFEZERA
attributable to owners of the Company: (Fis) 4% :
- from continuing operations - REBECEER 63,123 90,498
~ from discontinued operation - RECRIEELER (33,719) 43,396
Total comprehensive income for the year AARREEEREEZERA
attributable to owners of the Company ekl 29,404 133,894
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
(Restated)
(g =71)
Earnings per share FREF
From continuing and discontinued operations REABECEEBRORIHEEEK
- Basic -E X 14 3.75 12.50
- Diluted -#E 3.43 9.77
From continuing operations REBELEER
— Basic -EX 14 3.48 9.29

— Diluted -#E 3.19 7.51
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

At 31 March 2023 72202343 H31H

2023 2022
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B =E FExT FHT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 15 4,728 4,980
Right-of-use assets FRELE 16 1,228 3,770
Investment properties REME 17 1,337,441 1,367,563
Intangible assets BREE 19 = 6,563
Investment in a joint venture —HEE R AR 113 =
Loans receivable ERER 18 13,664 39,341
Financial assets at fair value through profit BAFEFABEZEMEE
or loss 24 48,930 43,274
Debt instruments at fair value through other ~ ZAFEFAEMEEKE 2
comprehensive income EETA 20 471 -
Debt instrument at amortised cost RBHERAHECZEB LA 21 22,576 22,426
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE 30 8,975 8,020
1,438,126 1,495,937
Current assets MENEE
Properties held for development for sale FIELEERME 22 3,307,920 3,020,650
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE A FEWGRIE 23 48,132 118,039
Prepaid income tax BHMEH 17 25,424 =
Loans receivable U E R 18 38,586 55,040
Amount due from a joint venture U E & NRIFHIE 1,921 =
Financial assets at fair value through profit BATEHABRZEREE
or loss 24 39,418 105,635
Debt instruments at fair value through other R AFEF AR 2 EKE 2
comprehensive income fEIA 20 624 2,408
Cash and cash equivalents Re KR EEY 25 354,002 82,099
3,816,027 3,383,871
Assets classified as held for sale —investment D38 A 1EHEZEE - REME
properties 17 370,114 -
4,186,141 3,383,871
Current liabilities Pk JI=KE
Trade and other payables ZHREMEMNFIE 26 85,266 83,438
Deposit received for disposal of assets BRABEARBELEZ
classified as held for sale BERS 17 226,802 =
Tax payable e IR 10,112 10,280
Convertible notes AHRREE 27 = 16,292
Secured bank borrowings HEMBITEE 28 544,578 789,286
Lease liabilities HEEE 29 1,162 2,570
867,920 901,866
Net current assets TEEEFE 3,318,221 2,482,005
Total assets less current liabilities BERBRLSEE 4,756,347 3,977,942
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

At 31 March 2023 7202343 H31H

2023 2022
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE THET FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELERBEEE 30 33,793 37,855
Convertible note MR ER 27 159,949 50,619
Secured bank borrowings BERRITEE 28 1,327,341 873,021
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 98 1,260
1,521,181 962,755
3,235,166 3,015,187
Capital and reserves BERRREE
Share capital [N 31 21,259 9,315
Reserves i 3,173,283 3,005,872
Amount recognised in other comprehensive 7 Eot 2 Ui a5 Je B 25 IR
income and accumulated in equity BRrHBELEZEE
relating to assets classified as held for BEEFIAE
sale 40,624 -
3,235,166 3,015,187

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 232 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2023 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Lai Law Kau
FEER
DIRECTOR
EE

EE@N2023F6 A28 A ERIREEKRE
Q4E232B 2 I A IS K - WA TIES

RERE

Lui Yuk Chu
Bk
DIRECTOR
)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

Property
revaluation
Convertible Investment  reserve for ~ Accumulated
Share Share  note equity Capital  Contributed ~ Exchange  revaluation  assets held (losses)
captal  premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve for sale profits Total
FELEL
TEREE & nE  ZiH(ER)
R BhEE  EREE RARE SRR EXRE  ERRE  ERER il #%
HK$000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$O00 - HK$O000 - HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
(Note ) (Note i) (Note i)
(sH) (i) (i)
Thr TEnr  TEr  TEr  TEAr TR TEr  TEr TEr TEn
At 1 Apri 2021 20214718 186,291 2,320,694 79,862 53,194 261,126 18415 (2,027) 40,624 (76,880) 2,881,293
Fxchange diflerences arising on RERMEERS R
tranglation of financial statements ~ ZERZE
of foreign operations - - - - - 13,798 - - - 13,798
Change in fair value of et BATE ALt 2EN
instruments at fair value through BLERIEZRTE
other comprehensive income 2§ - - - - = - (10530 = - (10,5%0)
Release on disposal of debt HERATEG ALH2
instruments at fair value through Ela BHIAKE
other comprehensive income B - - - - - - 4726 - - 4726
Impairment loss on debtinstruments st ABZ ZRATFETA
at fair value through other A2EbE ERT
comprehensive income includedin -~ EZ /S
proftt or loss - - - - - - 9,453 - - 9,463
Proft for the year AERRA - - - - - - - - 1164 116447
Total comprehensive income TERRANAER
for the year - - - - - 13,798 3,649 - 116,447 133,804
Reduction of share capital upon AE R 2 RAER
capital reorganisation (176976) - - - 176976 - - - - -
At 31 March 2022 Ho2E3 A3 R 9315 2306 7982 53194 4B %213 162 A4 X5 3015187
Exchange differences arising on AL ERI R
tranglation of financial statements ~ ZEREE
of foreign operations - - - - - (36244) - - - (36249)
Change In fair vlue of debt BATEFAR2EN
instruments at fair value through BLERIAZRTE
other comprehensive income 28 - - - - 2 S (1,454) = = (1,454)
Impairment loss on debt instruments s AB& 2 RAFEFA
at fair value through other A2EbE ERT
comprehensive income included in -~ £ ZIR(EEE
proftt or loss - - - - - - 3,530 - - 3,530
Profit for the year TEEET - - - - - - 3 - 63572 63572
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEREZBER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

Property
revaluation
Convertible Investment  reserve for - Accumulated
Share Share  note equity Capital Contributed ~ Exchange revaluation assetsheld  (losses)
capital  premium reserve  reserve surplus reserve reserve  forsale profits Total
KELEZ
TaRZE b nx  Eit(ER)
R RBEE BEEE RARE  BABR  EXRE  EAEHR  EREE &R g
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000
(Notei) ~ (Notei) (Note iii)
(Boki) (Wi (Wi
Tén  TEx  TEx  TEn B  FTEr  TEr TR TEr  TEn
Total comprehensive (expense) AEERAGH)
income for the year WAL S o o S - (36,244) 2,076 o 63,572 29,404
Recognition of equity component RTARZEBE
of convertible note (note 27) HAH27) - - 56878 = = = = = - 56878
Deferred tax liabilty on recognion ~~ BRMARZE 2Bk
of equity component of KA EERE
convertible note (note 27) ER) - o (9,385) = = = = = = (9,385)
Issue of shares upon placing REREARH
(note 31(i) GRS 79 51244 o = = = = = - 59,180
Issue of shares upon conversion o~ { B AT AR Z ke
convertible notes (note 31 i) BRI (H231() 4008 15975 (93,151) = = = = = - 70613
Deferred tax liabllty released upon R ARZ BE &R
conversion of convertible notes EREsEaE
(note 27) (Rzan) - - 13,289 - - - - - - 13,289
At 31 March 2023 H2023%3R31A 21,259 2,531,694 47493 53194 438,102 (4,081) 3,698 40624 103133 3,235,166
Notes: FtsE -

(i)

(iii)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the reduction of
share capital of the Company in March 2004 and September 2005 and can be applied
in the future for distribution to the shareholders.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising from the reduction
of share capital of the Company in February 2003, October 2009, December 2012,
November 2013, October 2014, March 2015, October 2015 and 15 March 2022, part
of which was applied to set off against accumulated losses of the Company in February
2003, October 2009, December 2012, November 2013, October 2014, March 2015
and October 2015. The balance may be utilised by the directors in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws and all applicable laws, including to eliminate the accumulated
losses of the Company.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on revaluation of
certain leasehold properties and land use rights of the Group when these leasehold
properties and land use rights were transferred to investment properties. As at 31
March 2023, these investment properties were reclassified as held for sale. Details are
set out in note 17.

(i)

REE 2 BARHRRARFNR20045F3A R
200559 A R HIRAR A PTE A 2 HEBR - AT 2R
DR T R

REB 2 HABBRIRADQEN2003F2A -
20094108 * 20124128 ~ 20131148 »
20144108 - 2015438 - 2015510 A k2022
FIR15HEIRR AR FIEEZ#ER - BHER
200342 A + 20099104 - 20124127 - 2013
F11H + 20145108 - 201543 A %2015F 10
AREEFEARBZREHE - EFAREAR
RAIERMAIRAABRZED T AERZE
#% - BEANEHEAARZ RETEE -

AEEZMEEGHERERREAVER L BE
AREAEZREAMEE  AKEETHENE
Bk 2 e R i FARE - 4202343 A 31
F ZEREMECENHDBARAFELELZ
BE - FIEHRME7 -

She)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # £ 20233 A31H It F &

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHAT FAT
Operating activities KRR
Profit before taxation 5 Bl & 7 65,972 123,497
Adjustments for: R
Bank and other interest income RITREMF S WA (2,676) (272)
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ BELRREZITE
equipment 806 1,097
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZIE 2,542 2,495
Dividend income from listed investments EWEREZBREWA (2,598) (5,546)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BELEREZ
equipment Wz = (382)
Gain on changes in fair value of investment RENMEZ NTEE
properties Wz (87,831) (63,054)
Gain on settlement of loans receivables by LAY B BN E R 2 W
properties - (35,846)
Impairment loss on debt instrument at REHEKAHEZEB LA
amortised cost ZRERE = 914
Impairment loss on debt instruments at fair BRAFEF AR M E SR
value through other comprehensive ZEBTRZHEBE(E
income (“FVTOCI") NFEFARMEE K] 3,530 9,453
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net W ERZRERSE - T8 8,442 21,461
Impairment loss on intangible assets BREEREBRE 3,207 =
Interest expense FBFX 22,985 20,485
Interest income from debt instruments at BATEF AL 2 ERE
FVTOCI ZEBTEZFBIKRA (64) (1,870)
Interest income from debt instruments at REENAEZEBTA
amortised cost ZFBUWA (1,718) (1,556)
Interest income from loan financing REEHREZFIEHMA (3,289) (7,730)
Loss on changes in fair value of financial BATEAABRZZEREE
assets at fair value through profit or loss ZAFEEHER(RAT
(“FVTPL?) Bt \BEZ2REE]) 9,923 17,736
Loss on revaluation of intangible assets BFEEEMEBE 5,847 723
Loss on write-off of property, plant and W - BEREE 2
equipment &8 = 36
Release on disposal of debt instruments at HERATFEFALMEE
FVTOCI W5 7 (B 75 T B RS - 4,726
Share of result of a joint venture PME—FEAERREE (113) =
Written-off of other payable HoAth JE 5 50 2 i 88 (1,732 =
Write-back on properties held for BIEHEREMEZERL
development for sale, net HEE (40,394) (79,919)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

2023 2022
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Bk FTHAT FAT
Operating cash flows before movements in KRt EBEECEF o KERS
working capital RE (17,161) 6,448
Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL BAFEMABRZZSREERD 16,347 16,134
Increase in properties held for development for £ {EH & 3R ¥ 2 58 i
sale (191,227) (147,916)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 RE AT 70,413 17,808
Decrease in loans receivable FERE TR 31,771 11,071
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 & H e FER A (3,722) (16,668)
Cash used in operations AREEZHE (93,579) (113,123
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREBFIEH (561) (3,437)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded REIFBFER 100 -
People’s Republic of China (PRC”) BRPEARLMBE(REDDE
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) paid R EMERD (27,062) -
Dividend received from financial assets at FVTPL REEAFEF ABRE 2 &7
BEZEHBRE 2,598 5,546
Interest received from loan financing REERRE 2 FIBMWA 3,352 2,094
Net cash used in operating activities AREE e Re TR (115,152 (108,920)
Investing activities BAES
Proceeds from disposal/maturity of financial HEBIER A TERS ABE
assets at FVTPL ZEeMEEZMSHE 604,403 155,881
Deposit received for disposal of assets BN BARBELECEE
classified as held for sale &S 17 224,253 =
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMEZ FEHIE
properties 68,150 19,517
Interest received BUH & 5,170 6,105
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets HERPEEZFTERE 401 3,447
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BARLTEFAERZ
SREE (574,306) (194,611)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of investment & BB B R FBEARE
properties through acauisition of WMEZRSTRLFE
subsidiaries 33 (129,353) -
Addition of intangible assets B EERLM (2,839) (10,733)
Advance to a joint venture BN—HEEE QA (1,921) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BEREE (562) (1,013)
Proceeds from redemption of debt BATEFAEEERE
instruments at FVTOCI BB TAER 2 AERIE = 23,038
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand ~ HEREYE 2 FrEFUE
equipment - 931
Addition of debt instrument at amortised cost ¥Rk #Ak A5 8 2 EE T AN = (23,220)
Deposit received from disposal of subsidiaries DWW HEHB AR 24 = (10,000)
Addition of investment properties NEREME = (1,433)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities RARARKRETS 2 REFE 193,396 (32,091)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GLERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHAT FAT
Financing activities MEEH
Bank borrowings raised EEBITIEE 564,298 980,556
Net proceeds from issue of shares upon & BT TS SR T3
placing 59,180 =
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (346,759) (833,274)
Interest paid BERFE (74,183) (34,226)
Payment of loan arrangement fee SHERTHER (8,179) -
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHREER (2,570) (2,472)
Net cash from financing activities REMEEZBH 2 HEFHE 191,787 110,584
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash RekBReEBW2EM
equivalents O ) %58 270,031 (30,427)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the  F# 2R & KIELEEY
year 82,099 112,260
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes I B R B B 2 B 1,872 266

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, ~F&ZHERBELZEY) -
represented by bank balances and cash BIRITREBREAS 354,002 82,099
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRHME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &, £ 202343 A31H I F &

GENERAL INFORMATION

Eminence Enterprise Limited (the “Company”; the Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Company is a subsidiary of
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”), an
exempted company incorporated in Bermuda with its shares also listed
on the Stock Exchange. At 31 March 2023, Easyknit International
together with its subsidiaries held 51.60% (31 March 2022: 74.76%) of
the issued share capital of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries is set out in note 42.
The Group also operated in the PRC which was discontinued in current
year (see note 11).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual periods beginning on 1 April 2022 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018 — 2020

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRSs
The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance

for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

BLeEARAT(AAR] : AAF
REHBARSEAAEE])EER
ERME T AEREERAT - KR
PEEBBAZSHERAR (B
FiJ) LT o 2 RIBYSEMI B it i A E
B B IR 0 A T AR
HERE -

R2023FE M 2022F3H318 » AAFA
BAXEEBREEGR AR (KEBEE]D
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction’
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)” and Amendments to HKAS 1
“Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)”

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on
the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the
entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”.

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments clarify
that the classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12 months.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)” and Amendments to HKAS 1
“Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)”
(Continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date which are conditional on the compliance with covenants, the
requirements introduced by the 2020 Amendments have been modified
by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022 Amendments specify that
only covenants with which an entity is required to comply with on or
before the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date. Covenants which are required to comply with only after the
reporting period do not affect whether that right exists at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure requirements
about information that enables users of financial statements to
understand the risk that the liabilities could become repayable within
twelve months after the reporting period, if the entity classify liabilities
arising from loan arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right
to defer settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of applying the
2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with the 2020
Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024, with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after the issue of the
2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the 2022 Amendments
for that period.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s right to defer settlement for
borrowings of HK$1,327,341,000 is subject to compliance with
certain financial ratios within 12 months from the reporting date. Such
borrowings were classified as non-current as the Group met such ratios
at 31 March 2023. Upon the application of the 2022 Amendments,
such borrowings will still be classified as non-current as the covenants
which the Group is required to comply with only after the reporting
period do not affect whether that right exists at the end of the reporting
date and such borrowing will still be classified as non-current.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties,
intangible assets and certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values or revalued amounts, at the end of the
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories”
or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

RREEUBRREERTES
BR

3.1

EHEESUHHREE
RAMBRRERIEE B0
NEJMNE BB REELR
B PRREAMBHRERMS -
RZESREBESReYET
ZRFHRE - AZEBHARR
EEER - I BEMBRE
BIEBRZMES EHRA( £
A REE R FEGIARE 8@
FRHEE

T X Z G BEME - BRIRE
ME - BYEERETERIA
RBERRARTEKEESHE
e RAMBRERVERES
PRAERREL ©

JEE Sk AR — AR LA ER & i K BR 7%
ZAFERERKE -

AFEEREATBERERE
1T FF 52 5 0 PR
LWB BB 2 B B
SRR T A A EERE LA
Bt (E R A © EfEE TR
AESREODTFER - ARE
LRAEABEZBUENTE
A EARE EMTAERA R
BEE O EBLTHY - K56
ARBRENER ARBED
ENATESREZELET -
1R 8 B 9 R RV RS
BRI (FEA RS
RIZ2% ) BE R 2 AR AL
X225 - REEBHBE
SR 165 A E )3 B A
%5 REATEFERLIEN
2B 2 EELHATE - fim
EB AR ER R A
SEFESEEEIRAF0H
(AR A EE -

FeRMBEEZNTEABER
MH2EEERRAYRRAE
ERAZEEXNBRHELERS
BEBRABEEAZEEZR—T
B2EENESRBERGZ 8
A o

107



108

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e DR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # £ 20233 A31H It F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs are to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from
the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is
met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a
business and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to investment properties
which are subsequently measured under fair value model and
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not
give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including an
organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or
experience to perform the related processes or they significantly
contribute to the ability to continue producing outputs and are
considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without
significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue
producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition date is on or
after 1 April 2022, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability
in the “Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018”
issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) except for
transactions and events within the scope of HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
“Levies”, in which the Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)- Int
21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities
it has assumed in a business combination. Contingent assets
are not recognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable
terms of the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell, except for investment properties
which continue to be measured in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in investment properties section.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Qutput method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of
the value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration
in an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the
Group’s performance completed to date, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount to which the Group has the right to
invoice.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as
a single lease component.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
and
o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-
of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property
and inventory are presented within “investment properties” and
“properties held for development for sale” respectively.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.
After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount

commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset.

When the modified contract contains one or more additional
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the modified contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component. The
associated non-lease components are included in the respective
lease components.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary course
of business is presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as
lease modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HKD) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans/state-
managed retirement benefit schemes/the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees after
deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxation entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model and properties held for development
for sale that are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRHME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly
to accumulated profits.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer from investment property carried at fair value
to inventories, the property’s deemed cost for subsequent
accounting shall be its fair value at the date of change in use.
An entity shall transfer a property from investment property to
inventories when, and only when, there is a change in use, such
as commencement of development with a view to sale.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

() cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRHME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &, £ 202343 A31H I F &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale which are intended
to be sold upon completion of development are classified as
current assets. Except for the leasehold land element which
is measured at cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets, properties held for development
for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the properties
less estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Intangible assets

Crypto assets held by the Group are classified as intangible
assets in the scope of HKAS 38 “Intangible Assets”. Crypto
assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently carried
at a revalued amount less subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of intangible
assets is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognise in profit or loss, in which case the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of intangible assets is recognised in profit or loss to
the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the investment
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset,
the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to accumulated
profits. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not
amortised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business is presented as revenue.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. REGSUBHRREERTIES
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BUR (48)
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FESHBER(E)
Financial instruments (Continued) AT AGE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets CRMEEZPEREEZAE(E
(Continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if: EATEATHEEREERR
5 :
. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling . FERATHBALEM
in the near term; or WUEE ;3K
. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified . TR ERE HAKXE
financial instruments that the Group manages together EHEAEENIHAEE
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; THHEEH o LA
or BB R0 B R R
XK
. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a o ER—RBABEEAEX
hedging instrument. WER TAMITETA -
In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial BEAN - AR BIE B & R
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost AR RN FEFT AWK
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or wEITENEREERATEA
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch. Bt ERDERSRRR D &5t
SEAR - RIS 5= [ AT AN A SR (el 40
AT o
()  Amortised cost and interest income 0] B RKAN R FL B A
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest FIEW AT E A ERF X
method for financial assets measured subsequently EAE R IZB KA E
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently NERMEEREBRAF
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by Bt AEME2EKENE
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying BILTETAER - FLEWK
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that ADNEH—BEMEERE
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). BERERERMET A
For financial assets that have subsequently become EOEHBEHBEEER
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying ENeREERINET
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the X) o LEBEBREER
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit EMNERMEEMS B 1
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves —REEAR - A B AT
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, HomEERENAER
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. REGSUBHRREERTEEL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BUR (8)
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FESHBEE)
Financial instruments (Continued) T T A(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEBE)

SREEZ HEREET B

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these
debt instruments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised
in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to other
comprehensive income without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest
but excludes any dividend earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “net loss on changes in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL” line item.

Film right investment is the Group’s investment in a film
production project which entitles the Group to share
certain percentage of income to be generated from the
related film based on the Group’s investment portion as
specified in respective film right investment agreement
but the Group has no control nor joint control over the
investment. Film right investment is classified as financial
asset at FVTPL.

3.

CEDE

E&Eﬁ(na

3.2

MBBRREERTEST

TESHERGE
SHTAGE)

EREE (B
ERMEEZDBREKFTEE)

(i)

BATVEFABRNDSH
TRHERBHKAER
BAVEFAEMEERK
B IEE R AFEFA
Htp 2mE s G e 2m
BEDRATEFARR

HE -

BATVEFABRNDSH
BEREWRERROLF
BFft 8 EAAFERR
FBERIBRTER - K
BREERNERLEBERF
HEEEMFNSENRRE
f2mE ERRAERAR
8o WEF AR FER
ABRZERMBEEZAT
ERBEIRFEIARN -

E%W%&éﬂ%$%l
HEYRMEFEBNKRE -
$%IE%EEEKH%
B MERE HET A
BWIRELLD - DHEHE
THEERANETES
[d5 < ﬁ$%l%%&§ﬁ
A AT ] 42 ) A o R 22
T e %%W%&ﬁ“*
b/ :Ffﬁafj\iﬂﬁnmﬁmﬂ

BE -



BILEFEERDT 2023 FH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRHME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model (including trade and other receivables,
amount due from a joint venture, loans receivable, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, debt instrument at amortised cost and
cash and cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and lease receivables.

For all other assets, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

M

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
borrower or debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the borrower’s or
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the borrower or debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the borrower or debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the borrower’s or
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (i) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
the credit risk of the debt instrument mainly with reference
to external credit rating of “investment grade” as per
globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

(il

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flow used for determining the ECL
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of loans receivable and debt instrument at amortised
cost where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account. For investments in
debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
without reducing the carrying amount of these debt
instruments. Such amount represents the changes in the
investment revaluation reserve in relation to accumulated
loss allowance.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, the liability
component of convertible notes and secured bank borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes containing liability and equity components

The component parts of the convertible notes issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that does
not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion
option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to share premium. Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of
the convertible notes, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion
option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the lives of the convertible notes using the effective interest
method.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
as a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability to which the
amortised cost measurement applies as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform, the Group applies the practical expedient to
account for these changes by updating the effective interest rate,
such change in effective interest rate normally has no significant
effect on the carrying amount of the relevant financial asset or
financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and only if, both
these conditions are met:

o the change is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

o the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful live to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporates
assets are allocated to relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill (Continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under the standard.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment properties
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
located in Hong Kong and Singapore are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
in determining the deferred taxation on investment properties located
in Hong Kong and Singapore, the directors of the Company have
determined that presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered through
sale is not rebutted.

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC, in prior
years, the directors of the Company concluded that they were being
held under a business model whose objective was to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining
the Group’s deferred taxation arising from investment properties
located in the PRC, the directors of the Company determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model were recovered through sale was
rebutted.

TEEFHERTEREGT ZEE
HR

E@%WHB%LZ$EIA%ﬁ%
CARBEEARBEERBEEMIK
Mﬁ%%%é%&ﬁ B2 BREE
HHE - R RERE - AEF RAAERE
mﬁ%ﬁéi@fi%&%ﬁ&ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁ% 0
BERERATEEA RN ILEFMLF -

ShE AT R ARBE R AR 0 F 5 A i A
WMEFH AR ZEREFEZLM f
B RS b Et 2 BRI RERR - B R
FEAHERARKBE - WSS
8 B R R A R

RS Rz T EH

BRF R (TN  LTRESRN
RRAEESFTRRBEDT YRS
PHERRTRRBZSEAREATE
ZEEHE

REWEZFELHE
NAFEERABZREVEELZ
BRERIBETFER  EREEEM
AEBZRENEHEGLRS - AE
BB BRI MK EYER - &K
RZEBRALITHEERBETE
REEMEERRBRNBLD ZEEF
e Bt REEAKEEE RN
BREMEMELEZRERIEAR - &
BEE®R  UAFERAFEZRE
MEMNEBHEE LD E —BARR

-
VAR

RAEBMNRFRZEEDEMNS -
TERIFEE  EBEERBE BEZEY
ERREAZEBEN TS EREREBEZR
HREAREMEEPRARI D 2 KB
Flzs - MIEEHEZH - Bt - RE
EAEEFREEEERNE £ ZRT
Wi TEERR  UWAFEERER
AEZREAYVENEBEERDE—
EBETKL -



BILEFEERDT 2023 FH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRHME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Continued)
Deferred taxation on investment properties (Continued)

In current year, as initiated by the municipal government, the Group
entered into a land resumption agreement with municipal government
to surrender these investment properties. Such investment properties
have been classified as assets classified as held for sale as at 31 March
2023 and the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered through
sales is not rebutted. However, since it is a land resumption conducted
by municipal government, the transaction is not be subject to land
appreciation tax.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent they are available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers to perform valuation
of the Group’s investment properties. At the end of the reporting
period, the management works closely with the independent firms
of qualified professional property valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for fair value
measurements. Where there is a material change in the fair value of the
assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the directors
of the Company. Information about the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties is disclosed in note 17.

TEETHERTEEMGT ZEE
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EREEE 2 EEH (&)
REY#EZFEALFE (E)

RAFE  EHEBNNEZET A%
BEHEBERFRT TREREE W
ZEREWE - H2023F3A31H © %
EREVMECEPERBELEZE
EBARARAFEEAGENREY
X¥EMEERAHEREMHBRITR
WHE - BERNIEBRF LU
IR SN L AR o

TREMGZEERR
INTHRBERRRZEERR  ARR
BEPRRZEMTIEEBFZEER
R RS TEVREHEHEE
REBEzBREERT - EFRFE L
RERBRZEREAR -

REYHEZ 2 FE
AEBZREMERPBREM = X
RFETUAE - AEEEEEEE
B A A FEAEECEEMNMGEE
TEREZEAEIE -

AR AREREMEN A FER - K
KECRAUESHTSUBRERE -
I EFIRBA - AEREZBBILS
ERGEMTHAEEZREYEE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties held for
development for sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
properties held for development for sale, which are situated in Hong
Kong and amounted to HK$3,307,920,000 at 31 March 2023 (2022:
HK$3,020,650,000), with reference to current market environment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may exceed its net realisable value. Appropriate
reversal of previously recognised write-down for estimated irrecoverable
amount is recognised in profit or loss when the net realisable value
increases. The estimates of net realisable value are determined based
on best available information and with reference to valuations made,
less the estimated costs to completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Actual realised amount may differ from estimates, resulting in
a decrease or an increase in the net realisable value of the properties
held for development for sale and additional write-down or reversal of
write-down previously recognised may be required.

REVENUE

Revenue from continuing operations represents the aggregate of
rental income from property investment and interest income from loan
financing during the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as
follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

TEEFHERTEREGT ZEE
HR (&)

TREMT 2 ETERRE
BEERFHERRYEZ TR FE

EREErHENAERZEED
EREMEZAKEREN - H
REBN2023F3A31BZ AL
£3,307,920,000/% Jt (20224
3,020,650,000/87T) + J12E R I5
REZEHIBRNEEBETIZEEY
EEENSRAEAERFE 58

AEBFEENE - EEr AN E S
BMZAABHERMENEERBDNE
PR o BEME SR FEDE
RELEETERZAAZRE  IRE
EREEZEFAARREKIBENE
ZHA c BRI BRSBEREHBMET
BEER BRERELHEERWEZA
BRFEROKIEMEATEETZED
BB M 3k 1B BB 1 B RERR 2 s o

SE S

RERFEEEEKEEEEBEFAKRE
MEREZ2HERARKEERBE
ZHRIBIAMATE - AEBZEEED
W

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHBT FHET

(Restated)

(e E5)

Rental income AW A 24,408 30,528
Interest income from loan financing REEFRBE 2 F WA 2,786 6,553
27,194 37,081

Rental income and interest income from loan financing fall outside the
scope of HKFRS 15.

HeEWARKBERBE ZMEHA
WIEBREBBMBEHRELERNFE1GRZ
HBEMA -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. ZSEEH
Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being the RERIERPERBATEMS - 2
chief operating decision maker (“CODM?), for the purposes of resource WEAREB 2 FELERARE(ZTEL
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types ERAREBEDERITREH ZER - &
of goods delivered or services provided. This is also the basis of PFREMRNSIRERME 2B - It
organisation, whereby the management has chosen to organise the MRtz B2 EREEZR
Group around differences in products and services. BRAEEERRREZEZE -
The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 RIEE BN G HREERERLED
“Operating Segments” are: (a) property investment, (b) property Bl AEBEEREWOESR : (3)
development, (c) investment in securities and others and (d) loan MERE  OMEERE - O)BFHRHE
financing. HITE R (EREE -
Operation in the PRC, including the property investment, investment in EPBENER  2EDERE &3
securities and others and loan financing were classified as discontinued REMBEREFRRE  RAFER
operation in the current year. The segment information reported does PRBECHRIEKEER - RENDH
not include any amounts for the discontinued operation, which are EETERERIEKLEEBNEMNE
described in more detail in note 11. Prior year segment disclosures M1 HgETTEFANRE
have been represented to conform with the current year’s presentation. e AIFEENHEEENEINBAFE
25— -
Segment revenue and results DHEEBERES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from ERABBELKEEBRERDELMN
continuing operations by reportable segments: REBZEEEREENT -
For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 2023F3H31HILFE
Investment
Property Property  in securities Loan
investment  development and others financing  Consolidated
E
MERE MERRE  REARE EXNmE oy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TART TART FET
Segment revenue SREEE
External SR 24,408 = = 2,786 27,194
Segment profit (l0ss) AEEF (EE) 82,022 37,105 (26,505) (9,801) 82,821
Other gains Hipla 1,409
Other expenses Hibf% (303)
Finance costs BMEKAK (22,985)
Other income HigA 8,353
Share of result of a joint venture AME—HEEAREE 113
Unallocated corporate expenses ENRARIRY (12,087)
Profit before taxation from continuing 7 B #3HEE & £%
operations Rt AI & A 57,321

145



146

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2023FE3 A31H IFF[E

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZSDEEHE
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PHEEEBEREEE)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Restated) B 220220F3H31 I FE(KEF)
Investment
Property Property in securities Loan
investment  development and others financing  Consolidated
MERE MERR  REMKRE SEXEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR THT THET TR
(note) (note)
(P35) ()
Segment revenue HEERE
External AR 30,528 - 6,553 37,081
Segment profit (10ss) SEEF(BR) 60,144 (32,217) 13,082 114,356
Other losses HinEE (67)
Other expenses HF (231)
Finance costs BARA (20,485)
Other income HigA 9,303
Unallocated corporate expenses ENRARIRY (15,673)
Profit before taxation from REBELLER
continuing operations BRI AT AR 87,219

Note: Rental income generated from properties held for development for sale was
included in the property investment segment in prior year.

Segment profit (loss) represents the result from continuing operations
of each segment without allocation of other gains and losses, other
expenses, finance costs, other income and unallocated corporate
expenses. There are asymmetrical allocations to operating segments
because the Group allocates all fair value changes of financial assets
at FVTPL to segment of investment in securities and others without
allocating relevant financial instruments to those segment assets. This
is the measure to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

M EARELEERRMEELZASKAR
LFECBREENERESER -

REXBZEGE  ERREVEEM
W K E1E - X - BERA -
EMRARBESRAAMY - &5
BHEFETHENE  DEASAKE
DEMBRAFEFARGEZESHE
EZRFEEDHEZSFREMKRED
U RSEETEMIAZEZSS
BEE - UM ERAEEZETEL
BREE  ERERSERKRTH
P =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable segments:

e IR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

2EER ()

TEEEREE
BREREBNBAOMAEEZEE
RAamdEwmT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Segment assets DEERE
Continuing operations R SR
Property investment YIERE 1,410,317 1,372,715
Property development YIEER 3,319,725 3,135,323
Investment in securities and others BEREMIGE 76,736 117,266
Loan financing BEXEE 52,589 94,850
Total segment assets DEEEEBRE 4,859,367 4,720,154
Assets relating to discontinued operation ERIEREXER  EE 370,114 =
Unallocated financial assets at FVTPL EOREAFERA
BRZemEE 36,240 63,984
Right-of-use assets FREEE 1,228 3,770
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBEeEEY 354,002 82,099
Others HA 3,316 9,801
Consolidated assets TEBE 5,624,267 4,879,808
Segment liabilities PEEE
Continuing operations B SR
Property investment MERE 253,178 36,573
Property development YIEER 50,681 30,984
Investment in securities and others BHELHMIEE 103 98
Loan financing EX@mE 553 10,732
Total segment liabilities NiEa B 304,515 78,387
Secured bank borrowings BEMRITEE 1,871,919 1,662,307
Convertible notes AT AR E IR 159,949 66,911
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,260 3,830
Unallocated AN 51,458 53,186
Consolidated liabilities mEeERaE 2,389,101 1,864,621

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating

resources between segments:

HROBRREZERROERZERS
EmE :

. all assets are allocated to operating and reportable segments
other than assets relating to discontinued operation, unallocated
financial assets at FVTPL, right-of-use assets, cash and cash
equivalents and other assets.

. all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable segments
other than secured bank borrowings, liability portion of
convertible notes, lease liabilities and other liabilities.

. BRERIREXBZEE  BD

ERAVEFABGZZEBE
= ERAREE R MREF
EMREMEEN  HEEEDR

DEELENRERIE -

BAEEMRITEE - TRRERE
afERs  HEABREMEE
Sy B RBEARERERE
WM -
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e P HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2023FE3 A31H IFF[E

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEH(E
Other segment information HispEEHR
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment EESREABBLLEBTESHE
assets from continuing operations: HRDBREECSRE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 2023F3H31HILFE
Investment
Property Property in securities Loan
investment  development and others financing  Unallocated Total
FHR
NERE NERR HitRE ERE EAR &%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TER TER TER iR

Capital additions AXRE 346,547 437 2,839 = 125 349,948
Depreciation of property, plant and nE  BERREZTE
equipment 8 a1 - - 325 754
Gain on changes in fair value of RENEIATEEE
investment properties Wig 78,967 S S = = 78,967
Write-back on properties held for BIENERRNEL
development for sale, net BE3E = 40,394 = = - 40,394
Loss on revaluation of intangible assets ~ EFAEZ EfEER = = 5,847 = = 5,847
Impairment loss on intangible assets BREELRESSE = = 3,207 = - 3,207
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net — EWEF 2 FiEREE -
T8 - - - 8,663 - 8,663
Impairment loss on debt instruments at ~ RAFEFAEMZE
FVTOCI, net Wi BRIAZHE
B 5B = = 3,530 = = 3,530
Net loss on changes in fair value of BATEIABRL
financial assets at FVTPL tRHEEZATEED

BiEFE = = 4,531 = - 4,531
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEH(E
Other segment information (Continued) Hih 5 EE R (E)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Restated) B2 2022F3H31H I FEE ((EE7))
Investment
Property Property  in securities Loan
investment  development and others financing  Unallocated Total
NEEE NEER EftRE EFRE BN et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TRL T TEL TEL TEL

Capital additions BRRE 4,437 977 10,733 = 32 53,179
Depreciation of property, plant and nE  BERREZNE
equipment 8 309 - - 692 1,009
Gain on changes in fair value of REWZ A TEEY
investment properties 6= 48,188 - - - - 48,188
Write-back on properties held for BIENERRNEL
development for sale, net BE 58 = 79,919 = = = 79,919
Gain on settlement of loans recelvable by~ M B EERET 2
properties g - - - 35,846 = 35,846
Loss on revaluation of intangible assets ~ EFAEZ EfEEE - = 723 = = 723
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net ~ EWER ZRIEEE -
bk - - - 21,498 - 21,498
Impairment loss on debt instruments at AT EF AL 2E
FVTOCI, net Wiz BETAZHE
BB 58 - - 9,453 - - 9,453
Impairment loss on debt instrument at ~ REEBAK ARG E 2 B
amortised cost, net IEZAEER 58 - - 914 - = 914
Net loss on changes in fair value of BATE AR
financial assets at FVTPL tREEZATEED

B3 = = 16,126 = = 16,126
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2023FE3 A31H IFF[E

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6

Geographical information
The Group’s continuing operations are located in Hong Kong (place of
domicile) and Singapore.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on location of its

customers for segments and information about its non-current assets
(excluding those related to discontinued operation and deferred tax
assets and financial instruments) by geographical locations of the
assets are detailed below:

2EEH(E)

i35 & R
AEERERFBEEEE 2 EEBMR
&8 (Fre i) R -

AEBEREIREFPZEXBRAE
P D ERIREE 2 A IE S
DZIRDEETRBFED KR ILRSE
EBEENREERBAEERERT
B)ERMT

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REIMREFZ
B IERBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&xT FHET FET FHAT
(Restated)
(& =E51)
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (FTfEHD) 24,492 34,346 1,206,428 811,413
PRC ‘:F' - - - 387,783
Singapore hnig 2,702 2,735 137,041 183,680
27,194 37,081 1,343,469 1,382,876
Information about major customers FEEFZER

No revenue from customers contributed over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for both years.

MEFEAEEL L BHBBEXR
10% A EZ2EP -

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HfbA

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
(Restated)
(& E=5)

Continuing operations SERE R
Bank and other interest income IRITREMF B U A 3,037 3,562
Dividend income from listed investments REEWREZBREWA 2,598 5,546
Government grants (Note) U R B (B 3) 728 -
Written-off of other payable At FE A 32 8 1,732 =
Others HAh 258 195
8,353 9,303

Note: The Group recognised government grants of HK$728,000 in respect of Covid-
19-related subsidies, which are related to Employment Support Scheme
provided by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: nil).

MizE : EZE2023F3A31ALFE - AEER
BB RITERE BT A 8201978 i im &
IR R E L BT B EMmA R
T 728,000 7T (20224 : &) W IR T
gjj °
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEKkEESZHE
(@ Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) EBEESEHEEH
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company were as RABESMEEHIIAOT -
follows:
Executive directors (Note i) Independent non-executive directors (Note ii)
ATES(WE) BUFHTES (B
Kwong
Jimmy Wu Koon Yin
LailawKau ~ CheungTim  LuiYukChu  KanKaHon  LauSin Ming Welly Total
BER BRR 33 fES 89 L3o1 o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEn Tin FiEn FiEn Tién FiEn
Year ended 31 March 2023 HZ2023F35318
LFE
Fees E3ng = = = 155 155 155 465
Other emoluments Effte
- Salaries and other bengfits -HEREMEN 480 600 3,643 = = = 4723
- Contributions to retiement - BRI Bl S
benefts schemes 18 - 8 - - - 26
Total directors’ emoluments E5HenE 498 600 3,651 155 155 155 5214
Year ended 31 March 2022 HE202538318
LFE
Fees L0k - - - 155 195 195 465
Other emoluments Efebie
~ Salaries and other benefits - B RAMER 480 600 3457 = = = 4537
- Contributions to retirement - RIRERITBIR S
benefits schemes 18 - 18 - - - 36
Total directors' emoluments EZfenE 498 600 3475 155 155 155 5,038
Notes: PR EE -
[0) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their [0] LB RZATESHEAES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

BILEEBRAT 2023 T3k

services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group.

(i) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above

were for their services as directors of the Company.

BRARARAEEEEZEH L

RS ©

(i) ERBERZ B FATEFHE
RESERARRES 2R -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2023FE3 A31H IFF[E

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8"

(Continued)

(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included one (2022:
one) director whose emoluments was included above for both
years. The emoluments of the remaining four (2022: four) highest
paid individuals, not being directors, are as follows:

ESRESEZMHE (B

(b)

FHEEMEER
FEERLEZEEHEALTBE—
#Z(2022FF : —R)EF - WER
MEFEzMEEBIBFELX
A o BRI (20224F : [0E) -
TIESE  SHEATHIIM
T

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FiET

Salaries and other benefits e MEMBER 9,568 8,788
Contributions to retirement benefits BB R T IR

schemes 54 72

9,622 8,860

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HEZBMEN T ToIgEE :

2023 2022

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

EEAH EE A

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 721,500,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/ 7C 25,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001/ 7C£6,000,000/8 7T 1 =
4 4

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors and the other four (2022: four) highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. In addition, during both years,
no director waived or agree to waive any emoluments.

RREFE - NEBRE B
& TEF REAMME (20225 ¢
mE)EREMEz AL RN
ASRAE AR S B R 2 82 5 2k
ERF 2 FIE - o - REES
B R AEEREXRAEREL
g
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BILEEBRAT 2023 T3k

FINANCE COSTS 9. MEMK
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEEF S 71,743 30,227
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 58 107
Effective interest expense on convertible notes AR E 15 ~ BEEF| S5 X 6,833 12,639
78,634 42,973
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of W REEREEZ
qualifying assets KAER 2 £58 (55,649) (22,488)
22,985 20,485
TAXATION (CREDIT) CHARGE 10. BEGEERZ)HEX
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
(Restated)
(&eE51)
Continuing operations BECEER
The tax (credit) charge comprises: TRIE(HE ) X B 1E -
Current tax: WITRIA -
Hong Kong & 68 1,082
Other jurisdiction EMEDE 303 549
371 1,631
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BAFEGER T REMH
Hong Kong B (79) -
Other jurisdiction EMErE (27) 58
(106) 58
Deferred tax EERTE (1,914) (993)
(1,649) 696

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

SRR F 2 2 BB RIS TR B A A

JERBLIAEFI 2 16.5%:1 & -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2023FE3 A31H IFF[E

10.

TAXATION (CREDIT) CHARGE (Continued) 10.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates prevailing

in the relevant jurisdiction.

Taxation (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the results

BIE (ER) B > ()

H iy mA S| R 2 BIRTHREM RlE 2

TR H -

REEHAGRR) FHREFELE

from continuing operations per the consolidated statement of profit or ¥BiraEakEM2EKERE
loss and other comprehensive income as follows: B2EERNAT
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
(Restated)
(#=751)
Profit before taxation R A 2 A 57,321 87,219
Tax charge at the applicable rate of 16.5% 1238 FA 7 % 16.5% (20224 -
(2022: 16.5%) 16.5%):HE 2 HIER X 9,458 14,391
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax AR AZBIEZE
purposes (23,598) (19,745)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax ~ TEFIFI S 2 FHIBHZE
purposes 11,634 13,589
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTEBBCHIEZE 8,708 5,263
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences 1 i LA 1T 78 72 72 & AT #5540 5 85 1
previously not recognised =8 (6,665) (13,187)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences  REER AN E RS M= 2~
not recognised HErE 14 3,800
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously {3 i@ KR IEEE 2
not recognised HEgE (1,304) (3,524)
Tax effect of share of result of a joint venture A& R AIEZR D IHEE 2 A
za (19) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries EEREMANEZMB AR Z
operating in other jurisdictions BEREzR FE 195 59
(Over)underprovision in prior years BAFEGERTEEE (106) 58
Others HAth 34 8)
Taxation (credit) charge for the year REEHIRE L)X (1,649) 696
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11. BRLEKEER
Pursuant to a land resumption agreement signed on 5 October 2022 mﬁz]x;%;ﬁifaﬁyﬁﬁzozziwﬂsa
by the Group and the municipal government, the lands and buildings in BENWREHBZE - LR LT
Huzhou will be resumed by the municipal government. The investment FiEEYE R BEERFWE - )R20234F
properties have been reclassified as assets classified as held for sale 3HA31H - RAMECEF D ERIFE
as at 31 March 2023 (see note 17). Other than the property investment HEZEE(RBM17) - RIEEMEZE
business, the management has abandoned the investment in securities BN EEEBIVATENE E2023F34
and others and loan financing businesses in the PRC during the year STHIEFEXRIEAPBENESKEAM
ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, the operation in the PRC is KREURERREES - A - £
considered to be a discontinued operation. MEBHEEBERIEEEER -
The profit for the year from the discontinued operation is set out below. 5{5 BEERIETEESEBENEEEHIR
The comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ckiRERmRkEMEE NG R ‘:F‘ 5’9
and other comprehensive income have been restated to re-present the l:t RYFEEFEY - UEBPEHER
operation in the PRC as a discontinued operation. ) EDKRIEEEER -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(geE51)
Revenue (Note) &2 ()
Rental income HEWA 4,602 8,210
Management fee income BEBRA 10,807 18,007
Interest income from loan financing REBERBEZFEWA 503 1,177
15,912 27,394
Other income EApug A 1,472 161
Other gain and losses Ehlies R EBE (256) 89
Administrative expenses THAX (12,170) (4,659)
Gain on changes in fair value of investment REME L N TEEB KRS
properties 8,864 14,866
Net loss on changes in fair value of financial Tﬁﬂzﬁﬁ?ﬂk?ﬁéz(ﬁﬁﬂﬁéz
assets at fair value through profit or loss AT EZEEIRFE (5,392) (1,610)
Reversal of impairment loss on loan receivable &Y E ZUR (E 8518 2 B @ 221 37
Profit before taxation R 35 B & A 8,651 36,278
Taxation charge MIBFAX (4,049) (6,354)
Profit for the year NEFERF] 4,602 29,924
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

Note:

Rental income and interest income from loan financing fall outside the scope of HKFRS

15 and the revenue from contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March 2023

amounted to HK$10,807,000 (2022: HK$18,007,000).

Management fee income is recognised over time (i.e. the service period). The Group

receives monthly management service payments from customers one month in advance

under the contracts in the PRC. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient by

recognising revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to issue the invoice.

As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied

contracts is not disclosed.

11.

CRIEEERE &)
s -

HE R ARRBERBE ZF S RALIEBR
BEPBHREERES F2HEN - mkE MR
BEPAKM WAREE2023F3A3BILEFE
310,807,000/ 7T (20224F : 18,007,000/ 7T) °

EIREWABER R (ARBHDFER - RERS
BRI 2AR  ARE RAT—EAREP
RERESHERR BE& - ARERERAER
MERZ 5 DERAEEEERARENS
BHOWARE - RIEBBU B RMELE AIFE165%
MRTE  ABRBEIRKREL RHRARNRZS
{E1%

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBT FAET
(Restated)
(e =51)
Profit for the year from discontinued operation ZAFE KB 24 1E
has been arrived at after charging (crediting): &% % 275 E 5 2 1k
GTA) :
Staff costs, including retirement benefits costs B TEH @ SRR IKE
Fp 2 1,942 1,935
Auditors’ remuneration ZEAM S 255 210
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)2 « /= K& #E <
e 52 88
Net exchange (gain) loss fE 5 (W) 1835 (256) 89
Bank and other interest income RIT R EAMF B UA (1,421) (136)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the operation in the
PRC contributed a net cash outflow from operating activities of
approximately HK$38.2 million (2022: inflow of approximately HK$0.4
million) and a net cash inflow from investing activities of approximately
HK$253.0 million (2022: approximately HK$0.3 million) to the Group.

Cumulative amount of HK$40,624,000 relating to the assets classified
as held for sale has been recognised in other comprehensive income

and included in equity.

HE2023F3A3THIEFE - RFEEH
HEEEEBRER L FEL82EE
BT (2022F « EAK40EBTT) - &
BEESHRS AN FELN253.08 88T
(20224 : #I30B B T) FAER -

HOMARAGELEMBN RS
%840,624,000/8 T E R H b 2 E W = i
RIETARER -
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BLEEERADE 2023 FHR

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. REEER
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
(Restated)
(eE51)
Continuing operations BEREER
Profit for the year has been arrived at after REEBFMDIBRGTA) ¢
charging (crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 8(a)) E2<E (KizEs() 5,214 5,038
Other staff costs, including retirement benefits E Bt T & - B FEEKEF
costs B#N 22,773 20,925
Total staff costs (including directors’ BIKABHEBEESHS)
emoluments) 27,987 25,963
Auditors’ remuneration ZHE S 2,477 3,101
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% « B Mi&E 2 ITE 754 1,009
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELAEZTE 2,542 2,495
Gain on disposal of property, plant and REWE - BB REE 2 W
equipment - (382)
Loss on write-off of property, plant and Wi - BEREZBZEE
equipment - 36
Net exchange gain P 34, W 2 5 5E (897) (127)
DIVIDENDS 13. RS

No dividends were paid or proposed for the years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of

the reporting period.

HZE2023F R2022FE3A31RILEE
REINSHBZERE  AREHRD

RBEZBEMBRE

Iif5it
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BREF
For continuing operations HRISESEEK
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share from AABIRREEREFBELEEB 2
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company is based BRERREERNTIBEUTER
on the following data: FTHE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
(Restated)
(#=751)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the 7N FA% 3R fE 15 F & B 7|
Company 63,572 116,447
Less: Profit for the year from discontinued B REBEREKEEEBNEE
operation A7 (4,602) (29,924)
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings RREFELEER 2 BRER
per share from continuing operations AR E 2B 58,970 86,523
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEBTTERNTE
Interest on convertible notes (net of income AR I 2 F B (0B AT 15 HL)
tax) 1,894 12,639
Earnings for the purpose of diluted earnings LK BIFEL L £ 2 SRS
per share from continuing operations AR E 2 BF 60,864 99,162

Number of shares

gk - ¢E]
’000 ’000
F +
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st &R A ZF| M = 2 HEF 5
for the purpose of basic earnings per share LBRRHEE 1,693,741 931,458
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BeEETRRNTE -
Convertible notes ARRERE 216,077 389,120

Weighted average number of ordinary shares  Bi & B8 #:58 21 5 i 5 2 MN#EF4
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share & 3@ ID & H 1,909,818 1,320,578
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 14. SREF(E)
For continuing and discontinued operations HRABEREERRORIEREER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share from AARRRELERAEFELERBK
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to owners of the IFEEXEB s BRERREERTT)
Company is based on the following data: RBELATERGE -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings RERELRBN S 2B
per share 63,572 116,447
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEBELBRNEE
Interest on convertible notes (net of income AR EE 2 FE (?Df‘?ﬁﬁ S)
tax) 1,894 12,639
Eamings for the purpose of diluted earnings S EREEEFI M5 2 & F
per share 65,466 129,086

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both
basic and diluted eamnings per share.

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operation is HK0.27
cents per share (2022: HK3.21 cents per share) and diluted earnings
per share for the discontinued operation is HK0.24 cents per share
(2022: HK2.26 cents per share), based on the profit for the year from
the discontinued operation of HK$4,602,000 (2022: HK$29,924,000)
and the denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted
earnings per share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year end 31
March 2023 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s certain
convertible notes listed in note 27(a) as the exercise would result in an
increase in earnings per share.

FANSBR L ASREARETA
g BIER -

ERIEEEEBNERERRN AT
B0.277 1l (20224F : FRE3.2178(L) &
ERIEEEEBNEREERAN AT
§%0.247%8 AU (20226 : F%2.2671L) -
BEBRERIEEEEBRNRNFERNA
4,602,00078 7T (20224F : 29,924,000/
TL) ¢ AR ESCEEARS S B AR AR
SBRFHS

B ZE2023F3A31 B L FENERIEE
EJ?’F'JEI’JerﬁjERE““"Tfﬂ?i&ﬂﬁ&
27@FANHETAIREREE B
TSRS RANIEM
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERRE
Furniture,
Owned fixtures and Motor
properties equipment vehicles Total
Fh o HE
BEWE REE RE Fk)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET FET
COST AR
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4/81H 3,650 4,263 2,687 10,600
Exchange adjustments bE N - 15 30 45
Additions NE - 36 977 1,013
Write-off bk - (148) - (148)
Disposal HE = = (967) (967)
At 31 March 2022 202293 A31H 3,650 4,166 2,727 10,543
Exchange adjustments & H AR - 27) (56) (83)
Additions NE - 125 437 562
Write-off € = (343) = (343)
At 31 March 2023 M2023F3A31H 3,650 3,921 3,108 10,679
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2021 R2021F481H 155 3,468 1,334 4,957
Exchange adjustments R - 11 28 39
Provided for the year NEERME 133 491 473 1,097
Write-off 1 8 - (112) - (112
Disposal HE - = (418) (418)
At 31 March 2022 R202243A31H 288 3,858 1,417 5,563
Exchange adjustments HE 5, 3 B - (1) (54) (75)
Provided for the year NEFRE 133 171 502 806
Wirite-off sy = (343) - (343)
At 31 March 2023 7202343 H31H 421 3,665 1,865 5,951
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 March 2023 H2023F3H31H 3,229 256 1,243 4,728
At 31 March 2022 M202293A31H 3,362 308 1,310 4,980

EREEYNE  BERRBEEEE
BEROUERERBUA T Z A ERAF
HEt B E

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis after taking into account the residual value over the
following useful lives:

Owned properties Over the lease term BEMHE R 58
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 10 years B HREREZRE 3E10F
Motor vehicles 5 years B 5%
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16. EAEEE

Leased
properties
iEESEYES
HK$°000
FHExT
As at 31 March 2023 A2023F3H31H
Carrying amount BRMEE 1,228
As at 31 March 2022 A2022%3H31H
Carrying amount IREE 3,770
For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE2023FE3A31HLEEE
Depreciation charge e 2,542
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BZE2022F3A3MHLEFE
Depreciation charge e 2,495
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$’000
FBT FiHET
Total cash outflow for leases HAHR M BE 2,628 2,579
Additions to right-of-use assets (Note) FRAEAEEMPE) = 381

CRBEHE2022F3A31 B ILFEH

Note: Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases entered during M5E -

the year ended 31 March 2022.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

For both years, the Group leases offices for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed terms of 2 to 3 years (2022: 2
to 3 years) without extension and termination option. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

IR -

EREEEREHEONRZERE
RITE -

MEFEHE - ASREYEERQE
HITEE - RRIMELE R E T R
B2E3F (20224F  2E3F)  HRA
JEEAFOA% EE IR o F A IERB B (E
R REITHE - LR EALOERIL
AR BUEEARE - NEERAA
B E & TEE S B BRI SR HIAT o
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various residential, commercial and industrial
units under operating leases with rentals payable monthly, quarterly
or semi-annually. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1
to 3 years (2022: 1 to 10 years), with unilateral rights to extend the
lease beyond initial period held by lessees only. Majority of the lease
contracts contain market review clauses in the event the lessee
exercises the option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the property at the end of lease term.

17.

REM=

AEERBREBECEMAELESEEE
BMEMTESEN MELSHEESAE
A BFEXBFFRI - HOBET
BH1EIF (2022F : 1=210%F) * W H
BEFEAENBEAOCHEZEHAME
AFEE B FE B LASN o fA SR AFT
FREEEER - AARZHENERY
BEMISERGK

HRAMEROONEEERZ BN
BREEHE  #AREAEREANR
BmAZINERR - HOERAE2S
RERE R, SORTE AL BmE
BEBEMENEEE -

Completed

investment

properties

ERBBRENE

HK$°000

FET

FAIR VALUE NI

At 1 April 2021 M20216F4H1H 1,285,074
Exchange adjustments HE 54, 38 B 13,819
Additions NE 41,433
Disposal HE (19,517)
Reclassification to properties held for development for sale H#EF{EHERREYEEFHHIE (16,300)
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RiBRERZ A TEE M 63,054
At 31 March 2022 202293 A31H 1,367,563
Exchange adjustments AR (26,236)
Disposal & (68,150)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) W B B 8 2 R) (P 3E33) 346,547
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBERER 2 AFEL M 87,831
At 31 March 2023 720234 3A318 1,707,555
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BREWEE)
Analysed as: DA
HK$’000
FBT
At 31 March 2023 HR2023F3H31H
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,337,441
Assets classified as held for sale NERABELEZEE 370,114
1,707,555
At 31 March 2022 202293 H31H
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,367,563

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out on the respective dates by the following independent firms
of qualified professional property valuers not connected with the Group:

Location of
Name of valuer investment properties
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited Hong Kong
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited PRC
Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore

The unrealised gain relating to investment properties held at the end of
the reporting period of HK$81,055,000 (2022: gain of HK$61,837,000)
was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2023.

All investment properties of the Group are under the Level 3 fair value
hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
year.

REBZHREWHER2023F3A31H K
2022F3A31 A Z R FAETIRATEAR
EESERMEZBYAEREEME
HEMTRZSAETHEZEE
j: Sl

REMEZ
HEMTERE FRAEHE
BURET B ER AR B8
BRAT]
BURET B E TR
BRAT]
Edmund Tie & CIMIIE:
Company (SEA) Pte
Ltd

RREARFENRIGCEMEGRAD
7 8 38 U 2581,055,0007% 7T (20224 -
I 2561,837,000/8 1) A Bl £ 2023F 3
AS1H I FERIBRER -

AEEMBEREMEBNE=ZRRF
EER - AFRALEBEALELE=
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/e

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
the investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels

17. REWEGE)

TRINTIAEERENEZ AFE
ZEMLER  FEAZEHERER
BA) - URBBEAZTERIZEE
SRR FEER(FEI1EEIR) 2R FE

1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value FTE
measurements is observable.
Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REBEEZRENE ATFER3ASIA NFEZE RBEFERIZHA EATABRHA HRE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET
Classified as non-current
assets
PERFRDEE
Commercial units in 383,200 136,900  Level3 Direct comparison method - Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
Hong Kong based on market market direct comparables square foot, the higher the
observable transactions of and taking into account of fair value
similar properties and character, location and other
adjusted to reflect the individual factors such as road
locations and conditions of  frontage, size of property, efc.,
the subject property which is ranged from
HK$89,744 to
HK$381,714 (2022:
HK$60,350 to HK$310,924)
per square foot
REBBREN B HELRE - ERAE BYHREE RRMHEE STHFREERR ATHE
NEITHIBESSR  AHENER UEEME B8
SREHURMAENE,  WE LENAREMER
frgRER REMEEES D%

ANE - FFARNT
80,744 TLE81,T14E T
(2020% : 60,350BLE
310,924%7T)
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWXEE)
Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REBRECRENE RYER3ASMH NTEZR RELERIEGA ERRNGEEE DN HEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERL

Classified as non-current
assets (Continued)

PERFRBEEE

Commercial units in 92,500 - Llewel3 Income approach - term yield ~ Term yield, taking into account  The higher the term yield, the
Hong Kong (Continued) of yield generated by market lower the fair value
average selling price and
the market average rental
from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the
conditions of the building,
which is 2.7%
REBHEEN(B) E3 WNE - EBE Tl ZRANENE,  EHMERS
mETIEERTH T DFERE
BeEE ME kR
RENMERZAE B
2.1%

= reversionary yield Reversionary yield, takinginto ~ The higher the reversionary
account of yield generated by yield, the lower the fair
market average selling price value
and the market average rental
from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the
risk associated with the future
rental, which is 2.7%

- EHE BRlE ZRALEYEZ ERNERR ATERE
mETHEBRMETH
BezWERRERRES
Rl ZRE - R2.T%

= monthly term rental Monthly term rental for each The higher the monthly term
unitis derived from the rental rate, the higher the

average of the rental as stated  fair value
in the existing rental
agreements, which is ranged

from HK$27.6 to HK$104.8
per square foot

-BREBHS BRENGATHREIRE SATHESAR ATHE
RERAMG 2 THEE i

fit - §FARNTA
A EETEIUBET
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWHE(E)
Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REBRRCRENE ATER3ASIH ATESER MESERIEBEA EXTABEBA HRE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAL
Classified as non-current
assets (Continued)
PEAFRDEE(B)

- reversionary market unit rate - Reversionary market unitrate  The higher the reversionary
for each unit is compared with ~ market unit rate, the higher
direct market comparables the fair value
and taking into account of
character, location and
other individual factor, which
is from HK$24 to HK$118
per square foot

-EETHELER ZEzERTRENER - EBETRENERDER 2
HTSERNLENERE  TEAR
B WEEMERH
fr BN REMERIRE -

FYARRUBTENGET
Industrial units in Hong Kong 76,400 68,300  Level3 Direct comparison method - Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
based on market market direct comparables square foot, the higher the
observable transactions of and taking into account of fair value
similar properties and character, location and other
adjusted to reflect the individual factors such as size
locations and conditions of ~ of property etc., which is
the subject property ranged from HK$4,457 to
HK$5,508 (2022: HK$4,008
to HK$4,852) per square foot
REBIEEN £3h ERNEE - BRRE BYRREE RAMHEE STHREERR ATHE
NEITHEAIBERSR  AHEMEH TZE e
EREARMARNEZ  WE LENREMER
frgRER REMEHES D%

ANE BEARNT
4,457 AT 25,5085
(2020% : 4,0081LE
4,852 7T)
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWXEE)
Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REBRECRENE NTER3ASIA NTEZR RELERIEGA ERRNGEEE DN HRE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TERL
Classified as non-current
assets (Continued)
PERERDEE(R)
Industrial-office units in 576,000 519,200  Level3 Income approach Term yield, taking into account  The higher the term yield, the
Hong Kong - term yield of yield generated by market lower the fair value

average selling price and
the market average rental
from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the
conditions of the building,
whichis 2.6% (2022: 2.7%)
THhE ZRALENE.  EPkERS

)

RERIZBRZERN EXE WNE - B8k

s HIER RS APERE
BeEL 7 aRRM

BEWERZEE B
2.6% (2022 : 2.7%)

- reversionary yield

Reversionary yield, taking into
account of yield generated
by market average selling
price and the market
average rental from
comparable properties and

adjustment to reflect the risk

associated with the future
rental, which is 2.6%
(2022: 2.7%)

ESkE  ZEALENEZ

s HIER RS

Bz hERkRMARES

BBz A% - B2.6%
(2022 %F : 2.7%)

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair
value

EEkaam  ATERE
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs
REBRRCRENE NTER3ASMH DTESR RELERIEBA
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TERL

17. REWE(E)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXFTREBA

Sensitivity
HRE

Classified as non-current
assets (Continued)
AEBERBEEE)

= monthly term rental

-BATHEE

Monthly term rental for each
unitis derived from the
average of the rental as stated
in the existing rental
agreements, which is ranged
from HK$9.1 to HK$25.1
(2022: HK$13.2 to HK$19.5)
per square foot

BRSNS ATHES HRE
BEROMSIZFIRE
B BEARN 6
9IBTELIBT
(0022 : 13272
19.5%7)

- reversionary market unit rate - Reversionary market unit rate

-BRMBEMER

for each unit is compared with
direct market comparables
and taking into account of
character, location and
other individual factor, which
is HK$7,200 (2022:
HK$6,420) per square foot
Xz EBRTISEMEL
EHGEEALRNERE
B WEEMERH
fEAREMBENEE -
FY¥ARAET 20087
(2002% : 6,420% 1)

The higher the monthly term
rental rate, the higher the
fair value

BATHELER AVE
am

The higher the reversionary
market unit rate, the higher
the fair value

EETRENLERAS 2
FER®
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REYHXGE)

Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant

held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity

REBRECRENE NTER3ASIA NTEZR RELERIEGA ERRNGEEE DN HRE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TAL
Classified as non-current
assets (Continued)

PEAFRDEE (@)

Residential units in Hong Kong 32,300 31,800  Level3 Direct comparison method - Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
based on market market direct comparables square foot, the higher the
observable transactions of and taking into account of fair value
similar properties and character, location, age and
adjusted to reflect the other individual factors, which
locations and conditions of i ranged from HK$9,014 to
the subject property HK$20,562 (2022: HK$8,078

to HK$18,222) per square
foot

REBEEENL E3 ERNEE - RRRE BYHREE RAMHEE STAREERR ATHE
NECTHEIBESSR  ARBNER UEEWE A
SRELURMEENE,  WHONE - ERIREM
g RER @REE  §FHRNT

9,014 T £20,562/8 T
(00205 : 8,078 E
18,022%7)
Residential units in Singapore 137,041 183,680  Level3 Direct comparison method-  Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
(Note i) based on market market direct comparables square foot, the higher the
observable transactions of and taking into account of fair value
similar properties and character, location and other
adjusted to reflect the individual factors such as
locations and conditions of  road frontage, size of
the subject property property, etc., which is
ranged from HK$21,971 to
HK$25,429 (2022:
HK$20,966 to HK$22,563)
per square foot

RIS EEEN (B E3 ERNEE - ERRE BYHREE RAMHEE STHREERR ATHE
NEITHEABRERSR  AHEMEH TZE i
SRELRREENE,  WE LENREMER
B RER REMGEER  WE

ANE BEARNT
21 71T 25,4207 T
(2020% : 20966BTLE
22,563%7T)
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWHE(B)

Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant

held by the Group 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity

REBEECRENE ATER3ASIA NFESR RBEFERIZ&A EXTABEBA HRE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn TETL
Classified as non-current
assets (Continued)

AEAFRBEEE)

Industrial units in the PRC - (Note i) 387,683 Level3 Income capitalisation of net  Capitalisation rate, which is 8%  The higher the capitalisation
income with provisions for per annum rate, the lower the fair
reversionary income value
potential

R TEE - (H¥aEii) B RRAFEHEZRA BRE - §FER8% ERERR  RTERE
ERMOEIREE WA
ENHRER

Monthly rental rate, takinginto  The higher the monthly rental
account of market rate, the higher the fair
comparables, which is value
Renminbi (‘RMB”) 11.5 per
square metre

GRAME  ZEMRILESN SAREARS ATERS
BH - §THAR
ARE(TARED 157

Land with attached structure 40,000 40,000  Level3 Direct comparison method - Price per square foot, using The higher the price per

in Hong Kong based on market market direct comparables square foot, the higher the
observable transactions of and taking into account of fair value
similar properties and character, location, age and
adjusted to reflect the other individual factors, which
locations and conditions of is ranged from HK$1,349 to
the subject property HK$1,600 (2022: HK$1,349
to HK$1,600) per square foot

REBNBRELTH B HELRE - ERAE BYARER RATSER BTIAREERS ATHE
NEZTHIBESSR  ALENER UEEMEX B8
SRELRMARNE,  WEOUE BRIREM
frERER ERREZ  §FARNT

1,349 T E 1,600 BT
(20205 : 1 349B T E
1,600%7T)
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWMEGE)
Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REBRECRENE RYER3ASMH NTEZR RELERIEGA ERRNGEEE DN HEE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERL

Classified as held-for-sale

PERBELE
Industrial units in the PRC 370,114 - Level3 Depreciated replacement Replacement cost per square  The higher the replacement
(Note ii) cost approach metre, which is ranged from cost per square metre, the
RMB1,800 to RMB1,850 per higher the fair value
square metre
RBETEEN (M i) E=R REEERAE BYAREENA NTAE BTHKEERAHR 2
TARARE1800TZAR  THEER
#1,8507
Depreciation rate, which is The higher the depreciation
ranged from 3.6% to 14.1% rate, the lower the fair
value

FEE NER36%E4I%  FHEXHS  ATEHE

1,707,555 1,367,563
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(il

On 31 March 20283, the management of the Group offered an option to an
independent third party (the “Purchaser”) to purchase an investment property
located in Singapore with the fair value of Singapore dollars (“SGD”) 11,500,000
(equivalent to HK$67,494,000, the offer has not been mutually agreed by the
Purchaser before 31 March 2023. On 14 April 2023, the Purchaser signed
the option to purchase agreement and exercised the option granted by the
Group and agreed to purchase the investment property at a total consideration
of SGD13,009,000 (equivalent to HK$76,752,000). The disposal is expected
to be completed in July 2023. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 14 April 2023.

The assets classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2023 represented lands
and buildings in Huzhou to be resumed by the municipal government at a total
consideration RMB386,982,000 (equivalent to HK$439,752,000) pursuant to a
land resumption agreement signed on 5 October 2022. As at 31 March 2023,
an amount of RMB199,586,000 (equivalent to HK$226,802,000) has been
received by the Group as deposit received. EIT of RMB22,373,000 (equivalent
to HK$25,424,000) has been prepaid by the Group. The transaction is
expected to be completed within twelve months from the date of classification,
accordingly, the investment properties have been reclassified to assets
classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2023.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 March 2023, except for the industrial properties amounted to
HK$370,114,000 (2022: HK$387,683,000) and the land with attached
structure amounted to HK$40,000,000 (2022: HK$40,000,000), all
of the Group’s investment properties have been pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group.

17.

REW=XGE)

Wi

(i

#2023F3A31A ' AEBMEBERE R —
EBYE=F(EFDRTFEEMRIT
Nk e — B A FE 511,500,000 il
7o (Tt ) (& 7 4967,494,00078
TRIREMERRERE - R20234F3
AB1BAT » B MARZELEREE
WE » R2023F4 148 - EHEFR
EREERRLITEAEER FHRE
- R B E DA KA E13,009,0005 Hn i
JL(HERT76,752,000/8 L) BB EY
¥ o ZHEFHEEHEN2023F7 A%
B o FIEE2H AR R HEB20235F4
A14BAHRE -

o

°

20233 A3 BN EARIEHEZ
BEREBETBRABRENR2022F10A8
SAFTMLKFEHEABREAR
#£386,982,0007T (18 & 439,752,000
P 7T W B BB ON T B 3 R AR o B
2023%F3A31H - AEBEBUMESEA
R #190,586,0007T (16 226,802,000
BITIEARBRIES - AEEEEND
¥F1EHRARE22,373,0007T (HHER
25,424,000 7T) © Z X 5 TEBBER D
BAMEFTBARTER - At - R
2023%F3A31H - RAMECEFNHEA
RIBELEZEE -

REEREME L ATER  WEZ
REBERRABEEBIDERR ZER

e

M2023F3A31H  BREEAA
370,114,000 7L 2 T ¥ ¥ 3% (2022
4 : 387,683,000/% 7T) & 40,000,000
BT oM BREE LM (2022F
40,000,000 7T) * NEBRBREY
EEEAUMEBR T AEEHN G KT
RITRLE o
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LOANS RECEIVABLE 18. EWER
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET T
Fixed-rate loans receivable TE B BB E R 105,730 141,620
Less: Impairment allowance B ORERE (53,480) (47,239)
52,250 94,381

Analysed as: DA

Current assets MEEE 38,586 55,040
Non-current assets SEmBIEE 13,664 39,341
52,250 94,381
Secured HER 30,661 65,463
Unsecured IR 21,589 28,918
52,250 94,381

No aged analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the aged analysis does not give additional value in view of
the nature of business of loan financing.

At 31 March 2023, the range of interest rate on the Group’s loans
receivable is 0% to 8% (2022: 4% to 8%) per annum.

Impairment assessment
Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the potential
borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits granted to each
borrower. The credit limits attributed to the borrowers are reviewed by
the management regularly.

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable amounting to HK$52,250,000 at 31 March 2023 (2022:
HK$94,381,000). At 31 March 2023, allowance for loans receivable
amounted to HK$53,480,000 (2022: HK$47,239,000). Except for those
credit-impaired loans receivable, there are no loans receivable which
are past due at the end of the reporting period.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 37.

BAANBEERR  REXMEES
MEMmME  RE&EDTAIREHEIE
1B MRERE DT -

MR2023F3A31H * AEBEZEWERK
FFERENT0%EE%(20225F @ 4%E
8%) °

BB R Al

ERHERTINRER - AEEFE
BEBRAZGEEARREBERTSE
UERAZEER - EEEEHRN
BERAZIEER -

EEEERELN2023F3A31H
fB{E /452,250,000 7T (20224 :
94,381,000 L)  EWEREEHE
& o R2023F3A31H © ERER
1% 553,480,000 7T (20224 -
47,239,000/ 7T) ° BRAEEERER
EREZRI  RREHRSESI
FEUE K ©

BB R FF BB REST
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18. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

18. EBWENRGE

1B FTAh ()

The movement of impairment allowance for loans receivable is as

ERESRERBZEBHMNT

follows:
Lifetime
ECL-
12mECL  credit-impaired Total
128 AFE 5 HRERHEE
FEFE FBR-GERE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TR
At 1 April 2021 R2021%F481H 2,400 59,058 61,458
Changes due to loans receivable recognised as at -~ #20214F3A31 AR E R EMER
31 March 2021: e
- Settled by properties (Note i) - LA A (& (35 = (35,680) (35,680)
- Net remeasurement of ECL (Note i) -BHEEBBCENNETE
CED) (185) 21,552 21,367
New loans granted (Note iii BB E R (R i) 94 = 94
At 31 March 2022 12002537318 2,309 44,930 47,039
Changes due to loans receivable recognised asat #2022 3A31 BN E R EME R
31 March 2022: if &
- Repayment (Note iv and v) - B EVRY) (1,137) (6,799) (7,936)
~ Written off (Note v) - sl (i) - (2,201) (2,201)
- Net remeasurement of ECL (Note ii -BHEEBBZEMIETE
(BitaTi) 298 16,000 16,298
New loans granted (Note iii B 893 E R (B i) 80 - 80
At 31 March 2023 12023438318 1,550 51,930 53,480
Notes: B

()

(i)

)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the unsecured loans receivable with
aggregated gross carrying amount of HK$38,750,000 have been further
impaired by HK$8,649,000. Subsequently, the loans receivable and the relevant
interest receivable of HK$1,084,000 have been settled by properties with fair
value of HK$40,000,000, which constituted a non-cash transaction and resulted
in a gain on settlement of loans receivable by properties of HK$35,846,000,
resulting in a reversal of impairment loss of HK$35,680,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the net impairment loss of
HK$16,298,000 (2022: HK$21,367,000) was related to loans receivable with
gross carrying amount of HK$103,230,000 (2022: HK$159,370,000), including
the loans receivable of nil (2022: HK$38,750,000) mentioned in Note (i). Details
of the credit-impaired loans receivable are set out in note 37(b).

The impairment loss of HK$80,000 (2022: HK$94,000) was related to loans
receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$2,500,000 (2022: HK$5,000,000)
which are newly granted during the year ended 31 March 2023.

The reversal of impairment loss of HK$6,799,000 was related to credit-impaired
loans receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$9,000,000, of which
HK$6,799,000 has been repaid and HK$2,201,000 written off during the year
ended 31 March 2023.

The reversal of impairment loss of HK$1,137,000 was related to loan receivable
under 12m ECL with gross carrying HK$27,472,000 which has been fully repaid
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

(i) HZE202243A31HILFE  REE
B4 5t /438,750,000 7T H) 4 K # fE
B R F R — 2R {E8,649,000/%
TT o Hig - EUE R XA R EK A E
1,084,000/ 7T 2 A A F {&{& 40,000,000
BITOYMEBE  BRIBRERZH I
RENEEUAYBEBERERERZ K
#235,846,000%8 7T + HEURE 1R E
35,680,000/ 7T, ©

(ii) HZE2023F3A31AILFE « FRIER
816,298,000/ 7T (20224 : 21,367,000
7 or) EER 42 %8 £103,230,0008 7T
(20224 : 159,370,000/ 7T) K E L &
REW - BREMREOMETRKER
(20224 : 38,750,000/ 7T) - E{EEE
RIEZ U B R EF B MI 37 (D) ©

(i) 3B E518.80,0007% 7T, (20224F : 94,000
HBIT) BB E2023F3A31B LFEEH
¥ 79 B T 488 52,500,0005% 75 (2022
4 : 5,000,000/ T K FEIRE AR -

(iv) SR (B 518 % 216,799,000 7T LA BR T 48 48
/39,000,000 TM1E X BRKERE
B - H 6,799,000 7T % 2,201,0007
TLERBZE2023F3A31H ILFEEE
s

) HZE2023F3A31AILEFE - REEIE
#[51,137,000/ L 21218 A B HREE
518 7 BRE 445827 ,472,0007% 7T &) FE UL
BB EREZE2023F3A3181E
FEREEE -
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BREE
Crypto assets
mE&E
HK$°000
FET

COST OR REVALUED AMOUNT RARELSEE

At 1 April 2021 R2021F4/81H -
Additions NE 10,733
Loss on revaluation EHEE (723)
Disposal & (3,447)
At 31 March 2022 R202243A31H 6,563
Exchange adjustments P 5, 8 53
Additions NE 2,839
Disposal & (401)
Loss on revaluation HHEE (5,847)
Impairment loss BIEEE (3,207)

At 31 March 2023

7202343 H31H

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s crypto assets were carried at a
revalued amount of HK$6,563,000 being the fair value of the crypto
assets determined by reference to their market price. If the crypto
assets of the Group had not been revalued, they would have been
included in these consolidated financial statements at historical cost
and their carrying amounts would have been HK$7,397,000 as at 31
March 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the crypto assets trading
platform went into bankruptcy and the Group fully impaired the
remaining crypto assets.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years ended
31 March 2023 and 2022.

M2022%43A31H AEBZNERE
E 5 7B5%6,563,0007T ' e RBELEER
FIBR - BIMBEESLRBREAMEETZ
ANEE - EAEEZINREEAKE
iy + HASRE LA AT ARNERE B 75
WK ER2022%43A31AMEREE
/7,397,000 7T ©

HZE2023F3A3IBHILFE - MBEE
RBEBWE  AEEHFKNEE
EXEERE -

HE2023F N2022F3A31HMEE
AR A B EIRAIER
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20. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 20. BAVEFAEMEERR Z2EH
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME IH
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

ETERE  EAFE
REBSOGI LT 2 EH
#FE - BEFHENTH
6.50% Z9.50% (20224 :
6.92%%E9.50%) * BIHIA
202244 A 11 B 20254
7118 (20224 : 20224
4F11AE20224%7 A28H)

Listed investments, at fair value:

Debt securities listed in Hong Kong or
overseas with fixed interests ranging from
6.50% to 9.50% (2022: 6.92% to 9.50%)
per annum and maturity dates ranging
from 11 April 2022 to 11 July 2025 (2022:
11 April 2022 to 28 July 2022) (Note)

(Bt 53) 1,095 2,408
Analysed as: DA
Current assets mENE E 624 2,408
Non-current assets ERBEE 471 =
1,095 2,408
Note: As at 31 March 2023, included in the balance is an amount of HK$624,000 M3k © HR2023F3A31H  BEFAEHER

which is past due as at reporting date.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, debt instruments at FVTOCI are
stated at fair values which were determined based on the quoted
market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange or an overseas
recognised stock exchange.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds with the credit loss
allowance measured on 12m ECL basis when the credit risk on financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition. For
those credit-impaired bonds, credit loss allowance is measured using
lifetime ECL. The Group assesses the ECL for debt instruments at
FVTOCI by reference to credit rating of the bond investment by rating
agencies, macroeconomic factors affecting the respective industry for
each issuer, corporate historical default and loss rate and exposure of
default of each bond investment.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, credit loss allowance of
HK$3,530,000 (2022: HK$9,453,000) was recognised in profit or loss.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 37.
All debt instruments at FVTOCI are denominated in United States

dollars (“USD”), a currency other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities, at the end of the reporting period.

= B IR M H3#9624,000 7T -

MR20234F 20224 3A31H  IZAF
Eff \EHth2EME 2 EHTAEEZRR
B 51 BR T AR 45 B8t 32 B 28 AN R AT
BERX G MB T EEE -

BAFEAAEMMEEKRSE ZERT
AR1I2EAEHEEBEELEANS
FEEEREZ LTES  BBEYHK
BRUARESBRT A ZEER R E
Eigm - HREERENES - 8
BREEGNABREBNNEREES
BERtE - REESZ TR BLIE
FREZEEFR HERBITAS
BUTEZEBERRE  C¥FELE
HERBERLREEFREEDHRE
o AHEERATEFAEMEERS
ZEBIAZABEEES -

HZE2023F3A31HIEHEE
3,580,000 L2 EEBEREDRIE
= A TERR (20224F : 9,453,000/ 7L) °

R BRI 537

RE|EHR - AR LFEF A
2ENREZEBTAUEEEEES
M EE AN BB ([T D
-
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DEBT INSTRUMENT AT AMORTISED COST 21. REENLNTELEBIA
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiBT FHET

Unlisted debt instrument: FEEMEBHLTA :

Fixed-rate unsecured promissory note & 7E | = E AR A R IR 23,490 23,340
Less: Impairment allowance B R ERE (914) (914)
22,576 22,426

In May 2021, the Group and Lion Best Global Limited (the “Issuer”),
an independent third party incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
entered into a promissory note agreement with principal amount of
USD3,000,000 which carries interest at 8% per annum and will be fully
repayable on the maturity date of 25 September 2025. At 31 March
2023, the carrying amount of the promissory note was HK$22,576,000
(2022: HK$22,426,000).

The promissory note is measured at amortised cost since the
Group’s business model is to hold the debt instrument for collection
of contractual cash flows, and the cash flows represented solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
The Issuer is operating in hotel business industry. The Group assesses
the ECL with reference to the internal credit rating of the issuer
assigned by the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, credit loss allowance of nil
(2022: HK$914,000) was recognised in profit or loss.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 37.

M20214578 » N&EEELion Best
Global Limited ([31T A (—HER KB
HRRBESEMALNBIE=H)T
AR ZE R - ANE % A3,000,000
EIT - EF R A8%I HE2025%9 A
25BB|HIR 25888 - H202343 A
318 - AEKREEA22,576,0007
7T (20224 : 22,426,000/8TT) °

HRAREREZSEBIAZER
BREABRREHNRESREMFE -
MELBBRIEBHERAGE  BRS
REERRASERAEELSHE
2R BITALCERBEEY - A%
B2E#HITAZABEEFLRTEE
HEEEBE -

HZE202343A31B ILEEDNE
HIEREEEBEE AT (2022F -
914,000 7T) °

AERHE BRI ST
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22.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for development for sale are situated in
Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2023, HK$1,475,219,000 (2022: HK$913,000,000) of
properties held for development for sale are expected to be completed
within twelve months after the end of the reporting period, while the
rest are expected to be completed more than twelve months after the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group performed assessment of
net realisable value on its properties held for development for sale with
reference to valuations made by independent qualified professional
property valuers not connected with the Group. The valuations were
arrived at by using the residual method. As at 31 March 2023, there
was an increase in the estimated net realisable value of the properties
held for development for sale which were written down in prior years,
a net write-back of HK$40,394,000 (2022: HK$79,919,000) was
recognised in profit or loss due to the gradual recovery of property
market from Covid-19 pandemic in both years.

22.

FEHERRME

AEEZHEHERRYMEDURE
e

M2023%FE3/31H * 1,475,219,0007
7L (20224 : 913,000,000 7T) Z #HE
HERRYMERPRREHRI2@A
WFERK - REERITEEIR RS HIRE
BH=EAEK -

R20234F 202243 A31H » A&EH
ERFIELERRMELETAIZERTF
BFEN2ERAEEREREZE
NABRBEMEGBEMZGEE - %
SHEDRESHEEISE - ARME
FE FBHMEMSH2019BRES
REBMERE  RBTFERENS
EHEERYEN BT TSR FEE
hn - R2023F3A31 B EBRAERRE
B B 7$5840,394,00078 7t (20224 :
79,919,000/ 7T) °

Analysis of leasehold lands component HET Do

HK$°000

FET

As at 31 March 2023 R2023%F3H31H
Carrying amount BRmEE 3,036,573
As at 31 March 2022 A2022%3H31H
Carrying amount AREE 2,934,702
For the year ended 31 March 2023 B E2023F3A31HLEEE
Operating cash outflows KRR SR (65,391)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BZE2022F3A31HILEFE
Operating cash outflows KBRS R (100,756)
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 22, BHELERRWEGE)
(Continued)
Analysis of leasehold lands component (Continued) HEL I D 27 (@&
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FiHET
Additions 0 65,391 100,756
Write-back B[ 36,480 79,919

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The residual
values are determined as the estimated disposal value of the leasehold
land component. No depreciation charge is made on the leasehold
lands taking into account the estimated residual values as at 31 March
2023 and 2022.

All properties held for development for sale have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group in both years.

AELOEREEEARANRETMNER
STMEMEARERLE - FHRE
ERTAHET TS NEFEERE
B - ZEF|20234F £20224F3H31H
BT RIRE - REHEE TR
E8H-

AEEMEFE ZRHIEHEERDE
HE RERRAERRITEES -

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BEFRHMEWFIE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Trade receivables from contracts with REEHRFZEZEWIE
customers - 507
Lease receivables FEWHEERIEA 816 1,440
Prepayments TERTRIE 26,547 675
Interest receivable PR B 209 183
Staff loans (Note i) BT ERFEED 9,000 =
Deposit b 1,091 1,559
Other receivables o Ath R W R IE 10,469 10,515
Refundable stamp duty (Note ii) PR ENFERR (BT i) = 103,160
48,132 118,039
Notes: BiE -

(0] During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group entered into several loan
agreements with certain staff. Pursuant to the loan agreements, the staff loans
were unsecured with fixed interest rate at 2% per annum and repayable on
demand.

(ii) In accordance with the provisions of the Hong Kong Stamp Duty Ordinance,
the Group would apply for refund of the stamp duty paid when the property
redevelopment project commenced. The stamp duty of HK$103,160,000 was
fully refunded to the Group during the year ended 31 March 2023.

(i

REE2023F3ASTIHILEFE - A%EH
BETRTITVHEOERGE - REE
K - BETERREIER - BEEFF
2% » RENEARIFR o

RBEBEIETOEOIZGR - EVEE
BEERGE  AEBESREFREEXN
E7E#103,160,000/ 7T 2 7202343 A
S1ALFERERETALE -
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. EZKHEMEWRFIEGE)
The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants in property AEBEWRBELTRYERENEZ
investment segment. The aged analysis of trade receivables and lease THAPRIRE - IRBERZERH BEF5E
receivables, based on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting WHEREREEFRENRRERR S
period is as follows: BRECAITIAT -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
0 — 60 days 0-60H 562 1,672
61— 90 days 61 -90H 109 -
91 — 120 days 91 - 120H 145 275
816 1,947
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are B 5 M E A BRI 2 RERT h B
set out in note 37. HAMIFEST ©
No credit loss allowance has been recognised on the trade and other HRARARESRAEZRNEMTR
receivables as the directors of the Company consider that the amount B WERE S MNHMERRERE
is immaterial. BEEEgE -
24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 24, BRAFETABRZEREE
OR LOSS
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHET
Listed investments, at fair value: FHRE - BRATE
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong and -REBLEE EMBRAES
United States (Note i) Gz 23,914 52,818
Unlisted investments, at fair value: ELMEE BRAFE:
- Unlisted securities (Note ii) - 3k LT RE A (B =L 6,264 =
- Investment in limited partnership (Note iii) - BIRE BIRE (M i) 28,230 27,087
~ Life insurance policies (Note iv) - AR E (Mt 5Eiv) 14,436 13,718
~ Film right investment (Note v) - BB E (FisEy) 15,504 15,756
- Principal protected deposits (Note vi) — RATF 3R (B 5Evi) = 27,171
- Investment funds (Note vii) - & ES (I Evi) = 7,339
- Equity-linked notes (Note viii) - R =B e 52 4% (B S viii) = 5,020
88,348 148,909
Analysed as: aEIv=
Current assets MEEE 39,418 105,635
Non-current assets ERBEE 48,930 43,274

88,348 148,909
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 24.
OR LOSS (Continued)

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

BAVEFARSEZERMEER

AEERZAVTEFABENEREE
NHEBEEBERNEERAINEE
FHESZIT

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

usD Ev 55,428 43,357

RMB AR 15,504 15,756
Notes: B E

[0] The fair values of the listed equity securities are determined based on the [0) ETRAEFE R FEERIBE K

quoted market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange or an overseas

recognised stock exchange.

(ii) In March 2023, the Group invested a minority stake of an unlisted investment
holding company which holds an entity with subsidiaries engaged in beverage
business in the PRC at a consideration of USD800,000 (equivalent to
HK$6,264,000).

(iii) The amount as at 31 March 2023 represented HK$28,230,000 (2022:
HK$27,087,000) for interest in a limited partnership (the “Limited Partnership”)

as a limited partner.

The interest in the Limited Partnership is recognised as follows:

TBHNRR] EHR 5 TS AT (E

o

oo

(i) R202343 8 » A& ELA800,0003 7T
(1HE 726,264,000 )18 E T —KIkE L
TIRERER AR DA - ZAEE
EHEFBREYEREBOHB AR

-

(iil M2023%F3A318 - EREE([ERE
#)4 % 4528,230,000/8 JT (20224 :
27,087,000 T tEABRE B ARE

= e

HERBBNIRERRMOT

HK$’000

FHERT

At 1 April 2021 R2021F4 418 12,089
Additions En 6,145
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss AR ERRRIESTER 8,770
Exchange adjustments [ 5 A% 83
At 31 March 2022 R20229F3A31H 27,087
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss AR ERRRIBETER 971
Exchange adjustments [ 5, A% 172
At 31 March 2023 K2023F3H31H 28,230
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24,

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

)

)

(vii

In May 2021, Goldchamp International Limited (“Goldchamp”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into life insurance policies with an
insurance company to insure Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, and
Mr. Koon Wing Yee, general manager of the Company. Under the policies,
Goldchamp is the beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum is
USD2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,480,000). Goldchamp is required to pay
an upfront deposit of USD2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,480,000) including
a premium charge at inception of the policies amounting to USD400,000
(equivalent to HK$3,096,000). Goldchamp can terminate the policies at any
time and receive cash back based on the cash value of the policies at the date
of withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront payment of USD2,000,000
plus accumulated interest earned and minus the accumulated insurance charge
and policy expense charge.

In December 2021, the Company entered into life insurance policies with an
insurance company to insure Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company.
Under the policies, the Company is the beneficiary and policy holder and the
total insured sum is USD120,000 (equivalent to HK$933,000). The Company is
required to pay an upfront deposit of USD120,000 (equivalent to HK$933,000).
The Company can terminate the policies at any time and receive cash back
based on the cash value of the policies at the date of withdrawal, which is
determined by the upfront payment of USD120,000 plus accumulated interest
earned and minus the accumulated insurance charge and policy expense
charge.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered into an agreement
with a film production house for a total investment cost of RMB13,600,000.
The film right investment represented the 20% interest of film production which
entitled the Group to predetermined percentage of income to be generated
from the film based on the Group’s investment portion as specified in respective
film right investment agreement. As at 31 March 2023, the fair value of the film
right investment which amounted to HK$15,504,000 (2022: HK$15,756,000)
is measured with using the discounted cash flow method. As the film delay
expected broadcast from fourth quarter of 2022 to fourth quarter of 2023, the
film right investment is classified as a current asset in both years.

As at 31 March 2022, the principal protected deposits were denominated in
RMB and issued by banks in the PRC. They contained embedded derivative,
the interest rate of which was determined with reference to the exchange rate
of USD against HKD and ranged from 1.00% to 3.00% per annum.

As at 31 March 2022, the investment funds were denominated in RMB and
issued by an unlisted entity in the PRC. The fair value of the investment funds
were measured using the discounted cash flow method. The expected interest
rate-was 6% per annum. The investment funds were matured and defaulted in
payment during the year ended 31 March 2023.

24.

®

NP EFABRRZERMEE (B)

BEE - ()

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

M2021658 « ARRIZHMBARIHE
ERARAR ([ E])#E—FRRA A
AIVABREUBRARNDESERK
TERADABEEEKRELE - B
BZRE tHEAIHZARRERHE
AR 835 (R 58 42,000,000% 7T (FBE R
15,480,000/ 7T) » BB X N FEF IR
£2,000,0003 7T (18 % 74 15,480,000/%
) BERBIREREINZRE
400,000 7t (#8574.3,096,0007% 7T.) °
2 ] FAE fa] B AR LE R AR B8 R AR AR GR
REZREZBLEBAKERS - 1D
R ARIE {1+ 302,000,0003 7T & Fr i ELZ 2
AABRMBERTRERREERAX
MEE

M20216128 + AR AHE—FERBE A
AR AZREUBRRARAEEEE
Bt o BBEZRE - KRBEAZHEA
RRERFE ARBIZIRTEH120,000%
JT(FA55 7 933,000/ 7T) ° AR RIAXNT
T8 4% % 120,000 7T (#8557 933,000
EIT) ° AR R AT LR IR E
RRBRREZRE 2B EBERER
% - WO IRIRTE S 3120,0003 7T & AR
BRIz REFIERINFRHRE RIRE
BARYMERE -

HZE2022F3A31ALFE - A5EH
—FHERRERRRI L — D - 8%
E# A ARME13,600,0007T ° B RE
BEBEREREIE20%HER « EA
SEERRENBAECREREHR
RETAMRELG - BRASEHEBEE
EREERAMNETES L - K2023
F3A31A EXREREZAFER
15,504,000/ 7T, (20224 : 15,756,000/
J0) + DERAREBR S REETEAE -
MR EBEFESHN2022F FNEET
EZEN2023F FZE FI - B IRE
BERMEEHNDERTBDEE -

M202243A318 » RATFFIAARKE
FIES MNP ENRITET - EB2ER
EOTEEB  REZEBENSEET
RAETZRB|ERFEMNENF1.00%=
3.00% °

REAESN202263A31BAARKET
BYERPBEE ETEREET - REE
SRUMRRESREER AT EE - 78
HAGE A% R6% o B E20234F3A31H 1
FE - BREAESCIEMIHERARK
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 24.
OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(viil)

BAVEFABRZZEREE ()

BteE : (48)

(Continued) (vii) (%)
The investment funds are recognised as follows: WEAESHERNT :

HK$’000

FET

At 1 April 2021 R2021F4 /818 11,511
Interest received B FLE (919)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss AR EEBERIBSER (2,680)
Settlement on redemption RERNEH (967)
Exchange adjustments I 5 5 394
At 31 March 2022 R2022F3H31H 7,339
Interest received B UFI S (161)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss NFHEBEREBRSER (6,601)
Exchange adjustments [EE 5 R (577)

At 31 March 2023

R2023%F3A31H

The fair values of the equity-linked notes as at 31 March 2022, which amounted

to HK$5,020,000, were determined based on the market closing prices quoted

by a bank. The equity-linked notes were matured during the year ended 31

March 2023.

The equity-linked notes are recognised as follows:

(vii)  IREHEIEIRR 202263 A31 B R TF
645,020,000 7T + TR 1B R1T AT 3R
W EETE - 8E2023F3A318 LF
B BREHEZIRCEIE -

MR RIRRERNT

HK$’000

FET

At 1 April 2021 Roo21E481 R 7,059
Additions 30 5,000
Transferred to equity securities HARARES (6,783)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss NEEBBENERER (121)
Exchange adjustments [E A% (135)
At 31 March 2022 20223 A31H 5,020
Additions 0 20,000
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss N ERZENBEER 292
Settlement on redemption EEEE (25,312)

At 31 March 2023

M2023%F3H31H
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25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and short term
deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group’s short term cash
commitments, which carry interest at market rates range from 0.001%
t0 0.875% (2022: 0.001% to 0.62%) per annum.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

25.

RERRETEEY

Re B eSEVRETHERRE
HEFAREAEE SRR S AE -
EmMBFEFMENT0.001%20.875%
(20224F : 0.001%%E0.62%) °

7K 5 [ LA 4R 9 42 L B 0 A A9
ZEEHENRS RS ZENRS)
T

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

SGD oo 4,695 85
usb = 6,033 5,324
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26. BEZRHEMEMNFIE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Trade payables (Note i): = (DR

0 — 30 days 0-30H 20,005 12,758

31 -60 days 31-60H 715 124

20,720 12,882

Retention payable (Note ii) FERHRIE © (M EEiD) 23,629 13,178

Rental deposits received and rental BESES RBRES

received in advance 7,836 15,161

Guarantee money received (Note iii) B AR 2B & (B i) = 10,000

Accruals TEIREA 16,826 22,018

Other taxes payable EAb AT 10,036 6,194

Other payables E Ath FE 308 6,219 4,005

85,266 83,438

Notes: BiRE -

0] The aged analysis of trade payables is determined based on the invoice date [0) B REMNRIBERRERARZER DT
at the end of the reporting period. The average credit period on purchases of REBREZAHETE - BEZ FHRES
goods is 30 days. A308 -

(ii) Retention payable is withheld from subcontractors and will be released by the (i) ERRESANTFEEBREASEER
Group within twelve months upon completion of their works. IRE#ER+_EARRIN -

(il The amount represents money received from a borrower of the loan financing (iii) ZeHERERREERABEES 2 s

business as security for loans granted. The amount has been repaid to the
borrower upon the repayment of loans during the year ended 31 March 2023.

RARBHERERBRZE RS -
ZEBEEREE2023F3A31B ILFE
BEERFENGERA -
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27.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS

(@

(b)

In prior years, the Company issued certain convertible notes to
Easyknit International. The conversion price of the convertible
notes is HK$0.25 per conversion share with interest at 4% per
annum and maturity date of 28 August 2024. The effective
interest rates of the liability component of the convertible notes
range from 18.79% to 31.69% per annum. As at 31 March 2022,
convertible notes with total principal amount of HK$97,280,000
remained outstanding.

Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the terms and
conditions of the convertible notes, adjustment has been made
to the conversion price of convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$70,000,000 from HK$0.25 per share to HK$0.24
per share with effect from 20 April 2022 as a result of placing of
shares.

On 25 July 2022, all outstanding convertible notes were
converted into a total of 400,786,666 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital and share premium of
HK$159,756,000 was recognised in the Company. Upon
the completion of the conversion, the Company released the
relevant reserve and deferred tax liability of HK$93,151,000 and
HK$13,289,000, respectively. The conversion rights attached to
the convertible notes were fully exercised.

On 20 February 2023, the Company issued 5% convertible note
due 2028 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$209,000,000
to Easyknit International (the “2023 Convertible Note”). The 2023
Convertible Note was used to settle of acquisition of investment
properties during the year ended 31 March 2023. It is a non-
cash transaction with details set out in note 33.

The 2023 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and entitles
the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time between the date of issue of the 2023 Convertible Note
on 20 February 2023 and its settlement date on 20 February
2028 at a conversion price of HK$0.106 per conversion share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments).

As at 31 March 2023, the 2023 Convertible Note with principal
amount of HK$209,000,000 remained outstanding. Assuming
full conversion of the 2023 Convertible Note at a conversion
price of HK$0.106 at 31 March 2023, the 2023 Convertible Note
will be convertible into 1,971,698,113 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

27.

TRREBEES AT

(a)

(b)

Y E9%)

Iff

Ir

BEHEE  ARAMKEBBEE
TTETABRERE - TBREK
FIR e R AE R = AR B B
0.25/87C ' FHMER4% B
H /202458280 - AIAKER
BAGEHSNERNRNFEF
18.79%%31.69% ° 10202243
A318 - A& #%7397,280,000
B TTHY AR ARSI A R EE -

IR AT 2 B R R R AR Y
FHEAE X 0 B2022%4F20H
B HREERYD A8 A
70,000,000 T A 7] #2 % =15 1Y
BIED A ER0.258THESR
FRRO0.2478 7T ©

R2022%7A258 » AR FRA
EETARKRZEESEBRAES
#£400,786,666% & X EE0.01
BT B - WHR AR R
PR % (B £159,756,0008
JC o BEIASERKE - AR R
HEEBELMECERBAGES A
93,151,000/ 7T & 13,289,0007%
TL o AR R A ERER
2EATE -

72023528208  ARRQR]AIK
H BB BITR2028F | HAS
#%8 /5209,000,00078 TTHI5%
A EE ([2023F Al R E
&) o 20234F AJ IR IR AR &
BHZE2023F3A31B IEFE K
BIREWE - ERIEFESER
5 - FEBERMIFESS -

2023F Al AR T IR LA T A
B HHAFER202352H20
A2 172023F AR Z2IHE A H
F2028%F2 208 &5 E B HARKIKE
FiZEREBEERAAN NG T
B SRR e (70.106/8 T (B
EITREEAR) -

M2023%3A31H K& %EA
209,000,000/ 7T #)20234F A #2
BREEDAEE - RR2023F
AR EE R 2023F3A31 A IE
BAE0.1068 T2 BiEia - A
2023F Al R IR G AT E R A
ARRRAF FAREEC.01E T
#91,971,698,113/% ¥ & @A °
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27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND 27. TERREBEEEENEZRD
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the conversion rights. If the 2023 Convertible Note is not
converted during the conversion period up to the maturity date,
it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with outstanding #a
accrued interest. Interest of 5% per annum will be paid semi-

annually in arrears up until the settlement date.

The 2023 Convertible Note contains liability component and
equity component. The equity component is presented in equity
heading “convertible note equity reserve”. The effective interest
rate of the liability component of the 2023 Convertible Note is

11.38% per annum at the date of initial recognition.

Upon issuance of the 2023 Convertible Note, the Company
recognised equity component of the convertible note and
deferred tax liability of HK$56,878,000 and HK$9,385,000,

respectively.

The movement of the liability component of the above convertible

(&)

(b) (&
BN BRI TR B R R Al %
N BT o IR 2023F 0] A =
BHEEBRENEZHARE
RIS B B IR EE SRR E
BRESTHEER - FRE5%H
MEBBFEEIN—R BEESHE
BERAL -

2023F AR EEAE BB
DREZ IS o B PO R ER
BREMMSERERERFEEITRZ
Bl o M¥IAHESR A + 20234 7]
BREREE BB BERFHE
A11.38% °

FHIT2023F Al R EIKRE -
ARARERITBRERNER
BORBEEHRBBAGBS B A
56,878,000/ 7t }2.9,385,0007
=

notes is set out below: HHMT -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT Fi&T
At the beginning of the year REH 66,911 58,164
Accretion of interest MEZBAREE 6,833 12,639
Interest paid BRFE (2,382) (3,892)
Conversion i (70,613) =
Issue of 2023 Convertible Note BIT2023F Al AR IR 159,200 -
At the end of the year RERK 159,949 66,911
Less: Amount with early redemption o IRATERERE SRR
option shown under current TRRBEET
liabilities - (16,292)
Amount without early redemption option EIRRIECERER —F1&
and due after one year shown under BHz SR TRIERE
non-current liabilities BET 159,949 50,619
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28. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 28. BIEIFRITEE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Carrying amount repayable as follows EEEFCAZEEENT (RE
(based on the scheduled repayment =8N E AR - A=E: )
dates set out in the loan agreements):
- within one year -—FR 544,578 789,286
— within a period of more than one year but - ZR—FETHBMFIHER
not exceeding two years 475,059 25,327
— within a period of more than two years but  — ZRMEB BB R F B R
not exceeding five years 827,634 793,694
- within a period of more than five years - HBBAFHER 24,648 54,000
1,871,919 1,662,307
Less: Amount due within one year shown AW RRBABEETZ—FA
under current liabilities Ffz e (544,578) (789,286)
Amount due after one year shown under RIERBABET 2 —F1&
non-current liabilities ES/ L= 1,327,341 873,021

At 31 March 2023, the Group’s secured bank borrowings carry interest
ranging from Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1%
to 1.8%, London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 0.8% (2022:
HIBOR plus 1.0% to 1.8%, LIBOR plus 0.8%) per annum, with effective
interest ranging from 4.21% to 5.66% (2022: 1.24% to 1.98%) per
annum. The loans are secured by certain assets as set out in note 38.

The proceeds were mainly used to finance acquisition of investment

properties, development of properties and acquisition of financial

products.

20233 A31H » AEE 2 GEKIFR
TEREFHNENTEARITRERS
([BBRITRAERBDNI%ET.8% -
MBRITRERE ([RBBITRER
B.1)1N0.8% (20224 : EHERITRIZEN
BI1.0%%E1.8% * mBIRITRERE
hno.8%) - HEBRFEFENF4.21%%
5.66%(20224F : 1.24%%E1.98%) » &
RAMTESSFTE S TAEEEM - &
BXERAERBEREDE MEEERE
FEESREMZRE -
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SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 28.

The Group’s secured bank borrowings that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant group

BILEEBRAT 2023 T3k

BEFRITIEEE

AEEUNEBEEERDETEIUIN
ZEEIEZ FERMBITEEHS W

entities are set out below: I
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FHT
HKD BIT 4,372 10,767
usD Ey 21,530 20,513
LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HE&E®E
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHET
Lease liabilities payable: EEzEEEE
Within a period not exceeding one year TR —FHER 1,162 2,570
Within a period of more than one year but not % i — B2 18 M 4 Hi R 9
exceeding two years 98 1,162
Within a period of more than two years but not %R M4BT BB 7 F R
exceeding five years - 98
1,260 3,830
Less: Amount due for settlement within o 12 AR EEE 2
12 months shown under SHBBTIRRBAEET
current liabilities (1,162) (2,570)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 128 REEIBEE 2 e BETR
under non-current liabilities IFERBEET 98 1,260

The Group leases a property to operate its business and these lease
liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not yet paid.

Lease and rentals are negotiated and fixed for a term of 2 to 3 years
(2022: 2 to 3 years).

REBEAEYENEEHER - fiE
LEEBBENAN A NOEENRE

EIREFE -

AV 1578 B E B B2 = 34 (20224

2FE3EE) o
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION

30. EZEFIE

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHET

Deferred tax assets R IBEE 8,975 8,020
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRRIBAE (33,793) (37,855)
(24,818) (29,835)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised

and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

REAREBEFECHERARIZBZE
ERIREERE) AREEBHMT

ECL Revaluation Convertible
allowance of properties notes issued Total
FEHEE BT
BB MEER AR EE #aEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2021 R202144A818 8,250 (19,467) (15,345) (26,562)
(Charge) credit to profit or RAFEBZF
loss for the year (FAZ)FA (230) (3,718) 1,445 (2,503)
Exchange adjustments P& 5 % - (770) - (770)
At 31 March 2022 R202243A31H 8,020 (23,955) (13,900) (29,835)
Recognition upon issue of BITAIRREIR
convertible note B iR - - (9,385) (9,385)
Release upon conversion of B A] A% =ik
convertible notes B R B - - 13,289 13,289
Credit (charge) to profit or loss R AEE Bz 5T
for the year AFX) 955 (2,191) 739 (497)
Exchange adjustments I H % - 1,610 = 1,610
At 31 March 2023 20233 A31H 8,975 (24,536) (9,257) (24,818)

At 31 March 2023, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$241,864,000 (2022: HK$196,990,000) available for offset against
future profits. The tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

M20234%€3A31H  AEBMABEXREA
THIEE18241,864,000/8 70 (20224
196,990,000/ 7T ) A FA 1 3K 85 2K 2%
o BIBEBBITERRALE - AR K
BETERI AR IHE A - R EEIBR
ERREBELEHIBEE -
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 30. EAEBIIE (4)
At 31 March 2023, the Group has deductible temporary differences of MR2023%F3A31H » KREEHN A K
HK$131,456,000 (2022: HK$165,608,000). A deferred tax has been MERMEZEEAB131,456,000/8 T
recognised in respect of HK$54,394,000 (2022: HK$48,153,000) (20224 : 165,608,000/87T) ° &5t
of such temporary differences. No deferred tax asset has been 54,394,000/ 7T (20224F : 48,153,000
recognised in relation to the remaining deductible temporary difference B ZEERMERERELCHIE -
of HK$77,062,000 (2022: HK$117,455,000) as it is not probable that R K AT 88 7 FE SR B s A A] A VB3R
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary MAENEREEZRE  RUYERR
differences can be utilised. BRI E R = 277,062,000/8 7T
(20224 : 117,455,000/ 7T) HERR IR IE
MIBAE -
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends BIEPBEPEMEHE - B2008561A
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 1H Bt BB A R RIS A EE Ik
January 2008 onwards. At 31 March 2023, deferred taxation has not BIRR BB TEHEL - R 20234F3 A 31
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of BERPREETK - BERE MR
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC TR gk AP BB A B R 5T B EAS
subsidiaries amounting to RMB58,794,000 as the amount involved is Ty =2 ARMS58,794,0007T (2022
insignificant (2022: accumulated losses). F o RFHEE)FHREERIE -
SHARE CAPITAL 31. BR
Nominal value Number
Notes per share of shares Amount
B 5 BREE BHEHE Fok)
HK$ HK$’000
BT FHT
Authorised: JETE
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4/81H 0.2 2,000,000,000 400,000
Increase upon capital B ARE RN
reorganisation (i) 38,000,000,000 -
At 31 March 2022 and HR2022F3H31H &
31 March 2023 20233 A31H 0.01 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHARE :
At 1 April 2021 R2021F481H 0.2 931,458,010 186,291
Reduction of share capital upon B R E AR AR
capital reorganisation (i) - (176,976)
At 31 March 2022 #R20229F3HA31H 0.01 931,458,010 9,315
Issue of shares upon placing FRER 31T (ii) 0.01 793,680,000 7,936
Issue of share upon conversion EIRAI MR R IR
of convertible notes BITRG (i) 0.01 400,786,666 4,008
At 31 March 2023 R2023F3A31H 2,125,924,676 21,259
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31.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

i) On 11 March 2022, a special resolution has been passed by the shareholders
of the Company for a capital reorganisation which involves capital reduction
and share subdivision. The par value of each of the issued shares of the
Company of HK$0.20 each (the “Existing Share(s)’) is reduced from HK$0.20
to HK$0.01 by a cancellation of HK$0.19 of the paid-up capital on each issued
Existing Share so that each issued Existing Share is treated as one fully paid
up share of par value HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company (the
“New Share(s)”) and the credit arising from the capital reduction be transferred
to the contributed surplus account of the Company. Immediately following the
capital reduction, each authorised but unissued Existing Shares of HK$0.20
each is sub-divided into twenty authorised but unissued New Shares of par
value HK$0.01 each so that immediately following the capital reduction and
the share subdivision, the authorised share capital of the Company shall
become HK$400,000,000 divided into 40,000,000,000 New Shares. The
capital reorganisation is completed on 15 March 2022. Details of the capital
reorganisation are set out in the Company’s circular dated 16 February 2022.

(i) On 20 April 2022, the Company allotted 186,280,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than six placees at a placing price of
HK$0.1 per share. The Company raised HK$18,380,000 (net of expenses) with
the intention at the time of placing to be used for the Group’s general working
capital. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to the general mandate
granted to the directors by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company

passed at the annual general meeting held on 13 August 2021.

On 26 September 2022, the Company allotted 607,400,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than six placees at a placing price of
HK$0.068 per share. The Company raised HK$40,800,000 (net of expenses)
with the intention at the time of placing to be used for the Group’s general
working capital. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to the specific
mandate granted to the directors by a resolution of the shareholders of the
Company passed at the special general meeting held on 14 September 2022.

(iii) On 25 July 2022, the convertible notes with principal amounts of
HK$16,000,000, HK$11,280,000 and HK$70,000,000 were converted into
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.25,
HK$0.25 and HK$0.24 per share, respectively. Accordingly, a total of

400,786,666 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued.

All shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2023 rank pari passu

with the then existing shares in issue in all respects.

Sl

IR (&)

Wi

(i)

(i)

FrERE E2023F3A831 H I FE3T

M202293A11H - AARIKRBB—
HERIRRER - P RRE RRH A
WRAEZEMD - AARERDBITRE
(MAAEKRH ) B EAREERO0.20/4 TR
LE0.01ET  BFHEEREEITRAE
fR1DEI0. 198 TRV B B AR - Bt
BREBTHRERMERASRAFR
AP FREEC.01 BT BB R A ([F
Rl - MRAEREENEERERE
RARZBABBRES - BEERER -
BRMEC.20E T RBEREITHER
BRI D B0 FREEO0.014TT
WIRBERBITONR - AU RERE
MG IFAE - AARDEERAEE B
400,000,000/ 7T, * % A40,000,000,000
RFTARD © AIRBRAEHB K20224F3
A15B K « RBRAEHEFBRHRA
AR A B A2022%2 A 16 H A3 K ©

202254 H208 + KRB RADRIR
H AP A Bt 186,280,000/% & ix H (&
0OVBLM B - REEATR0.1E
TT © AR §)# 5 18,380,000/ 7T (FN B 7
X)) BREERREARE -REE
B o MERND HREBEARRBERER
202148 A1BRRITHRRAFAG L
BEMRBERTESN —REERT -

M2022F9A26RH KRB RTLRN
% Bt ABR 607,400,000 & I E &
0.0 T LB - A8 REAX0.068
PEIT ° AN B % £40,800,0007% 7T (30K
X))  RREERAEREE—REE
B® - HEERH ZRIK2022F9F 14
BRTHRREIAS HBBHAAQA]
IRECRFER T E R -

MN2022F7H258 F A& HEA
16,000,000 7¢ ~ 11,280,000 JT &
70,000,000 7T ) A IR Z 1§ 12 5 B
AER0.258 T » 0.25%8 7T % 0.24# 7T
MR EERARAREREEO.01
BITHRG - Bt - & KRBT
400,786,666 T FEI{E0.01/8 TTHI il

i e

ZRORBETHEAEREETRNE
BRZER -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company. Under
the terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company might, at its absolute discretion, offer options to
any full-time employee, director or consultant of any member of the
Group (including associated companies) to subscribe for shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. The
2012 Share Option Scheme was valid during the period of ten years
commencing 29 June 2012, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
and expired on 28 June 2022.

The purposes of the 2012 Share Option Scheme were to encourage
eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which might be issued under the 2012
Share Option Scheme must not (when aggregate with any shares to be
issued under any other share option schemes of the Company) exceed
10% of the shares in issue at the date of adoption of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme within any 12-month period, was limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit was subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting of the Company with such grantee and his associate(s)
abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under 2012 Share Option
Scheme was determined by the board of directors of the Company
and would end on a date which was not later than ten years from the
date of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the share options,
the Company must (a) specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which
a share option must be held before it could be exercised in whole or in
part, and (b) specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options could be exercised in whole
or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an offer for grant of
share options was HK$1.

32.
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MR20129F6A29H + AR BRI A —
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BT E 2 R R AG R A S B E[A
R ERE(BIEHE AR 2 T2 BE
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19 2 BERRAE - 201288 AR 4 51 B BR IE A
Hih 7 X eEHRAEET - BRIH201246
AooRBET10FHBMA—EFEER - I
202266 A28 H FIH] -
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\

2012 ER BB EBB T AERS
HEFNREAAAREERN ZEE
NFEARRB RERR 2 B8N -

RIF201 2B IAEFT BRI BE BT 2R D
B 8B A E(EBEARR ZEME
EREFIBTRT2EMRNE
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REAA121E B HAR R - E20128 i
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B IR201 28 AR 7T 81 2 B AR 17 5 27
HARARIZEZERE BETERE
LERESRBITTFZALER - R
BRHBARER - NQRNE@)TERE
RiEZBRBAOTEZAMBEZER
HBARR (I B) + K (b)5E AR B AR A 2 Jh =k 3B
DITEZRINARE 2 ZERBAEEZ
() - siEmE L EREZ ZHEN
18T °

193



194

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e DR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &£ 202343 A31 B It F[E

32.

33.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the 2012
Share Option Scheme might be determined by the board of directors
of the Company in its absolute discretion and notified to each offeree
but might not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of offer, which must
be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer.

No share option was granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme or
exercised during both years.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 30 November 2022, the Group entered into conditional sale and
purchase agreements with Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited, a
fellow subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which the Group will
acquire 100% equity interests and shareholder loans of On Channel
International Limited (“On Channel”), Day Glory Investment Limited (“Day
Glory”), Well Honest Investment Limited (“Well Honest”) and Asia Million
Investment Limited (“Asia Million”) at consideration of HK$44,703,000,
HK$25,189,000, HK$24,580,000 and HK$252,606,000, respectively.
The principal assets of these subsidiaries are investment properties.
The transactions were completed on 20 February 2023. Details of
these transactions are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
14 December 2022 and circular dated 20 January 2023.

32.

33.

URHBERNRRZ (&)

RAAREESIREBHMIEE &
TE201 288 AR 5T B 2 A 1] 5 5 B AR 48
ZITER  THESXEHNA - HEH
BITEETESLROHREL B (KA
AREERARBRMZERARERMY
RRATRMDARE R Z WHE () BE
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FHBRERAMIAR R RGREZAT
ZEFHWHE  RNVARBRBRONE
MR EE -

RMEFEE - 2012FBRETEI T
AR BT TE R AR A o

ERWENBARWBEERER

M2022%F 11 A30RH » REBFEARD
BB &t B X lEasyknit Properties
Holdings Limiteds] 3 A (&1 B = #
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ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH 33. ZBUEBMEBARKWBEERAE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) (#)
The net assets acquired at the date of acquisition were as follows: AUk QBN EE 2 R EE/JENT -
On Channel Day Glory Well Honest  Asia Million Total
Z8 A = &8 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL TEL TET TET
Assets acquired and liabilities R ARBBNEER
recognised at the date of BANEE
acquisitions:
Investment properties REME 44,258 24,958 24,390 252,941 346,547
Trade and other receivables B5 REMERHIE 168 27 33 67 295
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEN 468 395 509 275 1,647
Other payables HioEMAUR (191) (191) (352) 677) (1,411
Net assets acquired Weig 2 BEFE 44,703 25,189 24,580 252,606 347,078
Consideration: RE:
Cash consideration BeRE 23,254 13,304 12,992 81,450 131,000
Issue of convertible note (note 27) BT ERE (527) 21,449 11,885 11,588 171,156 216,078
44,703 25,189 24,580 252,606 347,078
Net cash (outflow) inflow arising KR 2R (R )
on acquisitions: A
Cash consideration RERE (23,254) (13,304) (12,992) (81,450) (131,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired hEsReRREEED 468 395 509 275 1,647
(22,786) (12,909 (12,483) (81,175) (129,353)

The Group elected to apply the optional concentration test for the
acquisitions of On Channel, Day Glory, Well Honest and Asia Million
in accordance with HKFRS 3 and concluded that the land and
building components of each unit, together with the in-place lease,
are considered a single identifiable asset. Consequently, the Group
determined that substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in that unit and concluded that the acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. Acquired investment
properties are initially recognised at cost at the completion date, which
is the fair value of convertible note at the date of completion date.

AEBREBREETEVHEIRELRNE
3B LE AH - ZHEBENHK
BETEEMEDPEIR  ALFLE
wm o BB THREEYI S E
Rt M E D BRI R E A HHE
EoRE AEBERAEEE LAMKE
MBEEEMARATEDETEZE
i - W15 H SRR APTEEEN — 57
EHMEETR —EER - WENHK
BYESZORTK A AR ARER
BIA AR AR R sepk B M P fE -
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34.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 34. REMEZTHzEBZRAGHTR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TRFVNAEBEREMETH 2 AE
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. 28 BREASRIIFRSETH - k8
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows MEZHCEBENEBARAERES
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated SARRETREFSHIEREEER
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. REHERERZRERMEFTDH B
LRE -
Secured
Convertible bank Lease
notes borrowings liabilities Total
ERBREE BEARTEE HEeRE g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FE FEL FHT
(note 27) (note 28) (note 29)
(P7E27) (Hi5k28) (GEZS)
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4A1H 58,164 1,514,933 5,921 1,579,018
Bank borrowings raised E5RITER - 980,556 - 980,556
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIBITEE = (833,274) = (833,274)
Repayment of lease liabilities EERERE - = (2,472) (2,472)
Interest paid B & (3,892) (30,227) (107) (34,226)
54,272 1,631,988 3,342 1,689,602
Non-cash changes: FReEE
- Interest expense on convertible notes - TEREEZ
FIERX 12,639 = = 12,639
- Interest expense on bank borrowings - RITERZAERAX = 30,227 = 30,227
- Interest expense on lease liabilities -HERBZAERAX - = 107 107
- New leases entered (note 16) - ¥ HE(FisE16) = = 381 381
- Exchange adjustments -ERRE - 92 - 92
At 31 March 2022 20223 A31H 66,911 1,662,307 3,830 1,733,048
Bank borrowings raised EL5RITER - 564,298 = 564,298
Repayment of bank borrowings ERFTEE - (346,759) = (346,759)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEARE - - (2,570) (2,570)
Payment of loan arrangement fee TRNERLHER - (8,179) = (8,179)
Interest paid [SAREESS (2,382) (71,743) (58) (74,183)
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34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 34. REMEETH2EEZHAEHKRE)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Secured
Convertible bank Lease
notes borrowings liabilities Total
TRRES BRARTEE HEAR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(note 27) (note 28) (note 29)

(M3E27) (f£28) (PiHEE29)

64,529 1,799,924 1,202 1,865,655
Non-cash changes: FHREE

- Issue of convertible note - BITBRRER 159,200 = = 159,200
- Conversion -8 (70,613) = = (70,613)

- Interest expense on convertible notes -IBBRREZ
FERX 6,833 - = 6,833
- Interest expense on bank borrowings - RITERZFERAZ = 71,743 = 71,743
- Interest expense on lease liabilities -HERBZAERX - = 58 58
- Exchange adjustments -ERRE - 252 - 252

At 31 March 2023 M2023%3A31H 159,949 1,871,919 1,260 2,033,128
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had the following transactions with

35.

BBALTXRS BERXS

(a)

BriR e IS MR ERSN - N
A AEEEKERBERZ 2EH

wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International: BRREITINTRS
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
Consultancy fee BB 2,554 2,131
Building management fee AEERE 60 420
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaEZFEAX 58 107

The Group rented certain of its office premises from Easyknit
International. At 31 March 2023, lease liabilities amounted to
HK$1,260,000 (2022: HK$3,830,000) and refundable rental
deposits paid (included in “trade and other receivables” line item)
amounted to HK$416,000 (2022: HK$416,000).

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, also holds 18.78%
(2022: 23.55%) equity interest of Easyknit International through
an entity wholly-owned by her.

Details of the convertible notes issued to Easyknit International
are set out in note 27. During the year, the interests on these
convertible notes are as follows:

(b)

AEBRKEERRABEEET
PAE o PA2023FE3A31H » &
FEMBEEAREA1,260,000%
7t (20224 : 3,830,000/ 7T)
ENMATRERSRS(BERE
[B5REAMBHZIERFR) A
416,000/ 7T (20224F : 416,000
PEIT) °

AAREEE T UL LBRE
EEBEANERBREAXKEER
218.78% (20224 : 23.55%) i%
1 o

BITHOKE BB 2 TR R RN
FHIBEMTE27 - RER - JLEA
BEEEONENT

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiET FHET

Accretion of interest FEzBAREE 6,833 12,639
Interest paid BATFE 2,382 3,892
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of executive directors and other members of
key management during the year was as follows:

(c)

35. BEALXRE BEXS @

TEEBABZHMN
WITEEREMIEERABR
FRZMEWT :

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHET
Short-term employee benefits REEBRET

Salaries and other benefits e REAMER 15,405 14,319

Contributions to retirement benefits RIKEFIFH I 5K
schemes 98 138
15,503 14,457

The remuneration of directors and key executives are determined
by the remuneration committee and executive directors,
respectively, having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

In January 2011, the Company entered into an employment
agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu, to act as general manager of the Company. The
employment agreement, which constitutes a connected
transaction, commenced on 21 February 2011 but may
be terminated by either party at any time by three months’
notice. The monthly salary has been adjusted a few times to
HK$450,000 with effect from 1 April 2022 (2022: HK$400,000
with effect from 1 April 2021). The remuneration of Mr.
Koon Wing Yee as general manager of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2023 was HK$5,850,000 (2022:
HK$5,200,000) and was included in the “compensation of key
management personnel” in (c) above.

In November 2020, the Company entered into an employment
agreement with Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu, to act as a senior special advisor of the Company.
The employment agreement, which constitutes a connected
transaction, commenced on 25 November 2020 but may be
terminated by either party at any time. The monthly salary is
HK$30,000 with effect from 1 April 2022 (2022: HK$20,000
with effect from 25 November 2020). The remuneration of Ms.
Koon Ho Yan Candy as a senior special advisor of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2023 was HK$360,000 (2022:
HK$240,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group received rental
income totalling HK$288,000 (2022: HK$288,000) from certain
close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

(d)

(e)

EERTETBRABZHED 5
HEFMEZE S RATESHRE
MATZERBERTSEBEME

.
TE o

R2011F1 8 - AARIEE E Ik
ZE2HRBEKESLE LR
Bt ERFEALARRBK
B o 2B —EHEER S ZER
Wi m201142 821 HF%A @ B
ATAEREHEREFREA—F 4
FoEABMMAIL FAFS
EHR TR AREB20229F 4 A
1 H #E A450,000/ 7t (20224F :
1202144 A 1 B #£ A400,000/8
JT) ° BLE2023F3A31H IFF
NEXKZLEEEARNRBRKE
12 7 B4 45,850,000/ 7T (2022
£ 1 5,200,000/ 7T) M E B IEE
NECEZIEEEBABZH
B o

202011 8 » A AR HEE EIK
ZETMEZAE AR EFTHE
Bt BITAQRa SRR
B - ZIEAHEEREE
5 MN2020%F11 8258 M
B BEE— A YRR
Ik > B2022F4 1B AR
B ¥ /530,000/ 7T (20224 : A
202011 25 B #EAEM - A%
£20,000/7T) - BEAIMRZ LR
HZE2023FE3A31HILFEEME
RAARBBENBEOETINE
360,000 7T (20224 : 240,000
BT °

HZE2023F3F31HILFER -
REBWNEE]R LT ZET
TR 2 & A ££288,0008 7T
(20224 : 288,000/ 7T) °
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36.

37.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EXRMKRER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will AEBHEERNETEEABRAE
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to EETEEAEBSELSE  FBE
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances. BIE MR AR ERRET B AR
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year. REMBEZARR - NEEZEE
FHEEBIFERFTE -
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes AEBZEREERSERFHE &
convertible notes and secured bank borrowings disclosed in notes FERES N E27 ks E 2 Al
27 and 28, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity BREERERFRITEE « T5HRE
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital FBESEEBEYRBPEERITRA - 2
and other reserves. FTom A R E 2 A A R IR E (S
WS ©
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular ARAREETHRAERERE - EA
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider R —HD EFERERKRAR
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based EXAMEARR - REESNESR -
on recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will AEERKEBETHREEENER
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues and WITEEREMER - AFEEREE
raising or repayment of bank borrowings and other debts. RBERE o
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. &®ITA
a. Categories of financial instruments a. SRITAEZER
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFESABR CREE 88,348 148,909
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BEAFEFAHMEZEREZ
BEBTA 1,095 2,408
Amortised cost (including cash and cash ~ BSERN A (BIER & &
equivalents) ReEED)
- Trade and other receivables -85 REMERFRIE 11,269 3,265
- Amount due from a joint venture - Bl A L NRFRIE 1,921 =
- Loans receivable - EWER 52,250 94,381
- Debt instrument at amortised cost - RN A EZ BB TR 22,576 22,426
- Cash and cash equivalents -RekREEEY 354,002 82,099
531,461 353,488
Financial liabilities THEeE
Amortised cost A
- Trade and other payables - B 5 REMENIE 56,904 50,813
— Convertible notes CIE 159,949 66,911
— Secured bank borrowings - BIRBRITIEE 1,871,919 1,662,307
2,088,772 1,780,031
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. E@MIAE)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b.

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount due
from a joint venture, financial assets at FVTPL, debt instruments
at FVTOCI, trade and other receivables, loan receivables, debt
instrument at amortised cost, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other payables, convertible notes, secured bank borrowings
and lease liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The carrying amount of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Liabilities
=N
2023

MREREEREREE
AEEZIZEMTEBERK
BERAFE  BATFEFAR
BZEMEE RATVEFAE
thEEEEZEBETRE EHR
Hip W 0R - EWER - 1
HRAGEZEBTA  RER
REeEEY  BHREMEMNK
o AmEEE - BERMERTE
ErHERE - -ZFEWMIAZ
HBECDHBERERMER - %%
SRET AP Kz @l PA K an e &
BEZERR2BREINNT - &
EEEE MRS R R IAER
S N A B IREUE B B o

5

O  EBEEER
RIEHKR - SASNETIE
ZEBERIEREER

EBaE REENT
Assets
BE
2022 2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET FH&xT FiET
USD against HKD ELRBTT = = 28,681 27,812
SGD against HKD Mg TR AT 4,372 10,767 4,695 85
USD against SGD ETTHITIE T 21,530 20,513 1,095 2,408
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

U

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate risk on
USD against SGD for the foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities.

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HKD and USD
will be immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis has
been prepared. No sensitivity analysis for the currency
risk of SGD against HKD is prepared as the directors of
the Company consider the net impact of such foreign
currency risk is insignificant.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2022: 5%) increase and decrease in USD against
SGD. Sensitivity rate of 5% is used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a 5% (2022: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis represents
secured bank borrowings where the denominations are
in USD. A positive (negative) number below indicates
an increase (decrease) in post-tax profit where USD
strengthens 5% against SGD. For a 5% weakening of
USD against SGD, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax profit.

37.

TRMIAG@E

b. HERBREEBEREEGE

45 3 (4)
() EBEEERE
GURE DT

AEBEBINENEZEE
BERE¥ABEZEXR
BEEEREXTLIM
BT R o

HREREZSE BT
HXTERERZPBY
BAYTEKN - #URER
HYPBEDIN - ARAR
AEZERAZIINERRD
FREYAERN Al
LT N T B TT AR
GURE DT -

TRFMAIL T AEEY
FE U RTINS LA E A
185% (20224F : 5%) &K
BE - - APmMEZERE
ANBREINERBREF -
FRHRHEERE - KFK
EEEHARMEREH
B - RESTER
BERAREENINEFHEE
K WERGHRAER
BRE - EINEEERES)
5%(20224F : 5%) o Gk
BT RRNAR A FER
AHMEEREZEBHT
B BAFEFABEZ
SR E E M LA EIBRTT
ERUETLABEMNARIT
Hth o TERIES(EE)
FONE ETLE NS T
B5% - Bifk &8 hn O
) o R ETTH I
TLHRES% - AgH %
BINEERSZMERNY
# o

Decrease in post-tax profit Bi1& 2Rk >

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$’000
TiERT TR
(893) (851)
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

U

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis reflects
the exposure at the year end, but not the exposure during
the year.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s primary cash flow interest rate risk relates
to it secured bank borrowings (2022: principal protected
deposits which are classified as financial assets at FVTPL
and secured bank borrowings). As at 31 March 2023,
principal protected deposits have been fully matured. The
interest rates and terms of repayment of the secured bank
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 28.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to certain financial assets at FVTPL, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, debt instrument at amortised cost,
cash and cash equivalents, fixed-rate loans receivable,
fixed-rate staff loan, convertible notes and lease liabilities.
The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to such interest rate risk, however,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider other necessary action when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
and LIBOR arising from secured bank borrowings.

37. MITEE)

b. HERREERERIEGE

45 3 (4)
O  EBEEERGE
BURE DT ()

(i)

EEERS  BBESN
REREZFEEAFR - T
PRIREFERNER -

AN B B AL SN B
BEOEGREERR - A
- EEER )RR A
SRR AHNEFE
i Z B8 ERINE R

i o
2

FIE 7 fg
AEBHEZERSTREF
EREBEESEAEFIE
RERTTIE B (20224 © &
AEEFABRZZEHME
ENRATREB MR
TEEE#) - 7202343
A318 ' RATGFEHREZH
F|E - AEEBEART
BERHFE R EBETRN
5T 28 5E -

REBETFIZ R FERA
BRseREE BAF
Bt AREMEEKEZE
BTAR REAHEKATE
ZEBTE RekR
@Y BREENXE
FoBEEMERETER
AR L EE 8 EA
BERFENXRR - A&
3 A R AEAITAE S A
T HZEFXRER B
ERESEREMNERR
T & ERHAHIREARFN =X
[ Bz B B BR AR L A 4 22
78 -

AEBERNERARZHE
REBEERAME 2 RBE
SRREE AL
AEB RS RENXME
BEBRE LB EFRT
BEZEBRTAERE
Ko fm BAR 1T A 2 47 8K
) o
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b.

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

37. MITEE)

45 3 (4)

R EE B R B ()

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks
is being undertaken globally, including the replacement
of some interbank offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative
nearly risk-free rates. Details of the impacts on the
Group’s risk management strategy arising from the
interest rate benchmark reform and the progress towards
implementation of alternative benchmark interest rates
are set out under “interest rate benchmark reform” in this
note.

(i) FIEE R (E)
EREEHTENREE
ETRAENRE - BIEA
T T B 0 B R R
R-LRITRZERB (R
TREFED - BRAF X
ERENFHAEERRE
ERBHTERERELE
MEMBERERDFE
EEAUENGE IR 2

WE] o
Total interest revenue/income from financial assets that RS AN SR A EEET
are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI is as AEME2EKSFAEZS
follows: BMEEZHBERE, WA
BRI -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Interest revenue Bz
Financial assets at amortised cost BB AT EZ
TREE 3,289 7,730
Other income A
Financial assets at amortised cost REEN AT EZ
SRVEE 4,394 1,828
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAFEFAEMEZE
Wz emMEE 64 1,870
Total interest income FERIRSREON 7,747 11,428
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments as referred to above at the end of the
reporting period and the stipulated change taking place
at the beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the reporting period. A 100 basis points (2022:
100 basis points) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

AT SRR EARER
VA b Bt 28 s o5 B Rt 9F
PTETAZFREREER
FERBR ZHOEHER
BEREER TR ME
TE o 1001EZE %2 (2022
F - 100fEEER) Nk
BOEZARMEZEEA
8 YRR 3R & E B KA
REHEEFENEZATEE

ARES -
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2022:
100 basis points) higher or lower for its variable rate
borrowings and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2023 would decrease/increase by HK$15,631,000 (2022:
HK$13,879,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in listed equity and debt securities and equity-
linked notes. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.
The Group’s price risk is mainly concentrated on listed
equity instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange or an
overseas recognised stock exchange of issuers operating
in property investment and development and banking
and finance industry sector. In addition, the Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

37. MITEE)

b. HERREERERIEGE

5 /E g ()
@) FIEmEREE
BURE DT ()

(i)

MEZHFEBEENF
KA =k PR E100E £ 2
(20224 : 100fEEZH) B
FEEMmEERERE
AR @& £2023%F3A°
31BLEFENBRERTE
B H015,631,00058
7T (20224 : 13,879,000
BT °

EBERE  UHBRED
b e R KRB X[
% EFRRE R b R
FRRk -

E M (E1S AR
AEBERER EWBRA
LEBESLREHAR
15 10 1ED ol L (b B AR LB
EEERBEFRAEATR
ke EEA RE IR I
B o AN &2 [ Y B AR AL
TEEPREBRZARE
SNRATHIEF R B P L
MR EFHERE K%
RBETREBENETA
e EmEas TR - it
S REEBEZREFRE/)
HEREREAR  EYRE
FE B B AR
[
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting

date.

If the prices of the listed equity instruments have been
5% (2022: 5%) higher/lower, post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2023 would increase/decrease by
HK$1,196,000 (2022: HK$2,641,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed equity instruments.

In the managements’ opinion, the financial impact on
price risk of equity-linked notes and debt securities as at
31 March 2022 would be immaterial, and therefore no

sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, lease receivables,
loans receivable, other receivables, bank balances, debt
instruments at amortised cost, amount due from a joint venture
and debt instruments at FVTOCI. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risk associated with its financial assets, except that the credit
risk associated with loans receivable is mitigated because they
are secured over marketable securities or properties (2022:
guaranteed money, marketable securities or properties).

At the end of reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information including forecast of unemployment rate index and

other relevant factors are considered.

Except for financial assets at FVTPL, the Group performed
impairment assessment for financial assets under ECL model.
Information about the Group’s credit risk management,
maximum credit risk exposures and the related impairment

assessment, if applicable, are summarised as below:

37.

TRMIAG@E

R EE B R B ()

45 B 2 ()
(i) EERSE R (A
WREEDT

BT SR 5 17 R ARIE R
s B ARE 2 RAE
AR -

WEMBRATEB®K L
Ft,/ T 5% (20224 :
5%) * MEE2023F3 A
S1AIEFEZHEAF
BERETRATIAZA
FEZ g m, m >
1,196,000/ 7T (20224 :
2,641,000 7T) °

EIRERE  R202243
AS1EHREHBERRE
58 5 ER R A
HEWTEKR  WWER
BIFRE DT

=B R R E S

R20234F 202243 A31H » &K
SEAEEREF T RERBITE
EMEXVBRINZREER
BEIZKANEZEKZKE
EREWKFE - ERER - HibfE
WFRIE ~ SRITAERR © IREE AR
AFEZEBIRE  BREEAR
FIEAIE N FEF AL M E2ER
mZEBITA AKEWERE
EA s H A5 B G o8 15
M ABEHSHEERBEER
Rk - EREZRABEEERR
BRE REAKEARUEME
A ME (2022F  RES - L
MEH ) EE I o

R|MER - HELBERIIAZ
WZEIT T BHEE  AEET
BIEKRZE R R BRI o E 7
HEEARRIRIEESHEL

BRAFEAABRZEMEE
Sh - REERBERBEEBHEE
XY EREEETT T RERE °
FRAKEEERRER &KX
EERRBREAEREN G
(ERMEERENT
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WE - AEEZAEERKE
Al8E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. EMIAME
Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HEEKREERERZRBEGE
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) =B E e R EFF ()
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment for the NEFBSHEEZ NS ZERR
Group’s financial assets comprises the following categories: M EIELATRER
Financial assets
other than trade
Trade and and lease
Internal credit rating Description lease receivables receivables
TREETEEES
REEEFTR B3 E5 REERKFIA TN AL E 8D
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit- 12m ECL
of default and does not have impaired
any past-due amounts
A9 RZEFEORRERYN & REBNEEEREE 1218 AFEEME B EE
E{aT 38 BA IR - FEERE
Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — not credit- 12m ECL
date impaired
L B AL BRI B ZER REBPNEEEEEE 1218 AR EE B BB
- FEERE
High risk There have been significant Lifetime ECL — not credit- Lifetime ECL — not
increases in credit risk since impaired credit-impaired
initial recognition through
information developed internally
or external resources
= R FRABEKHER SRR BEBHOEHEEERE BEBHNEHEE
EERRE ERFERURLER - EEERIE &8 - EEERE
RIEIE N
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL — credit-
asset is credit-impaired impaired
BB EEBETEELREERE REBPNEBEESS BREBHNHEHEE
- EERE &8 - EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
G| AEBBETEBABARENTE SEME TR
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group’s
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

External
Notes  credit rating

M MMRESS

Internal
credit rating

37.

12mor
lifetime ECL
128 RS2 EES

RPEEFR  WEREEER

SRI A
b. HBEBREEEFEREEGE
=B R R B E T ()

TREFIAEE S REERIEE
HEEBEFENEERRF

1% :

Loss rate range Gross carrying amount
BAZEE RHAE

2023 2022 2023 2022

HK$'000  HK$'000

TAr TR

Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BRATESAEM2EREE

BIA

Investments in listed bonds 20 CtoCa
(note (i)

LmEH 2 RE () CZCa

Financial assets at amortised

cost
REBHRATTECEREE
Loans receivable 18 N/A
EHER TER

N/A

TER

Trade receivables from contracts 23 N/A

with customers
BRPHITARBYER TR
Lease receivables 23 N/A
RERWE TEA

N/A

TER

Low risk
ERER

Loss

[EmR

(Note ii)

(Fit3Ei)

(Note ii)

(P33

Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired
BREENNHESAE
EFE-FER
&

12m ECL
12EARSEE
BR

Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired
BREEHNEAE
EEE R
E

Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired
BREENNEAE
EFR-FRE

E

Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired
BREENNHEAE
EFR-HREE

W

100% 50%to 100% 10,931 10,931

50%%£100%

2%106% 2%106% 53,800 80,690
2%%6%  2%%Z6%

100% 100% 51,930 60,930

N/A N/A - 507

TER  TER

N/A N/A 816 1,440

TER  TER
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b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

37. £@T A
b. HEERSEBERBEE

1= BB R K B EEF 1 ()

External Internal 12mor
Notes  credit rating creditrating  lifetime ECL Loss rate range Gross carrying amount
128 A2 EES
M BEETR RBEETR  HWRBEESE BAZEE RHAE
2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$'000  HK$'000
TAr T
Financial assets at amortised
cost (Continued)
REERAHEZSREREE)
Other receivables 23 N/A (Note il 12m ECL N/A N/A 11,269 2,753
Bt MR TR (BzEi) 12 ABEEE @R TER
BE
Debt instrument at amortised cost 21 N/A (Note i 12m ECL 4% 4% 23,490 23,340
REENATEZBRIA TR (B&%i) 12 ABEEE
BE
Amount due from a joint venture N/A (Note ii) 12m ECL N/A N/A 1,921 -
EUHAERRNE TR (B&%i) 12 ABEEE TR TER
BE
Bank balances 25 Prime =2 to A1 N/A 12m ECL N/A NA 354,002 82,059
(2022: Prime =2
to Af)
RITHE 5EE-2EA TER 12EABHEE TEA TER
(2002 % : ZEE BE
-2EM)
Notes: Bi%E
[0) The amounts stated in the above table represent the initial purchase 0] FMERRROSHEAVBEERK
cost. For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group considers the o BIBHEEEETAmS
gross principal amount and the related contractual interests of the debt rEBEZREKIANEASE
instruments. As at 31 March 2023, the gross principal amount of these EREENE R - 12023
debt instruments amounted to HK$13,675,000 (2022: HK$13,684,000). F3A31E  ZEB/BHITANK

(i) For the purpose of internal credit impairment, the Group considers (i)
if there is any past due record or other relevant information available
without undue cost or effort to assess whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition.

$ #4858 513,675,000/% 7t (2022
£ : 13,684,000/ 7T)

RABEERENS AEEZ
BREAEMBHCEKBAL
ERARE N A8 2 EhERE
B VBREREEERR
EEBEEM -
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Debt instruments at FVTOC!

The Group assesses the credit risk of investments in debt
securities at the reporting date. The Group’s debt instruments at
FVTOCI mainly comprise listed bonds that are graded by credit-
rating agencies as per globally understood definitions and some
bonds without external credit rating are assessed by internal

credit ratings.

37. MITEE)
b. HHREREEEERBEE

EE R bR R B E TS ()

B FEFFAREMEE W2 &
KT A
REBMPRE BT EGES
BENEERR - AEEZRAF
Bt AEMEEKE 2 EBIA
FE2EHRERTAKERES
HRIBARE)E REITRT A ETHIE
7~ FINBE AR AR BIE
7 BB B A AR RETTAT

fly ©
Lifetime ECL -
12m ECL credit impaired Total
BEBHN
128 AEH FEHEEREE-
SEEE EERE xR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FHET FAT
At 1 April 2021 H2021F4/81H 692 - 692
Changes due to debt instruments  ENMZAFEF A HA
at FVTOCI recognised SHNEZEBEIAD
as at 31 March 2021 82021438318
R
— Transfer to credit-impaired -EREEERE (280) 280 =
~ Upon redemption - fE A 412) - 412)
- Net remeasurement of ECL -EBHEEERZ
FE - 9,865 9,865
At 31 March 2022 R202243A31H - 10,145 10,145
Changes due to debt instruments  EHRMZRAFEF AEAM
at FVTOCI recognised 2HElEZEBIAN
as at 31 March 2022 BB)N2022F3A31H
R
— Net remeasurement of ECL -FEEEEEEZ
HE L - 3,530 3,530
At 31 March 2023 2023 3H31H - 13,675 13,675
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. EWMTIAWE
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. H¥EKREERZREEGE

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 15 B /7 52 K B 7P 18 ()
Debt instrument at amortised cost IR A2 BT A
The Group assesses the credit risk of investments in debt AEBRRE B HEREHFK
securities at the reporting date. The Group’s debt instrument at B s AR o ANEB K
amortised cost comprises a promissory note without external Kt EZBEILEBIEEEIN
credit rating, which has been assessed by internal credit rating. ERFHENANZE - MERIED

BRI TETA -

12m ECL

128 B EEEE

HK$’000

FHT

At 1 April 2021 HR2021F481H -
New note purchased EARE 914

At 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 202243 A31H 202343 A31H 914
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Loans receivable

The Group has concentration of credit risk in relation to loans
receivable, amounting to HK$52,250,000 at 31 March 2023
(2022: HK$94,381,000), from a few borrowers with 60% (2022:
69%) of the balance secured by guaranteed money of nil (2022:
HK$10,000,000) or properties with estimated fair values of
HK$28,445,000 (2022: HK$161,407,000). The Group is not
permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals in the absence of
default by the borrower. Except for the decrease in collateral due
to loan repayment, there have not been any significant changes
in the quality of the collateral held for the loans receivable. In
addition, the unsecured loans receivable as at 31 March 2023
amounting to HK$30,750,000 (2022: HK$39,750,000) are with
personal guarantee. The largest borrower of the Group by itself
accounted for approximately 26% (2022: 17%) of the Group’s
loans receivable at 31 March 2023.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loans receivable to minimise credit risk. The management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to the credit risk are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Impairment allowances on
outstanding loans receivable are determined by an evaluation
of financial background, financial condition and historical
settlement records, including past due rates and default rates,
of the borrowers and relevant information from public domain at
the end of each reporting period. The borrowers are assigned
different grading under internal credit ratings to calculate the
ECL, taking into consideration of the estimates of expected cash
shortfalls which are driven by estimates of possibility of default
and the amount and timing of cash flows that are expected from
foreclosure on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of obtaining
and selling the collaterals.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Loans receivable (Continued)

Included in the gross amount of loans receivables
are HK$51,930,000 (2022: HK$60,930,000), net of
accumulated impairment allowances of HK$51,930,000
(2022: HK$44,930,000) due from a group of borrowers
including an individual (the “Borrower”) with gross amount of
HK$27,380,000 (2022: HK$27,380,000) and other individuals
(with personal guarantee from the Borrower) with gross amount
of HK$24,550,000 (2022: HK$33,550,000). In prior years,
the management assessed, taking into account the relevant
information from public domain, such balances became credit-
impaired and has taken various actions to recover the balances.
The management has requested the borrowers to make
settlements of the loans and total settlements of HK$61,605,000
were received from the borrowers by way of cash or properties
as disclosed in note 18(i) during the year ended 31 March 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no allowance for
impairment was made for a loan receivable newly granted with
gross amount of HK$16,000,000 since the value of pledged
asset is higher than the value of amount borrowed. During the
year ended 31 March 2023, there is a negotiation between the
Borrower and the Group on settlements which consist of (i) a
change in the pledged asset and (i) the Borrower’s commitment
on pursuing the repayment of certain other borrowers’ credit-
impaired loans. Subsequently, during the year ended 31
March 2023, HK$6,799,000 (as mentioned in note 18(iv)) was
received. As the pledged asset has been multiple-mortgaged, an
impairment loss of HK$16,000,000 was provided.

Trade and lease receivables and other receivables

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is minimal
after assessing the counterparties’ financial background and
creditability.

Staff loans
No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the amount involved is insignificant.
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Amount due from a joint venture

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is minimal
after assessing the joint venture’s financial background and
creditability.

Bank deposits and bank balances

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is negligible
as such amounts are receivable from or placed in banks with
good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has available unutilised bank
loan facilities of HK$1,362,240,000 (2022: HK$611,089,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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BILEEBRAT 2023 T3k

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. &@TAE)
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. H¥EKREERZREEGE
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) MENE & R (&)
Liquidity table HEEZF
On More than
demand or 3 months but Total
Effective  less than less than undiscounted ~ Carrying
interestrate 3 months 1year 1-2years 2-5years Over5years cashflows  amounts
e BiB3fA AR
ERflE W3R BoME 1-2% 5% HBSE  BENEsE REE
%  HK$'000 HK$000  HK§000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HKS$'000
AL TAL AL AL TAL T T
2023 2023
Trade and other payables & 5 R Ef EFTFUE = 56,904 = S S = 56,904 56,904
Convertible notes THEREE 11.38 = = - 2017 = 20,17 159,949
Secured bank borrowings B R(TEE 4.94 66,075 558,212 499431 823,33 27,083 197433 1,871,919
Lease liabities HEBE 2.92 657 515 9 = = 1,21 1,260
123,636 558,727 499,530 1,033,452 27,283 2,042,628 2,000,032
2022 2022
Trade and other payables & 5 R £t EFFA = 50,813 = = = = 50,813 50813
Convertible notes THREE 2110 28,371 = = 72,800 = 101,171 66,911
Secured bank borrowings B HAR{TEE 163 80575 731,785 50576 815122 55434 173349 1,662,307
Lease liabilties HERE 2.20 657 1971 1172 % = 3,899 3,830
160,416 733,756 51,748 888,021 55,434 1889375 1,783,861
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform

For HIBOR bank borrowings, while the Hong Kong Dollar

Overnight Index Average (“HONIA”) has been identified as an

alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The

multi-rate approach has been adopted in Hong Kong, whereby
HIBOR and HONIA will co-exist. The Group’s bank borrowings
linked to HIBOR will continue till maturity and hence, not subject

to transition. For USD LIBOR bank borrowings amounting to
HK$21,530,000 (2022: HK$20,513,000), as LIBOR will be
ceased, the Group is in the process of communication with the

banks and specific changes have yet been agreed.

The management anticipates that the interest rate benchmark

reform will have limited impact on the Group’s risk exposure.

c. Fair value

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The Board
has delegated the valuation work to the management to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The management reports the
findings to the directors of the Company regularly to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. @I A
c. Fair value (Continued) c. AFEE)
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are () AEERIELEEERER

RFPEANBZEHEEZ
R AE ()

R M A B an ] B E 2%
EemEEATECLE

measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined (in

particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used). SRR HER ML E A
HiR) ©
Fair value Valuation techniques and
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
TREE R3A3NBZATE NRERE  HERGRBARE EXTUBRBA
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEL
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
RAVEHARBZENEZ
EHIA
- Listed debt securities 2,408 36,113 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market ~ N/A
- FhERES E18 REBMETARMLE TER
Financial assets at FVTPL
BATEABEZEREE
- Listed equity securities 52,818 84,616 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market ~ N/A
- FiRAES 18 RERTSTARLE ik
= Investment in limited 28,230 27,087 Level3 Net asset value quoted from fund Net asset value of the underlying
partnership manager investments
-EREERE 3% EOABRNEERE RBREMEETE
= Life insurance policies 14,436 13,718 Level2 Quoted asset value provided by a N/A
financial ingtitution
- \ERRE L SRERRI TRAERE @R
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C. Fair value (Continued)

(i

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

37. &@TAE)

c. AFEE
() AFERFEEZMEEER
RFPEFABZETHBEEZ

23 AE ()
Fair value Valuation techniques and
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
tREE RIASAZATE NPESRE  HERTREARE EXTUBRBA
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL
= Film right investment 15,504 15,756 Level3 Discounted cash flows = future cash Discount rate of 4.35% (2022: 4.36%)
flows are estimated
-SYMERE F3 FRRERE -EHARRLRE  HER435%(022F : 4.35%
= Unlisted securities 6,264 - Level2 Based on recent transaction price N/A
-FEMES EVE ERAER R ER TER
= Investment funds - 7339 Level3 Discounted cash flows = future cash Weighted average cost of capital at
flows are estimated 53.61%
-REHS £33 FRRERE - HARBERBET  METHESMA5361%
fist
= Principal protected deposits - 27,171 Level3 Discounted cash flows - future cash Potential return rate of nil (2022:
flows are estimated based on 1.00% to 3.00%) per annum
exchange rate of USD against HKD
and expected yields of the
instruments
-REER £3 TRRGRE -AXFLRENE  EEDHREEER
ITAETLABERTAZES (20225 : 1.00%E300%
EER ik
- Equity-finked notes - 5020 Level2 Based on fair value of underlying assets ~ N/A
which are substantially derived from
level 1 input
-REEBRE EVE ENREZIREARBEELTE  TER
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(5 Fair value (Continued)

(i

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

A slight increase in the weighted average cost of capital
used in isolation would result in a slight decrease in the
fair value measurement of the investment funds, and vice
versa.

A slight increase in the potential return rate and volatility
used in isolation would result in a slight increase in the fair
value measurement of the principal protected deposits,
and vice versa.

A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation
would result in a slight decrease in the fair value
measurement of the film right investment, and vice versa.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 in both
years.

37. £@T A
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. &@MIAGE)
Fair value (Continued) c. AFEEE)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (i) FEIRAFETENER
Principal Investment
protected Investment in limited Film right
deposits funds  partnership investment Total
RAER REES EREBRE EBYNERE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THT TR
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4A1H 21,341 11,511 12,089 - 44,941
Additions #m 146,492 - 6,145 15,511 168,148
Interest received BIFIE (1,067) (919) = = (1,986)
Realised fair value gain REZNER
recognised in profitorloss 2 BEHA
FEKE 1,067 - - - 1,067
Unrealised fair value (loss) ~ FAEZ AR
gain recognised in profit ZREB
or loss DNFEEE) Bia = (2,680) 8,770 = 6,090
Settlements e (141,514) (967) - - (142,481)
Exchange adjustments R AR 852 394 83 245 1,574
At 31 March 2022 R2022%3 8318 27,171 7,339 27,087 15,756 77,353
Additions m 553,516 - - 789 554,305
Interest received BUF B (551) (161) = = (712)
Realised fair value gain RERAERZ
recognised in profitorloss ~ BERAFENE 551 = = = 551
Unrealised fair value (loss) ~ FAMEZ MR
gain recognised in IARER
profit or loss ATE(ER) K = (6,601) 971 = (5,630)
Settlements 7E (578,549 - - - (578,549)
Exchange adjustments B R AE (2,138) (577) 172 (1,041) (3,584)
At 31 March 2023 20234637318 - - 28,230 15,504 43,734
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37.

(o Fair value (Continued)

(ii)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis
Except for the convertible notes issued, the directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

At 31 March 2023, fair value of liability component of
the convertible notes issued by the Company, which is
recognised at amortised cost of HK$159,949,000 (2022:
HK$66,911,000) (note 27), was HK$160,729,000 (2022:
HK$73,509,000). The fair value is determined using
Trinomial Option Pricing Model at Level 3.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38.

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the Group
were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities granted to the Group:

EMmITEE)
c. AFEGE
(i) RERGEEEEEZ R
FEFEZEHEERS
BEEZ A FE

BEEM

BREZRTHIRRER
Sh ARREERAE - N
RAVBRRREHKA
I REERSRA
AR EREL A ER

++

= o

M2023F3A31H + AR
RIBITHARBREENE
& 2B 10 B D F (B 3% 8 3
XA #7R159,949,0007
7t (20224 : 66,911,000
Bo) (MsE27) 5B
160,729,000/ 7L (2022
4 : 73,509,000/ 7T) ° A
FEHREEIMLFER=E
AEEEEEXEER o

RIWERR  ZEBEERATIEET
RITERERBATAEBEZEERE

g
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Investment properties LB 1,297,441 939,880
Properties held for development for sale BIELHERRME 3,307,920 3,020,650
Life insurance policies AFREE 13,626 12,914
4,618,987 3,973,444
In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment properties and gboh - Lt EYER e R LliEE

future sale proceeds and rentals in respect of the above properties held
for development for sale were also pledged to these banks.

HEZRMEARZHENEFIAR
T2 IR IR FIRIT
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39. REHIZH
The Group as lessor AEBERAHEA
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
Property rental income earned during the year & RBELZ 1 & WA 29,010 38,738
Less: Outgoings P (2,171) (2,910)
Net rental income HE WA FE 26,839 35,828
All of the properties held for rental purposes have committed lessees RBEHR - MERREEZYWEY
for one year to three years (2022: one year to ten years) from the end EEEBARB -—FE=F(2022F :
of the reporting period without termination options granted to tenants. —FE+F) BROBEFETRIER
2
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: FEWHERTRASAZOT :
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 21,716 26,693
In the second year REZF 11,367 13,599
In the third year RE=F 2,242 6,713
In the fourth year REMNF = 3,660
In the fifth year RERF = 3,417
After five years AF% = 2,513

35,325 56,595
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40. COMMITMENTS prgi
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FHT
Capital expenditure contracted for but EETHR SRR ERE B SRR P
not provided in the consolidated financial BEZARAI @R
statements in respect of
—interest in Limited Partnership (Note) - BRAEBARER BT 19,635 19,510
— film right investment - EXRERE - 829
19,635 20,339
Note: The amount at 31 March 2023 represented US$2,500,000 (equivalent to fii3E © 720234331 H 24 5$52,500,0003

HK$19,635,000) (2022: US$2,500,000 (equivalent to HK$19,510,000)) for
subscription for interest in the Limited Partnership as a limited partner. The
purpose of the Limited Partnership is primarily achieving capital appreciation
and participation through investments in equity and equity-related securities
in Asia-Pacific and Europe and portfolio funds with a similar investment focus.
The business of the Limited Partnership will be conducted and managed by
one single general partner (the “General Partner”) who will act as agent of the
Limited Partnership while the investment committee of the Limited Partnership
(comprising individuals who are not connected with the Group) shall decide
and approve all investment and divestment decisions of the Limited Partnership
with reference to the investment objective. The limited partners of the Limited
Partnership, including the Group, shall take no part in the operation of the
Limited Partnership on the management or conduct of the business and
affairs except with the written consent of the General Partner. Details of this
transaction are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 27 March 2019
and 10 May 2019.

JT (% 719,635,0005% 7T) (20224 :
2,500,000% 7T : #H%#19,510,000/%
TLARERERERARBERRER
NEER - BREBARZENEEA
BRERBERZHADARBOMNRA &
RAMBEFERCE RIREBHBELUZ
HERE - ARABAANEBHH—

LBARAN(EREBADRERE
B LBARARBIERAREEATIN
REA - MAEREGBARNREEZE (B
B 71 52 (39 N 4 5 Y 18 A AELBK) S R R AR
BEERERAEARELHRE R
BRE - RILLERBERAZEARE -
GRIBRABARZARARA(BER
SE)VTELEBRABATBEREER
FREBREBIEE - RHZFEH
RARE B A2019F3H27H %2019
F5H10B KA °
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41.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to
make additional contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions
are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a
maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory contributions”). The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’'s mandatory contributions upon
their retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to make the
required contributions.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset employers’
contributions for both years. The employers’ contributions which have
been dealt with in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income were as follows:

4.

RKBRETE

AEBRBES BB EABSFEE
Bl BERTEHI A MEAESRIK
BHREFEI((RBERTE]) - RAESE
T EEEABBEAFTSHRE%K
&% /51,5008 70 - BB ALEEED
BIMIR - BEXEBAMHRABRERZ
BRFSHEHRFKS%KFZES A1,500
B (& HIMEHEIR]) o 8 BR655RER IR
B SRR ERITARE IR - A
ZHEFBRBIEH-RRZ100% °

RRBEZHB AR ZEES BT EEM
R 2BEREBERKREFEIKE - M
BRARAZFEETAOLRERS
FHEIER - ARBE 2B FEREK
SETENWEH TR E 2 B3R -

M EF Z IR B BOR MR A R E
HEFHREIHZ - ERGEaERK
HihzmbmREENEEHFIM
T~

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Employers’ contributions recognised in i85 PR 2 (B R
profit or loss 429 456

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, there were no forfeited contributions
available to reduce the contributions payable in the future years.

M2023FEM2022E3A31H  J8E %R
U 9 R ZR AT A R R A R SR B A ) FE A

B -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2023
are as follows:

42. FEMB LR ZFHE

M2023F3A318 * ARREEHBR
AIZEBWT -

Nominal value of issued
share capital/paid-up

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Place of incorporation/ registered capital/  capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiary establishment and operation stated capital  capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BREORA/MRERRA/ ROIRAERARE/GR
WEARERE HMERL/ HIREE BRRAEE EMRAEERAL TEER
2023 2022
Directly held:
BERE
Fanju Investments Limited British Virgin Islands (‘BVI")/ Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities and
Hong Kong others
RERERRAT AEREUHE LERIZT EAREMRE
(XERLEE)) /5%
Glory Link Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities and
others
ARREBRAT ik LERIER EAREMRE
Indirectly held:
FERE
Asia Million* Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% N/A~ Property investment
Ba Bk LERIET TER  DERE
Capital Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
EM(ER)BRAT Bk LERIET nERE
Chancemore Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
RERLES/ B LERIZET nERE
City China International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
R ERERAT Bk LERER EHEE
Clever Wise Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BRAERBRLA RBRABE/BE LRERIZET nERE
Daily Leader Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
RERLEE/ B LRERIZET NEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2023FE3 A31H IFF[E

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42. FEMB AR ZFH1EE)

Nominal value of issued
share capital/paid-up

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered

Name of subsidiary establishment and operation stated capital ~ capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRARE/BREMRE/ KATHEERTRE/HR
MWEARERE HMAL/ RIREEE ERRAEE EMEAEER A TEXH
2023 2022

Indirectly held: (Continued)
FERE (8
Day Glory* Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% N/A" Property investment
A& X LERIBL TER WERE
Excellent East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BRERAA X LERIBL nERE
Extra Glory Limited Anguilla/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development

REW/FE TaRIET NEER
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment in securities and

others

KEBARAR 3 LakoET ErREMRE
Giant East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
ERERAA I TaRIET nERE
Goldchamp Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property investment
ta X EER10,0008 T B
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
BIEEXBRAF i L@kt NERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £202343A31H It FE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Nominal value of issued
share capital/paid-up

42. EBWBRRZFHBE

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiary establishment and operation stated capital  capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRORA/BAREMRA/ KOAAREERARE/ AR
MEAREHE HMAL/ RIREEHE ERRAAE EMBEAEER TEXH
2023 2022
Indiirectly held: (Continued)
F#RE (8
Grow Well Profits Limited BVI/Singapore Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment and
investment in securities and
others
RBARES /AN LERIET NERERESRAMKE
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
RBEEFERAT Eh TaRoET NERE
Lion Capital Investment (HK) Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
REREEBDERLA Ek LERIBT nERE
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 100% 100%  Property development
BatEERAR i ERRIET NELR
Nice Able Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
RBANEE/BR LRRET NEER
On Channelf* Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% N/A~ Property investment
ZE* Eh TERIET TER  NERE
Qvation Motion Picture Enterprise Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Entertainment and film right
Limited investment
FEEYNEERATA Eh TaRIET RERBYMERE
Real Supreme Limited Anguilla/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
REW/FE TARIET NEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2023FE3 A31H IFF[E

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42. FEMB AR ZFH1EE)

Nominal value of issued
share capital/paid-up

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiary establishment and operation stated capital ~ capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRARE/BREMRE/ KATHEERTRE/HR
MWEARERE HMAL/ RIREEE ERRAEE EMEAEER A TEXH
2023 2022
Indirectly held: (Continued)
FERE (8
Silver Prosper Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
REEEERAA 3 TaRIET NEER
Success Mark Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property development
JERREBRA 3 EiAHR10,000E T NEER
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
B PEERAT 3 TaRIET nERE
Top Lead Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
HAREERAT 3 TaRIET NEER
Treasure Arts International Group BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
Limited
EZARSEERAA REBAREE/BR TaRIET NEER
Wealth Plan Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
REERERAT Eh TaRIET NEER
Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,998 100% 100%  Property investment
(Non-voting deferred
shares HK$2*)
BEREERAR X LR 998 NERE
(ERZEETRET)
Well Honest? Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% N/A~ Property investment
B X LERIBT TER MERE
KEEEHMEBARHNER) PRC Registered US$25,544,206 100% 100%  Property investment
(Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) i R A25,544,206% T nERE

Co., Ltd.) (‘Enterprises Huzhou')™
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments Limited carry no
rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general meeting and have very
limited rights to participate in a distribution of profits and, on liquidation, to the
repayment of the amount paid up on the shares.

ok

Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14 December 2054.

L There are newly acquired subsidiaries in current year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results
of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries
that are not material to the Group. Majority of these subsidiaries
operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are
summarised as follows:

Principal activity Principal place of business

42.

FTEMBRE 2FH1E @

* BERABRAFZBRERELERE
REREEAERAG 2 BE - HERR
ARELER BEAFERERENED
s AR RERE RO EHRG
ZEE

* MMNEEA—RBRBBERIZINEEE
HELE  CEHAS0F - HEE2054F
128148 -

# RAFEKREZHBRE

REARAEEZER  ERAIIR
ZEARBMBLRA  REIBFEAR
FEZEHEIBRAKREEET R
B BREARAEF2ERIILE
B ARZF B ERERBRIT
£ o

REMEMR - ARAHEHMBEAE
EmErrTEEEZMBLE - h%
MEBRARKBOREBEE - thEH
BARZEEEBHBWT

Number of subsidiaries

FEXK FTEEXBE MRS RHE
2023 2022
Investment holding Hong Kong 29 24
REZER o
Inactive Hong Kong 8 11
JER IR B
Inactive Hong Kong 2 2
IEE R T
39 37

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 March
2023 or 31 March 2022.

BAEME R RN2023F3/831H
2022331 B/ TAMEEES o
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43.

EVENTS AFTER END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@

As mentioned in note 17, the Purchaser exercised the option
granted by the Group to purchase an investment property at a
consideration of SGD13,009,000 (equivalent to HK$76,752,000).
This constitute a very substantial disposal transaction and was
approved in a special general meeting held on 31 May 2023.

On 29 May 2023, the Company proposed to implement the
capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”) involving (i)
share consolidation that every forty (40) issued and unissued
then existing shares of HK$0.01 each be consolidated into one
consolidated share of par value HK$0.40 each (the “Consolidated
Shares”); (i) capital reduction (the “Capital Reduction”) that
the par value of each issued Consolidated Share be reduced
from HK$0.40 to HK$0.01 by eliminating any fraction of a
Consolidated Share in the issued share capital of the Company
arising from the Share Consolidation in order to round down the
total number of the Consolidated Shares to a whole number;
and cancelling HK$0.39 of the paid-up capital of the Company
on each issued Consolidated Share so that each issued new
share will be treated as one (1) fully paid-up share of par value of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company immediately
following the Capital Reduction and the credit arising from
the Capital Reduction will be transferred to the contributed
surplus account of the Company; and (jii) share subdivision that,
immediately following the Share Consolidation and the Capital
Reduction becoming effective, each authorised but unissued
Consolidated Share (including those authorised unissued
Consolidated Shares arising from the Capital Reduction) will be
subdivided into forty (40) authorised but unissued new shares
of par value of HK$0.01 each. The Capital Reorganisation is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a special general meeting to
be held on 17 July 2023.

On 29 May 2023, the Company entered into a conditional
placing agreement pursuant to which a total of 50,000,000
placing shares will be placed by the placing agent to not less
than six (6) placees at the placing price of HK$0.50 per placing
share, representing (i) approximately 94.08% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the effective date of the Capital
Reorganisation; and (ii) approximately 48.47% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the placing shares after taking into account the effect of
the Capital Reorganisation. The net proceeds from the placing,
after deduction of the placing commission and other related
costs and expenses of the placing, amounted to HK$20,000,000
will be used for the Group’s general working capital. The placing
of shares has not been completed on the date of report.

43.

BREHRRSEE

(@)

WKt sE17ET B A ITEA
SEETRRERE  MURE
13,009,000% M L (R
76,752,000/ L) E —HIEE
W EERIIEFEALER
5 W E2023F5 431 HEITH
BRI R RS EEESH A -

MN2023%E5H298 © AR RIEE
BEERAEATRAEZAD) 8
FEiRmE (R hE st - 8
B0+ (40) 1% F A E(EO.01E T
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A A —REE0.A0E T A 5
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 44. RNRQ B ZBBEARRE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHET
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries and amounts due AT B R A s B A
from subsidiaries BIFIE 3,419,996 3,200,056
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables E MR 281 190
Tax recoverable AR EI B8 276 186
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAFEFABRZZERMEE 4,972 3,357
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFSEEY 17,618 52,185
23,147 55,918
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables E IR 7,473 3,637
Convertible notes AT IR = 16,292
7,473 19,929
Net current assets MEVEEFEAE 15,674 35,989
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 3,435,670 3,236,045
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities FEREFRBEEE 9,257 13,900
Convertible note BIE S 159,949 50,619
169,206 64,519
3,266,464 3,171,526
Capital and reserves BN R
Share capital A&7 21,259 9,315
Reserves (Note) A EES) 3,245,205 3,162,211
3,266,464 3,171,526
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(Continued)

Note:

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and prior years are as

follows:

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2023

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P HmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2023FE3 A31H IFF[E

44. ARTZFBARRRE &)

ot

ARTZRERFARBEEE 2 SBWT -

Convertible
Share note equity Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus profits Total
TEREE
RIPEE BafE RAGE HARH By o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhL FhL FhL FhL FEL FiEL
At 1 April 2021 M2021F4A1H 2,320,694 79,862 53,194 261,126 244,082 2,958,958
Profit and total comprehensive TEERFRZENRESR
income for the year - - - - 26,277 26,277
Reduction of share capital upon BAZ AR 2 BRI
capital reorganisation - - - 176,976 - 176,976
At 31 March 2022 R2022E3A31A 2,320,694 79,862 53,194 438,102 270,359 3,162,211
Loss and total comprehensive TEERRREERATESR
expenses for the year - - - - (95,637) (95,637)
Recognition of equity component BRABREE 2 ERKD
of convertible note - 56,878 - - - 56,878
Deferred tax liability on recognition BRTRREE 2 KD
of equity component of B2 EEHEAR
convertible note - (9,385) - - - (9,385)
Issue of share upon conversion of HRARREEREIRG
convertible notes 159,756 (93,151) - - - 66,605
Deferred tax liabilty released upon SRTRRZERRREL
conversion of convertible notes HEAE = 13,289 = = - 13,289
Issue of shares BRM 51,244 - - = = 51,244
At31 March 2023 Ho0234E3A31R 2,531,694 47,493 53,194 438,102 174722 3,245,205
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Financial Summary

MBERBE

RESULTS E45
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FAT FAT FAET FAET FET
Revenue S 62,228 80,682 80,253 64,475 43,106
Profit (loss) before BR BT &R
taxation (E518) 50,910 (209,657) (190,743) 123,497 65,972
Taxation | (400) 3,465 9,950 (7,050) (2,400)
Profit (loss) for the year N/ )i 3=SY 2 oy
attributable to owners REEF R (EE)
of the Company 50,510 (206,192) (180,793) 116,447 63,572
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
At 31 March
MR=A=+—H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FHET FET
Total assets BAE 4,034,545 4,602,993 4,613,337 4,879,808 5,624,267
Total liabilities weE (1,300,375)  (1,661,124)  (1,732,044)  (1,864,621)  (2,389,101)
Equity attributable to Pi/NET Y
owners of the Company S 2,734,170 2,941,869 2,881,293 3,015,187 3,235,166

Note:  On 1 April 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS 16 “Leases”. Accordingly, certain
information for the years ended 31 March 2019 which was prepared under HKAS 17
“Leases” may not be comparable to the years ended 31 March 2020, 2021, 2022 and

2023.

MizE : M2019F4 818 @ AEBEEAEEMBRE
ERIF1R[EE] - Bt - REFBGTER
FATSRIAEIREOBE2019F3A31H ILFE

B E T &K A B A BB E20204F + 20214 -
20224F [ 202343 A31H IFFELE -

233



234

Summary of Properties

YE A

At 31 March 2023 7202353 H31H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2023

A. REYE

Approximate
gross floor/

Location i3k Purpose saleable/site area Lease-term
WHEE,
Jzk=d BRA/MEERE HOFH
(sa.ft.)
(FAR)
Ground Floor ERET Commeraial 578 Long
No. 148 Johnston Road HLEuE [EES KHA
Wanchai 14858~
Hong Kong
Ground Floor BB Commeraial 472 Long
No. 6 Cannon Road =R S K]
Causeway Bay 65T
Hong Kong
Sixth Floor NE Industrial 8,608 Medium
Nos. 650-652 =105 T% A
Castle Peak Road, and 650-652%8  NIE R
No. 18A Wing Hong Street K BET18ASE
Kowloon
Second Floor Nie Industrial 2,981  Medium
Nos. 790, 792 and 794 Eyb s T% # A
Cheung Sha Wan Road 7908 « 7925k K 794%E
Kowloon —ig
Roof NEKEEH205R KA Industrial 2,910  Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street I% =epzis
Kowloon
Fifth Floor NBEKEEAT2058 A iZ Industrial 3,402  Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street I rh B
Kowloon
Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor R B AR A KR80035k Residential 2,086 Medium
Block D and Car Parking Space b At B DEE 12158 F0 F= Fh A
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor OUE ST K By N EE AT
Shatin Heights B465E
No. 8003 Tai Po Road
Shatin
Kowloon
Third Floor BEBEBEBI61R = Residential 781 Medium
No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road F= AR HA

Hong Kong
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Summary of Properties

YR E

At 31 March 2023 7202343 H31H

Hong Kong

A.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) A RBREVMEGE
Approximate
gross floor/
Location 3k Purpose saleable/site area Lease-term
Wigm,
Az BR/EEE HOFH
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)

9. Easy Tower, No. 609 hEEDE Industrial/ 74,458  Medium
Tai Nan West Street K E P 476095 commercial FREA
Cheung Sha Wan SKEEE T% &

Kowloon

10. 15 Ardmore Park #04-03 15 Ardmore Park #04—03 Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959 703 259959 E=E ki)

11. 15 Ardmore Park #18-02 15 Ardmore Park #18-02 Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959 703 259959 T=E ki)

12.  Anindustrial complex located at IR EAREMBENTE Industrial 1,805,534  Medium
No. 108 of Dongliang Road, SN TR B [ 4 B A S A HA
Zhili Town, Wuxing District, FRER IR 10858
Huzhou Clty, Zhejiang Province Zil¥$’t\£@§+ﬁ:+$%
of the People’s Republlg o'f China DR sy
with a total of twenty building
blocks being built

13.  Lots Nos. 1278, 1279 and BB FFRITEAD.D.1245% Land with 27,879  Medium
1280in D.D. 261278 ~ 127912805 b & attached i
124 Yuen Long structure
New Territories BB 2R £ 3
Hong Kong

14. Shop A and B on Ground Floor, FLRE SR BB 158 - Commercial 4,297  Medium
and Shop C on First Floor TASE R 3573t AR B & [EES HhHA
One Victory, Nos. 1, 1A and 3 —12CH
Victory Avenue, Ho Man Tin,

Kowloon

15.  Ground Floor of No. 50 BEMBERTE Commercial 905 Long term

Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay, 505%™ S £ 57
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Summary of Properties

YE O

At 31 March 2023 72202343 H31H

B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE B. RFEEHERRWZHE
Approximate Stage of
Location 3k Purpose site area Lease-term  completion
AR B EEE MHEOFH 52 B P ER
(sq.ft.)
(EFR)

1. Nos. 646, 648, 648A B Industrial 9,206  Medium Under
Castle Peak Road SE ] A development
Kowloon 646 © 648 ' 648ATR ERH

2. No. 121 King Lam Street BE Industrial 5,483  Medium Under
Cheung Sha Wan i T A development
Kowloon BMAE12158% ERH

3. Nos. 11, 13 and 15 B8 Commercial 2,857 Long Under
Matheson Street FiE7 9 [SES A3 development
Causeway Bay I A11 13K 1558 BERH
Hong Kong

4, Nos. 1B—1E B Residential 4,940 Long Under
Davis Street ERfE I F= =3t development
Kennedy Town EZ R c) ZERH
Hong Kong 1B - 1E5%

5. No.93and 95 EBEREHIR Residential 2,182 Long Under
Catchick Street =R A93% *= gt development
Kennedy Town 29553 ERH

Hong Kong
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